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Cautionary Statement

This annual report contains various forward-looking statements regarding events and trends that are subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause the actual results and financial position of the Group to differ
materially from the information presented herein. When used in this report, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“intend”, “anticipate”, “helieve”, “expect”, “should” and similar expressions, as they relate to the Group, are
intended to identify such forward fooking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Save as otharwise required by any
rules or regulations, the Group daes not undertake any obligations publicly to release the result of any
revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

The risks and uncertainties referred to above include:

- actions or decisions by governmental and regulatory bodies, or changes in the regulatory framework
in which the Group operates, which may impact the ability of the Group to carry on its businesses;

- changes or advances in technology, and availability of resources such as spectrum, necessary to use
new or existing technology, or customer and consumer preferences regarding technology;

- the performance of the markets in the UK, the EU and the wider region in which the Group operates;

- the ability of the Group to realise the benefits it expects from existing and future projects and
investments it is undertaking or plans to or may undertake;

- the ability of the Group to develop, expand and maintain its broadcast and machine-to-machine
infrastructure;

- the ability of the Group to obtain external financing or maintain sufficient capital to fund its existing
and future investments and projects;

- the Group's dependency on only a limited number of key customers for a large percentage of its
revenue; and

- expectations as to revenues not under contract.

Guidance note to the annual report:

in this document, references tc ‘Argiva’ and ‘the Group’ refer to Argiva Graup Limited {'AGL’} and its subsidiaries and
markets as the context may require. References to the ‘Company’ refer o the results and performance of Argiva Group
Limited as a standalone entity.

A reference to a year expressed as 2022 is to the financial year ended 30 June 202Z. This convention applies similarly to
any reference to a previous or subsequent financial year. Additionally, references to ‘current year’, ‘this year’ and ‘the year’
are in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2022. References to the ‘prior year’ and ‘last year’ are to the financial
year ended 30 June 2021.
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Arqgiva at a glance - 2022

ENABLING A SWITCHED-ON WORLD TO FLOW

Who we are

Argiva is a leading UK communications infrastructure business. We are behind the scenes
delivering millions of vital connections to enable millions of people, businesses, and machines to
connect wherever they are through TV, radio and machine-to-machine data services, enabling a

switched-on world to flow.

Our Infrastructure

c. 1,450
broadcast transmission sites in
the UK

¢. 1,150 TV transmissions sites

98.5%
of the UK population reached
through our TV services

275 TV channels
delivered into the UK and Ireland

Market leader for commercial
DTT! spectrum
owning two of the three national
commercial multiplexes

Over 1,000 TV channels delivered
internationally
via satellite to 5 continents

99.5% network coverage
across the North of England and
Scotland on our smart energy
networks

¢.80 satellite dishes accessing
30+ satellites

12 million premises
can connect to our smart meter
networks

50 million data points
delivered on our smart metering
networks every day

! Refers to Digital Terrestrial Television best known for supporting Freeview
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What we do

Argiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the world, building and operating the
complex ecosystermns and infrastructures through which data and content can move effectively, securely and

sustainably at scale — whether that's through broadcasting and transmission services, or smart networks for
energy and water.

Key Strategic ambitions

Undisputed leader in UK TV and radio
broadcast

Transition global media to cloud solutions

UK’s leading smart utilities platform

Innovator of scalable solutions for new
connectivity sectors
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Highlights

Whilst core media and broadcast has remained stable and smart utilities networks increase with the ramp up
of water meter products, the Group has seen the managed reduction of activity on the 700MHz Clearance
programme now completed and the completion of Transitional Service Agreements (TSAs?) following the
disposal of the Telecoms business in July 2020. There have also been decreases in DTT multiplexes and
managed broadcast services due to the run rate of pricing pressures on renewals. The Group is now focusing
on driving simplification and efficiency to build on cost savings and building a sustainable business.

Revenue EBITDA
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EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation” and includes add-backs for certain
items charged to operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITDA
to operating profit is presented on page 29.

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities is a non-GAAP measure and refers to net cash flows from operating
activities jess cash flows from investing activities per the cash flow statement excluding intertest received. See page 30 for 3 reconciliation
to cash inflow from operating activities.

Key financials in the year:

- Revenue decrease of 3.6% (2.8% decrease from continuing operations) but improved margins and an
EBITDA increase of 1.9% (2.7% from continuing operations) when compared to the prior year

- Managed reductions in revenue and EBITDA from the 700MHz clearance programme following
completion of the programme and the end of TSA revenues established for an interim period after the
Telecoms sale

- Decreased revenue due to the lower renewal pricing following the end of legacy contracts on the
main DTT multiplexes, UK Direct-to-Home (UKDTH) and managed broadcast service products

- Continuing the delivery of the core smart energy metering contracts across the North of England and
Scotiand with fully rolled out network coverage of 99.5% and incremental change requests

- Increase in revenue from the continued ramp up of activity on smart water metering networks and
increased water device sales.

2 T5A refers to revenue for Transition Services Agreement following the sale of the Telecoms business



Revenue £m

Argiva Group Limited {05254001)
Annua) Report and Financial Statements —~ Year Ended 30 June 2022

) ) ) QOrderbook
evenue hy operaring segment
p £bn

W e Dootrbunor

£3953 5 fepreiEnied:
u Mede Distribution
£2 Bon 2021 €3 0on
represented;
Srart Unhiues Networks
£6 601 {2021 £Q 8un
repH esented)

Revenue and £BITDA for Group’s site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now
reported for the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally.
Comparative figures for the prior year including orderbook figures have been represented to reflect this change
in reporting.

Key influgnces on revenue

Group revenue has decreased 3.6% in total and 2.8% from continuing operations. The following waterfall chart
demonstrates the movement in revenue year on year. This reflects the expected wind down from discontinued
operations, and completion of activities on the 700MHz clearance programme and TSAs as well as the impact
of market pricing pressures offset by growth in core contracts.
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Key Influences on EBITDA

The following waterfall chart demonstrates the year on year impact of total EBITDA for the Group reflecting
the key financial factors:

Commercial:

Media and Broadcast: Cost savings across staff costs and satellite capacity on transponders have
improved margin despite lower revenues from activity on 700MHz clearance programmes, pricing
pressures and utilisation on the main DTT multiplexes

Smart Utilities Networks: Increased activity across both energy metering and ramp up of water
metering device sales

Discontinued operations: Sale of the Telecoms business, completed in the prior year

Other functions;
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N
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Increased costs and recoveries due to changes in the nature of projects being worked on by the teams
Further increases driven by consultancy and software systems and network portfolio support.

Telecoms Media Smart Utllities Cperations Tedhnology & Corporate 202 reported

Discontinued Dstribunon Netwerks Transformation
Operaticns
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Chairman’s Introduction

Overview

The Argiva Group has continued to deliver strang performance, despite ongoing global challenges including from
the Covid 19 pandemic, conflict between Russia and Ukraine and associated impacts on the global economy and
inflationary environment.

During this time Argiva has maintained its focus to deliver key strategic priorities with the completion of
Transitional Service Agreements associated with the sale of the Telecoms business in the prior year, completion
of the 700 MHz Clearance programme, delivery of our systems transformation programme and embedding our
new business structure.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our people for their continued dedication and hard work in
the provision of our services.

Change in Chief Executive Officer

On 1 June 2022, Shuja Khan was appointed as Argiva’s Chief Executive Officer. Shuja joined Argiva in January
202G as Chief Commerciat Officer, responsible far our revenue generating activities across all business areas
including strategy, customer experience and regulatory affairs. in this role, he played an integral part in
establishing the new strategic direction for the business with the creation of the Vision 2031 strategic agenda,
strengthening relationships with our key customers and product portfolio and evolving the design and
development of our operating model. He brings with him to this new role 20 years of leadership experience in
the technology, media and communications sector. Prior to joining Argiva he was Chief Commercial Officer for
Cable & Wireless and has also held a number of leadership positions at both Virgin Media and Liberty Global
Eurcpe.

Shuja succeeds Paul Donovan who has been CEO since April 2020. During his tenure, Paul has had a significant
impact on the business overseeing the shift to the new operating model and evelving our purpose and strategy
for a sustainable future. | would like to thank him for his leadership, foresight and dedication. On stepping down
from this rale, Paul has returned as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Directors for the Group.

Change in Shareholder

InJune 2022 we anncunced that Digital 9 Infrastructure has agreed to purchase Canada Pension Plan Investment
Board’s (CPPIB} entire 48% stake in Argiva, Digital 9 Infrastructure is a dedicated infrastructure investor,
headquartered in the UK and with significant experience in the infrastructure industry. We anticipate that the
deal will be completed later in this calendar year. At that point the representatives from CPPIB appointed to the
Board of Directors will be replaced by representatives from Digital 9 Infrastructure. This will not change the day-
to-day operations of our business. Qur strategy is set and remains to be the focus of our operations.

Business Structure

Argiva is continuing to adapt and change. Following significant restructuring in the previous year the Group has
this year embedded its new integrated functional business model focusing on commercial and operational
growth opportunities and how the business can remain sustainable as we deliver our Vision 2031 strategy.

Argiva is continuing to look for ways to simplify and evolve its processes in order to support our evolving markets
and develop the business sustainably for future growth.
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Outlook

in markets that are ever-changing, with how content is consumed and the opportunities that machine-to-
machine networks bring in enabling utilities companies to meet their sustainability targets, this is an important
time for Argiva. As a business we look to build on the strong foundations that we have set and embark on a new
period of growth whilst also simplifying our operations.

Mike Parton
Chairman

September 2022
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Chief Executive’s Statement

| am delighted to have taken on the role of CEQ at this time. Argiva is at a pivotal point, part way through a
strategic transformation which will put the business on a firm foundation creating greater agility to respond to
and benefit from market changes. The last 12 months has already demonstrated the business’ strength and
resilience despite tough market conditions. It is a great time to lead a business that has strong fundamentals, as
well as an exciting future with new product innovation and growth opportunities. My focus in the coming years
is to pursue our long-term strategic ambition, strengthen our culture and ensure Arqgiva continues on its journey
to be a great place to work.

Strategy

last year, we launched Vision 2031, a blueprint for our long-term strategic direction. This focuses on four key
strategic ambitions which will ensure the business will deliver on sustained profitability growth through both
market and product diversification. The execution of this is enabled by the strengthening of our culture;
engaging and empowering our people; using technology to transition to a more data-orientated company;
investing in compelling products and building partnership to access new and growing markets.

More information on our strategy can be found on page 19.

Embedding our Operating Model

This has been the first full year of our new operating model. We have moved away from the traditional product-
based business units and adopted a functional model to best serve our customers. By aligning the commercial
operations to our core market facing segments of Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks, and then
centralising our product, technology and operational capabilities we can be more nimble as markets and
customer needs change. It also means we can mare efficiently invest in technology and multi-skill our people
across the enterprise including support functions.

In 2018, we initiated a four-year programme of digital transformation which encompassed replacement of our
core finance and HR, service operations, asset management and data management systems. The benefits were
clear to see when the majority of our people switched to working remotely in response to the COVID-19
lockdewns and still maintained the high operational performance levels required. Moving forward we are
establishing three new roles to the Executive Committee: ‘Chief Simplification Officer’ responsible for harnessing
the value of ocur transformation investment, establishing processes across the new operating model and
overseeing all change and programme delivery activities; and two new Executive Director roles who will lead
market growth and commercial engagement for Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks respectively.

2022 Performance

2022 has seen us face many challenges across the business. Coming out of repeated COVID-19 lockdowns,
changing market landscapes, economic uncertainty and the prospect of the highest inflation in more than a
generation, But we also faced one of the most challenging events in our history with the fire at Bilsdale.

Total revenue for the business decreased by 3.6%. Our TV and radio breoadcast products have continued to
remain strang and resilient along with increases across our Utitities products as we ramp up our water contracts.
We have however seen revenues reduced from the one-off 700 Mhz programme now largely delivered and
completion of the Transitional Service Agreements relating to the sale of the Telecoms business to Cellnex. We
also continue to see the impact of pricing pressures across our DTT and Managed Networks product areas. Tight
cost contral has mitigated this resulting in EBITDA growth of 1.9%.

Bilsdale

On 10 August 2021, a fire broke out at our Bilsdale transmitter mast. An estimated 80% of the ¢.600,000
households in the area had some reliance on the TV and radio services originating from that mast. This event
had a farge impact en the local community and highlighted the importance of terrestrial services when they are
unexpectedly taken away. Supporting the community and returning coverages has been a key priority for us
since then. Qur service recovery plans and procedures were immediately enacted and to date more than 99%

12
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of impacted households have had their TV coverage restored using alternative and temporary masts. Alongside
this we also provided substantial support to those affected which included a call centre, funding for alternative
means of TV reception, in-home engineer support and working with [ocal charitable organisations with targeted
help for the most vulnerable.

Through the year we concurrently worked on the restoration of the permanent mast which is a substantial
endeavour given access challenges with the location being more than 1,000 feet above sea level on the North
York Moors. The tower, when constructed, will be 9t tallest structure in the UK. Our focus is on rebuilding this
as quickly as possible but with the safety of everyone involved being of paramount importance.

As previously reported, our insurers have concluded their investigations. Precise findings have not been shared
and we are unable to comment in detail on these findings while the cfaims process is ongoing.

Sustainability

Growing our business but at the same time caring about our environment and society are not conflicting goals
for us. However, this requires a concerted effort with clear goals. We are in the early part of this journey and to
this end we have launched our sustainability roadmag. These goals will drive how we operate as well as how we
can also support our customers to fulfil their ambitions in this area. We aim to:

1. Become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero across our
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2031

2. Positively enhance the environments we operate in

3.  Optimise the use of natural resources wherever possible

More infarmation on our sustainability can be found on page 21.

Industry Outlook

In June 2022 we launched a brand-new campaign: Broadcast 2040+. This was based on fresh research from Ipsos
which showed compelling support for broadcast services across Great Britain, 90% of people wanting to see
continued political support for Digital Terrestrial TV and broadcast radic. This important campaign endeavours
to emphasise the criticality of terrestrial TV and radio to our societies. For all the new ways of watching content
like streaming, broadcast TV and radio remain the backbone for many ~ providing universal access to high quality
content without the need for a superfast broadband connection or monthly subscription cost. This has never
been more important given the cost-of-living challenges that many will be facing in the coming years.

Argiva is launching the Broadcast 2040+ campaign in coalition with organisations including Age UK, Silver Voices,
the Rural Services Networks and the Voice of the Listener and Viewer with the aim of engaging with decision
makers, including Government, Ofcom and other key stakeholders across the media sector to secure a
commitment from Government that DTT and broadcast radio will be safeguarded to 2040 and beyond.

In the coming year, growth and simplification will be at the forefront of our priorities. Within an ever-shifting
technology landscape we must continue to deliver seamfess connectivity in our core services whilst developing
new products to build on our networks and our reputation for excellent service. We are working with our
customers and continue to evolve our understanding of their requirements as their market changes and they
face new challenges. | am confident that we have set a compelling platform to develop a sustainable future for
Argiva.

Shuja Khan
Chief Executive Officer
September 2422

13
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Business Qverview

Enabting a switched-on world to flow
Who we are

At the heart of Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks in the UK and abroad, Arqiva provides critical
data, network, and communications services.

What we do

Argiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the world, building and operating the
complex ecosystems and infrastructures through which data and content can move effectively, securely and
sustainably at scale — whether that's through broadcasting and transmission services, or smart networks for
energy and water.

Argiva is the only national provider of terrestrial tefevision and radio broadcasting and provides machine-to-
machine connectivity for smart metering within the utilities sector. Argiva has invested significantly allowing it
to develop its communications infrastructure and technology as markets evolve.

Argiva earns network access and transmission service revenues from its customers, as well as fees for
engineering services and new projects. Arqiva’s services tend to be mission-critical for its customers, as well as
providing the network coverage necessary for the fulfilment of the universal service obligations ('USOs’) for
terrestrial broadcast customers as set out in their operating licences from the UK government.

Whilst we have a small overseas presence, Argiva’s assets, operations and markets are predominantly within
the UK and our business is driven from this region; therefore, we have minimal exposure to international markets
and foreign exchange.

Argiva has invested significantly into our capital infrastructure and has £1.3bn of property, plant, and equipment
at 30 June 2022. We are financed through a mixture of equity and long-term debt, with an average maturity
debt profile of over 4 years. The Group’s senior debt has an investment grade (BBB+) rating from S$tandard and
Poor’s and BB8 from Fitch. The Group’s junior debt has a rating of B- from Fitch and B1 from Moody’s.

Attractive UK communications infrastructure market
DTT (Freeview) is the most popular TV platform in the UK covering 98.5% of the population

Smart networks deliver around 50 million data points every day

A market leader
Sole provider of terrestrial television network access (Freeview)

Owner of 2 of the 3 national commercial multiplexes

Shareholder in, and operator for both commercial national DAB radio multiplexes and it is the service
provider for the BBC national DAB radio multiplex

High barriers to entry
Owner of critical national UK infrastructure that enables Public Service Broadcasters (PSB's} to meet their
government mandated universal coverage obligations

Significant investment would be required to replicate the infrastructure, including ptanning permissions to
erect new masts

Long established relationships with its customers spanning more than 80 years

14
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Since 1922, Argiva has been enabling a switched-on world to flow.
We delivered the world’s first TV broadcast for the BBC from the tower at London’s Alexandra Palace in 1936.

We also developed satellite TV in the 1970's, Teletext, and launched the UK's national DAB radio and digital
television networks in the 2000s,

There's no resting on our laurels though. We were the first company in Eurcpe to trial 5G fixed wireless access
technology in 2017, and we are currently working with our broadcast partners to develop new ways to reach
their viewers and fisteners via the Cloud.

We have also moved into new sectors, like Utilities. We won our first contract to deliver gas and electricity
metering in the north of England and Scotland in 2013, and followed that in 2015 with a partnership with Thames
Water to set up and run the world’s largest smart water metering network. More recently we have launched
our dual band communications device for further improved connection capabilities for gas and electricity
metering and our smart water metering network has now connected more than 1 million meters in total,

The Group’s technology and infrastructure, combined with our history and experience, enable us to work with
everyone from major broadcasters {such as the BBC, ITV, Sky, Turner and Canal+} to independent radio groups
and utility companies (such as Thames Water and Anglian Water} to the Data Communications Company {(DCC).

In 2022 we launched Argade, a cloud-based channel and live event interchange as well as our Hybrid

Connectivity service, a suite of managed connectivity solutions designed to support the network monitoring and
control needs of utility companies.
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Business model

In today’s ever-evolving world, the demand for information, content and entertainment is greater than ever.
We all want to be connected 24/7. This is the chalenge that our media and breadcast customers are facing,
delivering more content on more devices than ever before.

At Argiva we are enablers, applying our knowledge and expertise to technologies in order to unlock new
opportunities for our customers. We work in partnership, building and operating the infrastructure through
which data and content can flow effectively, securely, and sustainably.

Arqgiva seeks to maximise shareholder value by investing in our considerable site portfolio to not just maintain
reliahility, but also to maximisc its potential. Qur infliastruclure and commercial operations cover the following
key sectors:

- Media and Broadcast
- Smart Utilities Networks

COMMERCIAL

Our commercial function incorporates our customer facing business deriving revenues from a variety of products
across the Media and Broadcast and Utilities industries.

Media and Broadcast
The UKs only supplier of national terrestrial television and radio broadcasting services
Our DTT network allows more than 24 million households a means to access TV

Our radio infrastructure supports a range of services across the UK with over 300 stations on DAB and over 460
stations across FM, AM, and MW

Media and Broadcast services remain incredibly important for viewers and listeners in the UK. Even as viewing
habits change, Ofcom reports 85% of people continue to watch broadcast content every week. 9 out of 10 UK
adults listen to over 20 hours of radio each week.

tn an intensely competitive world, large media companies are increasingly focused on monetising content that
is distributed multi-market, multi-platform and multi-device. This means increased complexity in reaching their
audiences, whilst also trying to reduce costs. To achieve a truly global reach, a shift of focus is needed to IP-
based delivery through the cloud and we are well positicned as the UK media hub to do this.

Media and Broadcast at Argiva

From the earliest days of radio and television, through the birth of digital broadcasting to the emergence of
video over the internet, Argiva has been at the heart of the industry for nearly 100 years, trusted by broadcast
and media brands across the globe. Now, in today’s ever-evolving world, that experience combines with a
proven portfelio of broadcast infrastructure, end-to-end networks, next generation media processing and
connectivity solutions to help our customers innovate, compete and grow.

The Media and Broadcast infrastructure includes sites for the transmission of terrestrial TV and radio, operates
the Group’s licensed mulitiplexes, owns and operates teleports at key locations in the UK, as well as international
terrestrial fibre distribution network, media facilities, leased satellite capacity, cloud hased services and delivers
related engineering projects.

The Group utilises a network of 1,150 TV sites to carry Freeview into circa 24 million households every day,
making it the UK's most popular TV platform. Argiva’s critical national infrastructure provides coverage to 98.5%
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of the UK’s population. Within the sector, Argiva holds a regulated position as the sole provider of network
access for terrestrial television broadcasting.

Argiva is a market leader in commercial DTT spectrum, owning the licences for two of the three main national
commercial DTT multiplexes, enabling leading broadcasters such as Sky, UKTV, CBS and Turner to deliver
broadcasting content using our channel capacity.

Additionally, Argiva operates ¢. 1,450 transmission sites for TV and radio, providing caverage to the circa 90% of
the UK population that listen to the radio. Argiva is a shareholder in, and operator for both commercial national
DAB radio multiplexes and it is the service provider for the BBC national DAB radio multiplex.

The Group is also the UK's leading independent owner and operator of teleports and media management
facilities, serving many of the world’s largest multi-channel broadcast as well as providing data connectivity to
the utilities and natural resources sectors.

Argiva manages the distribution of more than 1,100 international TV channels for high profile customers
including Al lazeera, Discovery, BT Sport, Sky, NBCU, Sony and Turner including coverage of high-profile sporting
events. Argiva’s operation of reliable and secure VSAT (Very Small Aperture Terminal) communications networks
across the globe utilises a world class satellite and fibre network, providing real-time critical communications to
remote locations. Argiva uses our expertise and experience to enable us to keep pace with rapidly changing
dynamics and technology advancements, thereby underpinning the longevity and success of the product base.
Arqiva’s satellite network delivers content to the UK's major Direct-to-Home {DTH) platforms including Sky and
Freesat as well as delivering Video-on-Demand {VoD} services for global media distribution to both Apple TV and
Amazon Prime. We have also engaged with the Low Earth Orbit satellite sector providing earth station gateway
Services.

Media and Broadcast contributes significant and stable cash flows to the Group with a long-term contracted,
substantialty RPI-linked order book of £2.8bn {2021: £2.9bn represented®) which includes major contracts
running as far as 2035.

Smart Utilities Networks
Exclusive metering connectivity provider to electricity and gas companies in the North of England and Scotiand

Provider of metering monitoring systems to help reduce water wastage and supporting on sustainability

Ambitious environmental and sustainability agendas from regulators are driving change across utility sectors,
providing huge opportunities for growth. Today less than 10% of UK premises have a smart water meter, and
less than 30% have a smart energy meter. With 20% of water lost through leaks, our water customers are focused
on reducing them, and eliminating pollution caused by sewer flooding. Smart meters are providing an
opportunity to meet sustainability targets through reducing the UK’s overall greenhouse gas emissions, including
up to 0.5% from smart water meters on their own.

Smart Utilities Networks at Argiva

Digital technology means that we can now get a much better handle on how much gas, electricity and water we
all consume. That's the first step in using less of it, something we all have to do if we’re going to five sustainably
on the planet. Argiva warks across the utilities sector to make this happen. Through our efforts, energy and water
grids and meters are getting smarter, meaning more control, and less wastage.

* Revenue and EBITDA for Group's site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now reported for
the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally. Comparative figures for
the prior year including orderbook figures have been represented to reflect this change in reporting.
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For energy and mobility companies, satelfite operators, military organisations and telecoms providers, secure
networks are vital when working in locations that are remote or hostile — guaranteeing that communications
always get through. Which is what you get when you use our global satellite, teleport and fibre networks. With
coverage that spans the globe, we build customised end-to-end solutions that offer 99.99% reliability.

Argiva generates revenues with respect to the build and operation of the smart ‘machine-to-machine’ networks
and other data transmission services applications. With a continuing focus on innovation and market
opportunities, Argiva is embracing the fast-developing machine-to-machine sector, particularly for utilities, for
which we utilise our Flex-net network across our smart metering contracts. The Group has invested in building
machine-to-machine (M2M) networks, which support major energy metering contracts spanning 15 years and
covering more than 10 million premises, and water metering contracts which will cover 3 million homes.

Argiva has invested substantially in infrastructure as a result of these contracts which now result in recurring
cash flows during the long-term operational phases of the network delivery. The utilities business remains a key
part of the Argiva business and is a key strategic priority for growth with potential to become the UKs leading
smart utilities platform. In this area we are supporting our customers in being able to achieve their net zero
carbon sustainability agendas.

Utilities revenues also include site share revenues relating to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecoms business
to Cellnex.

The smart utilities network products has an order book of £0.6bn (2021: £0.8bn restated®), with contracts
running as far as 2050.

OPERATIONS

Responsible for the efficient operation and maintenance of all Argiva sites, the Operations function provides in-
life support for our media and broadcast, utilities, and internaf IT systems to ensure they are delivering tc our
customers’ requirements.

Our field engineering services help to deliver corrective maintenance, preventative maintenance and projects
works across our broadcast and utilities transmission systems, antennas, structures and satellite/links
infrastructure. Additionally, the operations function provides management of inventory and logistics, changes,
configuration and sites and structures as well as cyber security, disaster recovery and network operations.

The Operations function is a non-revenue generating area and incurs costs in the provision of these management
and support services.

TECHNOLOGY AND TRANSFORMATION

Our technology and transformation function operates across the business comprising engineering, product
management, product marketing, information security, data and insight and transformation. The Group's
transformation programme is expected to complete in the 2022 calendar year.

CORPORATE

Corporate functions at Argiva comprise Finance, Procurement, Strategy & Regulatory, Legal and People and
Culture providing support services across the business.

¢ Revenue and EBITDA for Group’s site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now reported for
the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally. Comparative figures
for the prier year including orderbook figures have been represented to reflect this change in reporting. Orderbook is
stated before RPl inflation, the prior year has also been restated to remove £0.4bn of contract RPI indexation incorrectly
included.
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Vision 2031 is our strategic focus. This encompasses four key strategic ambitions to guide the business to
achieve our purpose. Our priorities in how we aim to achieve these ambitions are set out below:

To be the undisputed leader in UK TV and radio broadcast

- Deliver sustainable TV and Radio broadcast, protecting and focusing on customer and operational
excellence and managing capacity and margins to maximise revenues, ensuring that the value we
bring to society is understood;

- Leverage our scale and the cloud, enabling industry efficiency by supporting our customers to
move to more cost-efficient and increasingty flexible models;

- Expand services and drive renewals delivering greater value by selling across our portfolio of
services, creating long term partnerships while also developing value-added services in new areas

To transition global media to cloud based solutions

- Scaling IP and cloud-based services; investing in building broadcast quality cloud processing and
extending our footprint in live and events content

- Becoming the go-to choice for our partners in cloud distribution so they can better manage their
global content flows across all formats

- Growing multiplex service, using our infrastructure to provide virtual, cost-effective, and scalable
services to TV cable operators outside of the UK

To be the UK’s leading smart utilities platform provider

- Leading in connecting UK smart meters, maintaining market leadership, and scaling our
operations to drive and accelerate the roli-out of domestic smart meters

- Broadening our product offering, developing new value-added data-driven services in monitoring
and control, that reduce energy use, water wastage and pollution

- Diversifying through forging partnerships and widening technology choice, to deliver new hybrid
connectivity solutions and real time network monitoring

To be an innovator of scalable solutions for new connectivity sectors

- Working with partners, building new solutions for new and emerging sectors that have growing
and more complex connectivity needs including those that make the most of our infrastructure,
spectrum, and satellite expertise

Progress in 2022

Vision 2031 was launched by the Group in the prior year. Over the course of the last 12 months our focus has
been on transforming the business.

Driving our cultural transformation to build a culture that enables high performance, high engagement,
innovation and agility. In the year we have launched the following cultural goals for the business:

1. Accountability - being accountable for the promises we make

2. One Argiva — working together as one team

3. Curiosity — striving to look at things differently to discover a better way

We have embedded our new integrated arganisation and operating model focusing on the functions of the
business of commercial, operations, technology & transformation and corporate. Our medel is continuing to
evolve to meet our goals.

Optimisation of our new technology systems has continued with progress on our transformation programme
including new system launches for our digital enterprise platform. Our transformation programme is now
coming to an end as we move on to looking at how we can continue to simplify our processes.
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Sustainability Strategy

As part of our drive for sustainability, Argiva has this year launched three strategic goals to mitigate our impact
and support our environment and social agenda:

Goal 1: To become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero
across our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2031

- Transitioning our carbon-based emissions sources to more sustainable alternatives e.g. implementing
more energy efficient transmission equipment and replacing fleet vehicles with sustainable options
such as electric vehicles

- Working with our supply chain to help them realise their sustainable ambitions and decarbonise their
operations

Goal 2: To positively enhance the environments we operate in

- Looking at opportunities across all our sites to improve habitats for flora and fauna to thrive and
increase biodiversity

- Identifying how we can reduce demand for electricity through new technologies and insulation of our
buildings

- Providing transparency to our customers, allowing them to understand the carbon footprints
associated with our products and services ensuring they can make informed decisions when using our
networks.

Goal 3: To optimise the use of natural resources

- Understanding and monitoring our water use and looking at ways to reduce our consumption.
Reducing the water we use will also reduce the energy consumed through processing and treatment
of wastewater.

- Understanding what waste we produce and how we ¢an reduce this, including finding efficiencies in
our asset maintenance schedules e.g. reducing the number of times we swap out used consumables
or procuring technologies that can be easily repaired or repurposed at their end of life.

- Developing water products to assist our water customers with their sustainability agendas and UK
water leakage targets
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Business Update

The Group’s contracted order book value for continuing operations at 30 June 2022 was £3.4bn (2021: £3.7bn).
A significant proportion of the value of this order book relates to medium to long-term contracts which includes
DTT and radio transmission and smart energy and water metering, as well as other infrastructure services. The
Group remains focused on growth opportunities in targeted core infrastructure areas.

Media and Broadcast

DTT Multiplexes

During the year Argiva’s DTT mux licences were extended to 2034, securing a stable future for the platform, and
the interim COM7 closed at the end of the trading year as planned. The closure of COM7 has created opportunity
as channels move to the national COMS and 6 multiplexes included in the sales pipeline for FY23 as we target
full platform capacity utilisation.

The year saw some challenges for Digital Platforms, with sanctions leading to the early cessation and non-
renewal of the RT channel and Ideal Shopping {IS) being liquidated by its private equity owners. However,
platform utilisation has reached full capacity at 100%, with a new agreement negotiated with Ideal World, who
bought the IS assets, new contracts signed with UKTV for Drama +1, That’s TV and launch of a new channel
EarthX. Renewals were also agreed with Narrative, PBS and Gems.

Radio

The Department for Culture, Media and Sport {DCMS) has passed legislation to renew two National commercial
DAB multiplexes; Digital One (Argiva 100% ownership) and Sound Digita! (Argiva has 40% ownership} to
December 2035. This underpins the growing importance of DAB radio and secures a stable future for the
platform over the next decade and beyond.

Arqiva completed a successful auction in the last guarter on the SDL national commercial radio multiplex
securing service providers for the last remaining channels on the multiplex.

Analogue re-engineering programs continue and various smaller projects have been signed off in the year for a
number of purposes, distribution changes, small scale DAB network access offers, site moves and more. The
indication from government and the market is that FM services will continue into the 2030’s, therefore there is
still movement on the platform and legacy equipment continues to be replaced as we move through renewals.

Direct to Home (DTH)

A key renewal with Narrative (formerly Sony Pictures Television) was secured for over 80% of a single
transponder during the last quarter of the year, protecting future revenues. In June 2022, as planned, Argiva
returned a transponder to Eutelsat to optimise its satellite real estate and better manage the cost of supply vs
market demand representing material cost savings over the next few years. There continues to be a good
pipeline for new channel launches from the international sector with a number in negotiation for launch in the
coming months.

Government {DCMS) updates

In June 2022, Argiva launched the ‘Broadcast 2040+’ campaign alongside a cealition of partners including Age
UK, Silver Voices, the Rural Services Network, and the Voice of the Listener & Viewer to secure a long-term
commitment from the Government to the future of broadcast services. The campaign provides a channel to
collaborate with partners on upcoming policy developments. The campaign is backed by consumer research
from Ipsos into the views of Great Britain on the importance of broadcast services which highlighted the value
placed on DTT and broadcast radio services, with 90% of people wanting to see continued support for these
services.

The Government confirmed that it would pursue the privatisation and sale of Channel 4. Argiva provides a range
of services to Channel 4 including: transmission through the DTT multiplex licence holder D34 (which is 50%
owned by Channel 4); DTH satellite services; and as carriage provider for some of its channels on the Argiva DTT
multiplexes. The long-term contract with D34, that runs into the 2030s, combined with Channel 4’s continued
reliance of the DTT platform for viewers and advertising income, means that we do not expect Channel 4’s sale
to have any immediate implications for Argiva should the Government pursue this action.
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The Government had also announced its intention to review the licence fee funding model for the BBC. The
Committee has since released its report, which highlighted the ongoing relevance of DTT aver at least the next
decade. The Committee did not propose a specific funding model but ruled out the BBC heing funded solely
through a subscription model and highlighted alternatives that would be less regressive than the current flat fee
licence approach paid by all households.

Low Earth Orbit Market

Argiva continues to develop opportunities in the Low Earth Orbit market by establishing connections to multiple
satellites; the technology can for example provide satellite broadband anywhere in the world. Key players in this
sector are SpaceX, Project Kuiper and UK Government investment in OneWeb plus established satellite
operators such as Telesat and ViaSat. The Group has two customers secured at the reporting date.

700MHz Clearance

The main substantive works on the 700MHz Clearance project completed in August 2020. Final project
completion activities continued unti! October 2021 with principal site works remaining being the removal of the
temporary mast at Emley Moor.

Smart Utilities Networks

Anglian Water

Following the award of the Anglian Water contract in June 2020, the Group rolled out over 367,000 meters by
30 June 2022 out of the overall 789,000 targeted by 2025 across 24 planning zones including Norwich, Lincoln,
Northampten and Peterborough, among others. Argiva continues to rollout the network for Anglian Water albeit
the pace has slowed due to global supply chain constraints which is restricting the number of meters available.

Thames Water

Since April 2015, Argiva has defivered a smart metering network for Thames Water and as at 30 June 2022, over
780,000 meters have been installed, with in excess of 18 million meters readings being delivered per day. It is the
largest smart water metering network in the UK and has high coverage across the Thamas Water London region.
Argiva continues to add a number of network sites outside London, which included recently Chiddingfold and
Guildford, with Dartford currently in design for delivery later this calendar year. In December 2021, the contract
was extended for further 10 years to 2031. Argiva continues to rollout the network for Thames Water albeit the
pace has slowed due to global supply chain constraints.

Despite Thames Water initial intent to conduct a full procurement for Thames Valley they have now asked us to
proceed with 11 site installations to enable a deployment of approx. 25,000 meters this year and around 108,000
by 2025. This places us in a strong position for the remainder of the Thames valley rollout.

Northumbrian Water

Argiva has been selected by Northumbrian Water Group to deliver an initial roll-out of a smart metering network
in Essex, where it operates as Essex & Suffolk Water. This initia) contract of 5 years and 11,000 meters has now
been extended to cover over 28,000 meters and for 15 years of service with 2 new sites. The trial will be followed
with a formal procurement process later this year for ¢. 270,000 meters to allow Northumbrian to meet their
commitments in the current regulatory period.

UK Power Networks

Arqiva has commenced the BGAN product rollout for the UK Power Networks for its network monitoring with
over 650 units delivered by 30 June 2022 out of the total orders of 5,000. Further orders are expected later this
calendar year.

Other Smart Water Metering Trials

In the Midlands, Argiva has been participating in @ multi-vendor, multi-technology smart water metering
evaluation trial with a major water company. Over this period, we have again proven the excellent performance
of our technology and managed service. We are extending and expanding the trial for a further 12 months and
1,900 meters, on an exclusive basis, enabling the water company to evaluate fully the benefits and establish a
business case for a future full smart metering roll-out. Orders have been received for the trial extension and
meters have now been deployed.
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We have recently agreed an approach for a new trial with a southern based water company to assist in evaluating
the data produced by our smart metering solution and identifying the resulting operational and financial
benefits. This will take the form of a small deployment of circa 400 meters.

Argiva is also participating in an RFI launched by Southern Water in January 2022 for 1.2 million meters. We
expect the next phase to launch in the autumn of 2022,

Smart energy metering rollout

The Group’s smart metering communication network in the North of England and Scotland continues to cover
99.5% of premises. There are currently aver 2 million communications hubs operating on the network
representing 20% of the total UK communication hub installations. Whilst there has been an impact to
communications hub deliveries, owing to global component shortages, energy companies do have a level of pre-
existing stock and Argiva continues to work with Smart DCC Ltd (DCC) to mitigate the supply risk. The DCC
continues Lo submit change requests that reflect new industry requirements and Argiva maintains a strong
pipeline. Argiva’s relationship with DCC remains strong and has been formally rated by DCC as “green” over the
past two months.

Adverse energy trading conditions have resulted in a number of energy companies ceasing business with their
customers and obligations being taken up by other suppliers under a pre-existing process operated by Ofgem
for such eventualities. Argiva currently envisages no impact to the smart meter rollout programme now
governed by rollout obligations set by Ofgem.

New proof of concepts

Argiva has engaged with utility customers and industry suppliers as it seeks to expand its presence in the smart
utilities industry, The Hybrid Connectivity Proof of Concept (PoC) with SGN has completed following which they
have launched their ‘Strategic Connectivity’ procurement exercise to which Argiva will formally respond in the
coming weeks,

Our Leakage as a Service PoC has been well received and we are now engaged in a programme of work with
Thames Water to train and verify their Artificial Intelligence model. Northumbrian Water have shown further
interest and requested a proposal from Argiva for an Analytics Prototype Deployment to augment their current
capability. There are two further water companies that have agreed an initial evaluation period. Finally, our
Sewer Level Monitoring PoC trial has commenced with Anglian Water with 9 sites deployed and initial feedback
citing that performance has far exceeded anything previously seen.

Corporate Update

New CEO

On 10 May 2022, Argiva announced that Shuja Khan would replace Paul Donovan as a Chief Executive Officer
from 1June 2022. Shuja was appointed as Chief Commercial Officer at Argiva in January 2020 and has been
central to the creation of our strategy, Vision 2031, and the development of the current operating model, as
well as evolving and strengthening relationships with our key customers.

Shuja brings more than 20 years of ieadership experience in the technology, media and communication sector
and his industry background and demonstrable management and leadership strength will be invaluable fer the
next phase of Argiva’s evolution as we concentrate our focus on ensuring Argiva is a long-term sustainable

business providing the best possible partnership to our customers as well as on simplifying our business.

Paul Donovan was appointed to the Board as Non-Executive Director on 1 July 2022,
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Management Changes

In order to take the business forward, three new Executive Committee roles have been created to help the
business focus on grawth and simplification. Vivian Leinster has moved from her existing role as Chief People
Officer to become Chief Simplification Officer, while Peter Baker and Chris Alner were appointed as interim
Executive Directors for Smart Utilities Networks and Media & Broadcast respectively. A new Chief People Officer
will be appointed to replace Vivian Leinster.

Bilsdale Tower Fire

Following the fire at our Bilsdale mast site in August 2021, our efforts have been tocused on restoring coverage
as quickly as possible, as well as to offer advice and practical support for our most vulnerable viewers through
providing access to a call centre. Argiva has now been able to restore Freeview TV services to arcund 99% of
impacted households.

Construction of the permanent replacement tower is well under way. It normally takes around two years to
complete such a substantial construction, but we are targeting Spring af 2023.

Argiva has been informed that its insurers have now concluded their investigations. Precise findings have not
been shared and Argiva is unable to comment in detail on these findings while the claims process is ongoing.
Argiva intends to provide a further update as soon as it is permitted to do so.

See page 28 for further information on the financial impacts of the fire.

Sale of telecoms business

Foliowing the sale of the Telecams business to Celinex in july 2028, Argiva has been supparting Cellnex’s UK
business via Transitional Services Agreements {TSA) and as planned all TSAs have now completed by the end of
2021, moving into a business as usual relationship under the existing site share arrangements.

Transformation Programme update

Throughout the year the Transformation Programme has delivered releases planned, providing the business
with industry-leading applications and integration across our Site Management Platform (Siterra), Service
Management {ServiceNow), and Financial Management (Oracle ERP) platforms. The programme is final stages
and is expected to complete this autumn. This concluding release brings the entire broadcast operations onto
the transformed platforms, completes all of the integrations across our core systems and opens up new digital
ways ta engage with aur customers.
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Financial review

Financial Performance

For the year ended 30 June 2022, revenue for the Group was £624.1m, a decrease of 3.6% from £647.2min the
prior year on a total reported basis. Revenue from continuing operations for the year of £624.1m a decrease of
2.8% year on year from £642.3m in 2021. With increases in core TV and radio products and utilities contracts
the overall decrease year on year reflects natural reduction from projects as well as challenging conditions within
the markets we operate.

(5.5)%

157.8 148.8 6.0%

624.1 642.3 (2.8)%
- 4.9 {100.0)%

624.1 647.2 {3.6)%

*Revenue and EBITDA for Group's site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now
reported for the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internaily.
Comparative figures for the prior year inciuding revenue of £26.1m and EBITDA of £16.5m have been
represented to reflect this change in reporting.

Further changes to EBITDA have also been made in the year due to the change in the Group’s organisational
structure, moving away from the traditional vertical business units and adopting an integrated functional
operating model to better serve our customers, Consequently, during the current financial year to 30 June 2022,
the financial results of the Group have been reported and presented on a functional basis. This includes the
Commercial revenue generating function of the business which includes the customer facing segments of Media
and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks, supported by Operations including maintenance and estates
management, Technology and Transformation and Corporate inciuding the Group’s finance, legal and people
and culture services. This reporting structure aligns to how the Group reports internally. The segmental EBITDA
for the Group for the prior year has been represented to align to this new structure presentation.

Media and Broadcast

Total Media and Broadcast revenue has decreased 5.5% year on year to £466.3m from £493.5m (represented).
QOur core broadcast TV and radio distribution products have remained strong and stable during the year with
inflaticnary increases due to RPl indexation on these long-term contracts.

These increases have however been offset by the expected natural reduction in revenue from the 700MHz
Clearance programme with final activities on this multi-year engineering programme completed in the year.
Further decreases have arisen due to the full year impact of terminations and pricing pressures from the prior
year across the Group’s UK DTH, managed media services and multiplex products. Following new channel
launches towards the end of the prior year, utilisation has remained strong on the Group’s main (DVB-T)
multiplexes and was 97% at 30 june 2022.

A further £7.6m (£nil) of exceptional revenue has been deducted to give total revenue in the period of £624.1m
{2021: £647.2m) in respect of service credits in relation to the Biisdale fire. See note 7 of the financial statements
for further information,
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Smart Utilities Networks

Revenue from Smart Utilities Networks has increased from £148.8m (represented) to £157.8m, a 6.0% increase
year on year. This increase is due to the continued ramp up of revenues from water metering contracts in
particular driven by device sales despite supply chain issues. There have been further increases to recurring
revenues as a result of incremental smart energy metering change requests.

Smart revenue also includes site share revenues relating to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecemmunications equipment and transitiona! services provided following the sale of the telecoms business
to Cellnex. Revenue in this area have decreased following the completion af TSAs.

Gross profit was £421.3m, representing an increase of 1.5% from £415.1m in the prior year. Gross profit from
continuing operations increased by 2.2% year on year from £412.2m to £421.3m. Whilst revenue has decreased
due to the reasons outlined above with corresponding decreases in related costs, margins have improved year
on year as a result of further cost savings achieved by the Group. This includes satellite capacity savings and a
reduction in billable labour costs due to headcount.

Other operating expenses from the total Group were £89.6m, up 11.7% from £80.2m in the prior year
{continuing operations 2022: £89.6m; 2021: £79.8m). Despite lower staff costs due to lower headcount, the
increase in operating expenses has been driven by increases in areas such as IT licences and maintenance due
to new systems established as part of the Group’s digital transformation, as well as professional and consultancy
costs as the Group pursues its simplification journey.

EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and
includes add-backs for certain items charged to operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying
performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 29.

2.5%

67.2 57.4 17.1%
2103 392.1 2.6%
(25.3) {21.4) (18.2)%
{28.5) (24.4) (16.8)%
{15.1) (13.9) (8.6)%
341.4 332.4 2.7%

- 2.5 (100.0)%
341.4 334.9 1.9%

Total EBITDA was £341.4m, a 1.9% increase from the prior year of £334.9m and a 2.7% increase from continuing
operations. Despite the decreases in revenue, EBITDA has increased due to changes in product mix and cost
savings achieved.

within the Media and Broadcast business, EBITDA has decreased by 2.5%, from £334.7m (represented) to
£343.1m. Despite the decrease in revenue driven by the completion of the 700MHz clearance programme and
pricing pressure on coniract renewals, the Media and Broadcast products have benefitted from cost reductions
leading to EBITDA increasing for the year. The cost savings include decreases in staff costs driven by a reduction
in headcount as well as savings gained on satellite capacity costs.
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EBITDA for the Group’s Smart Utilities Networks business has increased from £57.4m {represented) to £67.2m,
dn increase ot 17.1%. The increase is predominantly driven by the increases in revenue for both the ramp up of
water metering contracts and incremental change requests on energy metering contracts. The margin for Smart
Utilities is however impacted due to the increase in revenues from device sales which are a relatively lower
margin product.

The new operational functional segment is a non-revenue generating segment responsible for the efficient
operations and maintenance of all Argiva services including field engineers, disaster recovery and network
operations. EBITDA for the operations segment has decreased 18.2% due to an increase in costs from £21.4m to
£25.3m. The increase is predominantly due to staff costs and recoveries due to changes in the nature of projects
being worked on by the team as well as insurance costs that were included in the corporate segment in the
comparative year.

EBITDA for the non-revenue generating Technology and Transformation function for the year was a loss of
£28.5m, an increase in cost of 16.8% from a loss of £24.4m in the prior year. The increase in cost is mainly due
to managed service and software costs related to the Group's digital enterprise platforms as we move to more
cloud operated systems and consultancy project costs.

Corporate EBITDA represents costs for the support functions such as finance, strategy & regulatory, legal and
HR services. EBITDA for this function has increased cost 8.6% from a loss of £13.9m to £15.1m year on year.

Depreciation has decreased by £10.1m total {2022: £158.4m; 2021: £168.5m). Amortisation has increased by
£3.5m in total (2022: £13.2m; 2021: £9.7m). The collective decrease of depreciation and amortisation of 3.7%
is driven by a reduction in accelerated depreciation from the prior year period, particularly in connection with
assets replaced under the 700MHz clearance programme due to the lower activity following the completion of
the programme, The decrease has been partially offset by an increase in accelerated amortisation on software
assets that have been disposed of in the year as the Group’s transformation programme progresses.

Exceptional operating expenses charged to operating profit were £19.6m, decreased from £25.6m in 2021.
Exceptional costs in the current year predominantly relate to restoration costs arising from the Bilsdale fire,
restructuring and severance costs as the Group embeds the changes in the organisational design and structure
of the business as well as corporate finance costs from strategic shareholder activities. Exceptional operating
expenses are excluded from EBITDA. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 29.

The restoration costs of £10.0m incurred within exceptional operating expenses (2021: £nil) were associated
with the Bilsdale transmitter following a fire which broke out on 10 August 2021. Engineers have been working
on a recovery plan to reinstate services present on the site. The recovery plan included service recovery with
works completed for the improvement of TV coverage from other local not-spot sites, as well as the erection of
a temporary mast at the Bilsdale site. To date around 99% of impacted households have been returned to
coverage. Further works to complete the enduring solution and re-build is ongoing with works started on the
build of a new permanent mast. Management are still assessing the financial impact of the incident and the
assets impacted. Costs recognised are those which have been incurred to date and can be reliably measured,
and also include £7.6m of service credits deducted from revenue during the period. See note 7 to the financial
statements for further disclosure on the full financial impacts incurred.

An exceptional loss on disposal assets has also been recognised in the income statement for £9.5m (2021: £nil).
This loss relates to assets damaged due to the fire at the Bilsdale site that have been disposed of in the year.

Management are still assessing the financial impact of the incident and the assets damaged by the fire, and have
engaged with the Group’s insurers. Whilst the insurers have concluded their investigations, the precise findings
have not been publicly shared. At this stage we cannot comment on the findings while the claims process is
ongoing. A stage payment of £5.0m was received from the insurers in June 2022 which has been recognised as
exceptional other income in the income statement.

Cperating profit has increased 2.0% (2022; £143.2m; 2021: £140.4m) across the Group and 3.4% in relation to
continuing operations (2022: £143.2m; 2021: £138.5m). Despite the decrease in revenues and exceptional costs
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incurred as a result of the Bilsdale file, the increase in operating profit has been achieved by the cost savings
across the business driven by headcount and satellite transponder savings as well as the reduction in
depreciation as capital programmes progress.

A reconciliation between operating profit and EBITDA is presented below:

Operating profit 143.2 140.4
Exceptional items charged to operating profit 15.6 256
Exceptional revenue 7.6 -
Depreciation 158.4 168.5
Amortisation 13.2 9.7
Impairment a.s -
Exceptional loss on disposal of fixed assets 3.5 -
Loss an disposal of fixed assets 2.1 -
Other Income (7.7} (9.3}
Exceptional Other Income {5.0)

Total EBITDA 341.4 334.9
EBITDA from discontinued operations - 2.5
EBITDA from continuing operations 341.4 332.4

Finance costs (net of finance income) were £729.1m, an increase of 10.4% from £660.4m in 2021. This increase
is predominantly driven by the compounding effect of interest of the outstanding shareholder loan note
principal and accrued interest. This has been partially offset by a decrease in bank and other loan interest due
to reduced principal amounts outstanding following repayments made on amortising debt instruments.

Other gains and losses for the year included £76.1m of losses {2021: £75.4m loss). Of this figure, £26.1m (2021:
£11.1m loss) as a result of fair value movements of interest rate and index-linked swaps, principally attributable
to changes in forward market rates and credit spreads. In the prior year, other gains and losses also recognised
the £55.9m of break costs incurred attributable to the repayment of debt and related re-couponing of interest
rate hedging derivatives and £7.6m exceptional loss on exit of swaps.

A one-off exceptional gain from profit on disposal of £1,038.3m was recognised in the prior year refated to the
disposal of the Group’s Telecoms business in fuly 202G.

Loss before tax for the Group was £662.0m, a decrease from a profit of £442.9m in the prior year. From
continuing operations, the loss before tax has increased from £597.2m in 2021 to £662.0m in the current year.
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The loss before tax is reported after non-cash charges of £898.6m (2021: £756.9m) as shown below:

{Loss} / profit before tax (662.0) 442.9
Depreciation 158.4 168.5
Amortisation 13.2 9.7
Impairment 0.5 -
Exceptional loss on disposal of fixed assets a.5 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2.1 -
Accrued interest on shareholder loan notes 602.7 529.8
Other non-cash financing costs® 36.1 37.0
Foreign exchange revaluations on financing - 0.8
Fair value movements on derivative financial instruments 76.1 11.1
Total non-cash charges 898.6 756.9
Adjusted profit before tax and non-cash charges 236.6 1,199.8

(including the disposal of the Telecams business of 2022: £nil; 2021: £1,038.3m)

Cash Flow

Net cash infiow from operating activities was £331.3m, a 16.9% decrease from £398.7m in 2021. Despite
operating profit increasing year on year, the decrease is driven by the movement in working capital. Working
capital inflows have decreased due to the recognition of one-off deferred income on additional contract
liabilities in the priar year not repeated following the sale of the Telecoms business. Other waorking capital
decreases are due to the utilisation and unwind of deferred income {decreasing contract liabilities) and timing
of payments.

Capital expenditure on the purchase of tangible and intangible assets has increased. There has been decreased
expenditure on significant capital projects such as the 700MHz Clearance programme, IT refresh project for the
smart utilities and the Groups transformation programme as these projects wind down to completion.
Expenditure is also impacted by the timing of cash payments made on the settlement of capital expenditure
accruals balances. This reduction has been offset by increases in maintenance on networks as well as capital
expenditure incurred in relation to works on the Bilsdale transmitter site including the erection of temporary
masts and site improvements following the fire in August 2021.

W ; i

Net cash inflow from operating activities 331.3 398.7
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (88.7) (86.1)
Receipt of insurance stage payment 5.0 -

Net capital expenditure and financial investment (83.7) (86.1)
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities 247.6 312.6

Cash Conversion as a % of EBITDAS
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment 72.5% 93.3%

% Includes amortisation of debt issues costs, unwinding of discount on provisions, imputed interest and interest on lease
liahilities

& Cash conversion as a % of EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure referring to the calculation of eperating cash flow after capital
and financial investment activities as a percentage of EB{TDA.

30



Argiva Group Limited (05254001}
Annual Report and Financial Statements ~ Year Ended 30 June 2022

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities is a non-GAAP measure and refers to net
cash flows from operating activities less cash flows from investing activities per the cash flow statement
excluding intertest received. See page 30 for a reconciliation to cash inflow from operating activities.

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities was £247.6m, a decrease of 20.8% from
£312.6m in the prior year. This decrease has been principally driven by the working capital movements partially
offset by the improvement in operating profit driven by cost savings in the business and increase in capital
expenditure explained above. Cash conversion levels for the Group remain strong although decreased due to
movements in working capital.

Whilst overal! financing cash outflows have reduced year on year (2022: £240.7m outflow; 2021: £1,999.6m
outflow} owing to the repayment of borrowings and exit of swap arrangements and reiated costs incurred in the
prior year not repeated, cash outflows for the current year have been impacted by the high inflation levels
impacting the accretion payment made on our inflation-linked swaps.

The total cash flow for the year was 3 £7.7m inflow {2021: £133.4m inflow). This decrease is owing to the one-
off disposal proceeds from the Telecoms business sale received in the prior year and subsequent repayment of
horrowings and exit of swap arrangements not repeated as well as the changes in operating cash flows explained
above.

Financial Position

Net liabilities were £4,224.5m, representing an increase of 17.5% from £3,594.7m (restated) in the prior year.
The net liability position is primarily driven by the capital structure reflecting the shareholder loan notes,
borrowings, lease liabilities and derivative financial instruments held. The increase in liabilities for the year is
driven by the financing costs for the Group. Our assessment of going concern is set out on page 32,

Financing

The Group established our Whole Business Securitisation {"WBS'} structure in February 2013, and since then we
have continued to refinance elements of our debt structure further extending our maturity profile.

Standard and Poor’s and Fitch reconfirmed their rating of Argiva senior debt at BBB+ and 8BB respectively, and
Fitch and Moody’s continues to rate the junior rating at 8-/B1 respectively.

At 30 June 2022 the Group’s debt finance” comprised:

< 1 year 1-Zyears 2.5 years »5 years Total
£m £m £fm £€m £m

Facilities drawn 340 - - 23.0 57.0
Finance lease obligations 18.8 16.2 27.9 22.7 85.6
Senior term debt - 262.0 - - 262.0
Senior bonds and notes 50.4 45.3 197.8 413.% 707.4
Junior bonds - 6525.0 - - 625.0
Shareholder |oan notes - - 2,1481 - 2,148.1
Total 103.2 948.5 2,373.8 459.6 3,885.1

Included within the above is £3,302.6m of fixed rate debt and £582.5m of floating rate debt. All debt held at 30
June 2022 is sterling denominated. The Group holds interest rate swaps (including inflation-linked interest rate
swaps) to hedge our interest rate exposures. This hedging strategy is employed to ensure the certainty of future
interest cash flows. The Group does not apply hedge accounting to these swap arrangements.

7 gxcluding unamortised debt issue costs and accrued interest
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The Group continues to comply with all financial covenant requirements including the following historic
covenanl 14lio requirements at the senior financing level:

By

iR

ot

Liquidity

To ensure we have sufficient available funds for working capitai requirements and planned growth the Group
maintains cash reserves and access to undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast requirements. At 30 June
2022 the Group had a cash balance of £251.2m (2021: £243.5m). The Group carefully manages the credit risk on
liquid funds and derivative financial instruments with balances currently spread across a range of major financial
institutions, which have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The levels of
credit risk are monitored through the Group’s on-going risk management processes, which include a regular
review of counterparty credit ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a maximum level and term for
deposits with any single counterparty.

Postyear end on 19 August 2022, the Group signed a commitment for a £450m term facility and a £50m Working
Capital Facility both with an expected maturity date of 2028. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a
margin over SONIA. Argiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited (a subsidiary of the Group) is the borrower of this
arrangement. The proceeds of this facility when drawn will be used to redeem the Groups outstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

Going Concern

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios. The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally
generated cash flows, will continue to provide sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations,
including our centractual and commercial commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing as
they fall due. This is further supported by the new debt facilities established post year end, see note 31 for
further information. For this reason, the Directors are confident that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing this financial information.

8 ‘Cash flow’ as defined under the Group’s financing common terms agreement, i.e. this is not a GAAP
measure.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Group uses a combination of financial and non-financial key performance indicators ('KPIs’) to measure
against our strategic ambitions.

See page 19 for further infermation on our strategic ambitions:

Financial KPis (our 2013 and Z020 resuits include material vaiues from our disposed Telecoms business)

Revenue

£m

500 600 00

& 2072 32021

a0

2020

200

2019

Definition ~ Revenue is presented as per the financial statements,
and in accordance with IFRS 15

Revenue has decreased 3.6% from the prior year for total revenue
(2022, £624.1m; 2021: £647.2m} and 2.8% on a continuing
pperations basis {2022: £624.1m; 2021: £642.3m). Revenues on our
core TV and radio distribution have remained strong due to RPI-
indexation on the contracts as well as increase across our utilities
contracts due to the ramp up of activity water metering contracts
including strong device sales and incremental change requests on
energy metering. These increases have however been offset by the
natural reduction of activity on the 700MBz programmes with
activity now completed and end of TSA agreements as well as
market challenges with the run rate of lower fee renewals from the
prior year across our DTT platform and managed media services.

EBITDA
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Definition — EBITOA is a non-GAAP measure and refers (g ‘earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and includes
add-backs for certain iterns charged to operating profit that do not
reflect the underlying business performance. See page 29 for its
reconciliation to operating profit.

Total EBITDA has increased 1.9% and 2.7% from continuing
operations (2022: £341.4m, 2021; £332.4m). Despite the decrease
in revenue, this has been offset by cost savings that have benefitted
total EBITDA for the Group. These include satellite capacity cost
savings as well as a reduction in staff costs across the Group due to
lower headcount for the year.

Operating cash flow after capital and

financial investment
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Definition — Operating cash flow after capital investment activities
represents the cash generated after spending required to maintain
or expand its asset base. This is calculated as the net cash flow from
operatfons minus the net cash flow from capital expenditure and
financial investment. See page 30 for its reconciliation to net cash
Sflow from operations.

Cash generated has decreased 20.8% from £312.6m to £247.6m.
This has predominantly been driven by the movement in working
capital due to lower working capital inflows following the
racognition of one-off cantract liabilities in the prior year fallowing
the sale of the Telecoms business not repeated. Capital expanditure
has remained largely flat year on year due to the reductions in
major capital programmes such as 700MHz clearance and the
Groups transformation programme as these programmes complete
offset by an increase in maintenance on networks and the costs
incurred on the capital restoration on the Bilsdale transmitter site.
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Non-financial KPIs

Definition — Arqive strives to provide consistently high service levels and
loak v manage and monitor the total annual level of network availability
across both TV and radio infrastructure as a percentoge across aif
multiplexes

Broadcast - Network availability

Avaitability

Result — Through careful management Argiva has consistently been able
to achieve excellent levels of network availability. The drop experienced
et v\; e earlier in the year is as a result of outages due to the Bilsdale transmitter

Saseans fire.
93 855%

. .

e A

Strategic ambition targeted - to be undisputed feader in UK TV and radio
broadcast distribution

Utilities

The Smart metering M2M contract has continued to achieve 99.5% network coverage in the North of England and
Scotland.

Rollout of water metering on contracts won with Anglian Water, Thames Water and Northumbrian Water. Other smart
water metering trials are in progress

Strategic ambition targeted— To be the UK’s leading smart utilities platform provider

New sectors

We are engaged in the Low Earth Orbit satellite sector due to contract wins in the prior year.
Product launches - In 2022 we launched Argade, a cloud-based channel and live event interchange as well as our Hybrid
Connectivity service, a suite of managed connectivity solutions designed to support the network monitoring and control

needs of utility companies.

Strategic ambition — Innovator of scalable solutions for high-connectivity sectors

Customers
Premium customers temperature
check

Premium customers temperature check for the sentiment of our
top 27 Premium Customers in June has 20 of our customers in a
good position at Green.

We have six customers classified as Amber. Key issues in June relate
to ease of doing business, service reliability and several problems
that have been ongoing for a prolonged period.

[
. !
] . . . .
One customer continues in Hypercare with good progress being
made on addressing their open issues but a continued need to have
. ! Rec Reting  Hypercare enhanced measures to ringfence and pricritise all activity to restore

trust in Argiva and maximise our chances of winning new business,

People
Employee engagement

Our engagement score has increased to 66 in May 2022 {+1 from
Jan 2022) and +8 from October 2021,

Argiva is now five points off the UK benchmark engagement score
of 71.

Response rate in May 2022 was 75% (-1% from Jan 2022).
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Corporate Responsihility

Doing business the right way and sustainably is vital to Argiva. it’s as important as what we achieve.

Arqgiva endeavours to cohduct its business in a way that benefits all our stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, employees, shareholders and communities in which we operate as well as creating a sustainable
future for the business

Our ethics, values and behaviours are weaved through every aspect of what we do.

Our culture s also key to the success of our strategy with our 3 culture goals driving how we serve our customers
and creating a great place to work. These goals include

1.  Accountabhility - being accountable far the promises we make
2. One Argiva — working together as one team
3. Curiosity — striving to look at things different to discover a better way

Sustainability

Our sustainability principles are embedded into our key processes to support our goals and ensure that we are
able to operate and grow our business sustainably.

Environment
Energy

To become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero across our scope 1 and
2 emissions by 203 1.

Given the nature of the Group's activities, energy consumption is a key area of interest both economically and
environmentally. Qur energy policy reflects the company’s cammitments to improving energy efficiency by:

- Reducing energy consumption
- lnvesting in energy efficient technology; and
- Monitoring carbon emissions

We are always looking at new and innovative ways of driving down our carbon footprint. Responsible
management of energy has a key role in minimising environmental impacts and is embedded within Argiva. Key
to this is transitioning our carbon based emissions tc a more sustainable alternative, e.g. sustainable alternative
such as electric cars to replace our fleet vehicles using combustible engines. We also continue ta investigate how
emerging technologies and ingenious ways of working can help us and our customers realise sustainable
ambitions and decarbonise operations.

For more details on our annual emissions see page 63 in the Directors report.
Biodiversity
To positively enfiance the environments we operate in

We always strive to minimise the impact we make on all our sites across the country, in order to improve the
habitats for flora and fauna to thrive in and create biodiversity. We work closely with planning authorities and
local communities to find the best acceptable solution for locations of masts and other infrastructure essential
to keeping both rural and urban communities connected. We also are identifying how we can reduce our
demand for electricity and looking at new technologies and ways to insulate our buildings.
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Ta optimise the use of natural resources

Understanding and monitoring our water usage enables us to look at how we can reduce our consumption and
ensure we can find ways to optimise the use of our natural resources. We will take a holistic view of how we
use our natural resources, both upstream to understand how we minimise waste creation and downstream to
maximise reuse and recycling.

Our sustainability also extends into waste management, a key responsibility for our industry. We are focusing
on what waste it is that we are producing and how this can be reduced. This includes finding efficiencies in our
asset maintenance schedules, reducing the number of times we swap out consumables as well as procuring
technologies that can be repaired or repurposed at their end of life and finding environmentally friendly ways
to dispose of redundant hardware. For example leasing laptops which are returned at the end of their term to
be rebuilt and sold again for use and recycling thase not under these terms. We also consider the environmental
risk of every investment made.

Social

Supporting Charities

We support our colleagues fundraising for local and other national causes close to their hearts. To help, Argiva
provides matched funding enabling colleagues to fundraise for their chosen charities, from Diabetes UK and the
NSPCC to local community projects, children’s clubs and sports teams.

Argiva also supports the ‘Give as You Earn’ scheme in partnership with the Charities Aid Foundation {CAF)
allowing colleagues to get tax relief on their donations. In 2021, we retained our Bronze CAF award. The amount
provided to charities through this scheme has reached over £100,000 over the past three years.

Between 2019 and 2021, Argiva also worked in parthership as a proud supporter of Cancer Research UK, over
this period raising over £60,000 towards research into a cure for cancer.

Following the fire at our Bilsdale site Argiva donated £50,000 each to three local charitable organisations to
support communities affected by the fire and to help identify those in greatest need.

Also during the year, through colleague donations and matched funding from Argiva, £20,000 has been raised
for the Disasters Fmergency Committee (DEC) Ukraine appeal to help UK aid charities and crganisations in
Ukraine to support those seeking safety and shelter.

Supporting Our People

We aim to create a workplace where people feel engaged, energised and respected, where they can do their
best, and look after their personal wellbeing, both in and out of work.

Wellbeing

The Group has an ongoing commitment to the health and emotional wellbeing of our people. Argiva runs an
annual event focusing on both organisational and personal resilience, which includes wellbeing sessions and
training courses, We also have a network of mental health first-aiders, who are eqguipped to listen without
judgement, reassure and respond to colleagues, even in a crisis.

As well as these activities, our colleagues have access to a wealth of support through our Employee Assistance
Programme.

Health and Safety

Health and safety is vital, whether in the office or repairing an antenna on a 1,000ft mast. We have been a driving
force in developing the Mast and Tower Safety Group, we run our own accredited I0SH Working Safely training
scheme for our engineers, and we collaborate with the union BECTU on an annual employee safety conference,
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We are committed to complying with applicable health and safety legislation, and to continual improvement in
achieving a high standard of health, safety, and welfare in our operations and for all those in the organisation
and others who may be affected by our activities. The Group operates a robust integrated management system
that is certified te 15014001, 15045001, 15090001 and 150270001 as well as offering training programmes
covering specific skills and general awareness.

Supporting Diversity and Inclusion

We are committed to making our workplace as diverse and inclusive as possible because the complex
engineering and commercial challenges we need to solve can only be done by people with a diverse range of
skills, backgrounds and life experiences. Our diversity and inclusion programme ensures we continually focus on
what’s needed for everyone to feel included and able to perferm. We have moved beyond building awareness
around unconscious bias and are now supporting colleagues to understand the difference between intent and
impact.

Our Diversity Ambassadors have been instrumental in encouraging and engaging other workpliace communities.
We now have an active Women at Argiva network, a Working Families group, and a Neurodiversity network, so
we can listen, support and take opportunities to make lasting, tangible changes so our working practices are
even more inclusive.

Empioyees

The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was 1,287 (2021: 1,528). Arqiva
recognises the significant contribution of our employees and makes every effort to create a rewarding and
engaging work environment.

Qur policy is to provide equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, religion or political beliefs, disability or age. Like many engineering-based businesses
we recognise that Argiva has a higher proportion of men than women and we are working to address this with
the Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion through our diversity and inclusion programme.

The table below provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees as at 30 June 2022:

L b e ALY e % . bof
Board of Directors 2/20% 8/ 80%
Executive Committee 2/25% 6/75%
Group Employees 296 / 23% 991/ 77%

The Group continues to address training and development reguirements for employees at all levels within the
organisation. The Board also reviews future management requirements and succession plans on an on-going
basis.

The Argiva Employee Board (‘AEB’} has continued throughout the year. The AEB is a democratically elected
Board that acts as a voice for employees across Argiva and provides a clear and direct link between the Group’s
employees and the Executive Committee. The AEB contihues to meet on a monthly basis to discuss key matters
such as performance management, or efficiencies and processes to develop responsive action plans.
Furthermore, the AEB {as well as the Executive Committee) interacts with representatives of BECTU (the
Broadcasting, Entertainment, Cinematograph and Theatre Union) regarding employee matters.

The Group’s employee forums provide an effective channel for communication and collective consultation
across the Group. They play an important role in enabling employees to help the Group manage change
effectively. The goals of each forum are to act as the formal consultative body for its part of the business within
Arqiva, provide a voice to management on employee issues, initiate and support social activities, and promote
consultation and sharing information,
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significant emphasis is placed on employee communication. The Group intranet, ‘The Hub’, makes information
available to employees on all matters including performance, growth, and issues affecting the industry. The
Group also runs “Connect Days” across various sites to bring employees together and provide opportunity for
updates and discussion across the business.

Our “Work. Life. Smarter.” initiative also recognises the benefit of hybrid working to our employees. This
commitment to our people endeavours for our people to feel supported and empowered to work in a way that
enables them to thrive in their role, giving a choice about how, when and where we work.

Argiva wants all our employees to benefit from our success and growth as a business. The annual bonus scheme
recognises the importance of high performance and is designed to reward employees for achieving targets and
continuous improvement in averall performance, in line with our values and strategy. The scheme takes into
account the targets that have been set by the Group. The Group must achieve a minimum operating cash
performance before a honus becomes payable which is then calculated based on these financial KPIs. The bonus
payment for the 2022 financial year is expected to be made in October 2022. in addition, certain members of
our senior management participate in a long-term incentive plan which is typically 3 years in duration and is
designed to recognise the value of strategic initiatives being undertaken by the Group during the longer-term.
As with the annual bonus scheme, the Group must achieve a minimum threshold of financial performance before
a bonus becomes payable under the long-term incentive plan which is then calculated based upon the 3-year
Group financial KPIs of EBITDA and operating cash performance. All such arrangements are cash-based incentive
schemes which operate against documented performance targets and are reviewed at least annually by the
Remuneration Committee (which comprises members of the Board of Directors).

Gender Pay Gap

The full annual gender pay gap report is available on the company website at www.arqgiva.com. The latest report
shows the emphasis and commitment to diversity and inclusion with improvements in both the mean and
median pay gaps for the reporting period. The full report provides details on why we have a pay gap, the reasons
for the increase in the year and the actions we are taking to address the issue.

Modern Slavery Act

Argiva is committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part of our business. The supplier Code of Conduct reftects the commitment to acting ethically and with
integrity in all business relationships and to implement and enforce effective systems and controls to ensure
slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere in our supply chains. The full statement is included
on page 42 and is also available on the company website at www.argiva.com.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

In conjunction with the UK Bribery Act 2010, the Group has adopted a Code of Conduct for employees which
incorporates all its anti-corruption policies and procedures. The policies apply to all Argiva employees employed
on both a permanent and temporary hasis. The Code of Conduct aiso sets out the policies and procedures on
the giving and receiving of gifts and hospitality.

Information Security

Due to the critical importance of our sites and systems to the Group, our customers and, insome cases, as Critical
National Infrastructure, we take information security very seriously, focusing on protecting and managing access
to information throughout its entire lifecycle.

We hold certification to 1SQ/IEC 27001:2013. 1SO27001 is an internationally recognised specification for an
information security management system (ISMS}, a framework of policies and procedures that includes all legal,
physical and technical controls involved in an organisation’s information risk management processes. This allows
us to compete for new business which requires us to demonstrate the robustness of our security controls.
Through independent review and accreditation, supported by internal monthly audits, we continue to

38



Argiva Group Limited (05254001}
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

confidently demonstrate our commitment to security and secure working practices. We have held this
certification since 2013 and recertify every three years with recertification last given in May 2020,

We also hold Cyber Essentials certification. Cyber Essentials is a government-backed, industry-supported
scheme to help organisations guard against the most common cyber threats and demonstrate their commitment
to security. We have held this certification since 2016 and recertify annually.

Taxation

The Group’s approach to tax is to ensure compliance with alf legal and statutory obligations. Argiva is committed
to maintaining a transparent and constructive working relationship with HM Revenue & Customs and with local
tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which we operate. The total contribution te UK tax receipts including
business rates, income tax, PAYE and NI paid by both Argiva and empioyees, totalled £54.2m for the financial
year (2021: £65.4m).

The Argiva Group is a primarily UK based infrastructure group. There are some trading operations outside of the
UK, however these generate less than 1% of operating profit and there are no tax planning activities taken which
seek to reduce the Group’s UK profits or revenues by transferring revenue or profit out of the UK. The Group’s
small overseas trading entities deal directly with customers in their area of residence and fulfil their tax
requirements in the local jurisdictions.

This report was approved by the Board on 26 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

ok —

Mike Parton

26 September 2022
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 (the “Regulations”}, requires companies that meet
certain thresholds to report on the Directors’ application of their section 172 duty to promote the success of the
Company, as set out in the Companies Act 2006, along with stakeholder and employee engagement.

Section 172 Statement

The Companies Act 2006 sets out a set of general duties owed by directors to a company, including a list of
matters to which directors must have regard, which are set out in 5.172{1}{a) to {f}). During FY22, in continuing
to exercise their duties, the Directors have had regard for these matters, as well as other factors, in considering
proposals from the Executive Committee and continuing to govern the Company on behalf of our shareholders.

%«w ot :,%?/ 1\2}4« %%%;gﬂ #r
Consequence of any decision in Strategic overview 19-21
the long-term
Interests of employees Employee Engagement 41
Supporting our people 36 (Corporate Respansibility)
Employees 37
Fostering relationship with Stakeholder Engagement Below
suppliers, customers and others Business Update 22-25
tmpact of operations on the Environment 53
community and the envirenment Energy Consumption and Waste 64
management
Charity 36
Maintaining high standard of Governance 45-49
business conduct Health & Safety 36
Modern Slavery Act, Anti-Bribery 42
& Corruption
Acting fairly between members Stakeholder Engagement Below

Accountability 59

Stakeholder Engagement Statement

Throughout the year, the Board has continued to ensure engagement with relevant stakeholders generally in
relation to its day-to-day business and particutarly with respect to key challenges, such as the ongoing
situation with COVID-19 and the impact of the fire on the Company’s mast at Bilsdale. Examples of the way in
which this engagement has taken place are set out in the table below.

i
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Employees Please see our Employee Engagement Statement below and Corporate
Responsibility statement {pages 35-39) for full details
Regulatory Bodies We have good relationships with representatives in all relevant regulatory

bodies and engage regularly with Ofcom; the Department for Culture, Media
and Sport {(DCMS); and the Department for Business Enterprise and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS). We also monitor relevant developments with Ofwat and Ofgem
as regulators of customers of our Utilities business, and we participate in
consultations and consult with government departments and regulators when
setting strategy and making decisions that affect industry generally. We have
liaised closely with Ofcom with regard to the impact of the mast fire at Bilsdale
on consumers and the wider broadcast industry.

Investors Quarterly reports to investors are published on our website and available to all;
an annual investor call is held, in which we review our annual results and invite
questions from investors.

Customers Our relationships with our customers are very important to us, and we maintain
regular contact through account managers; Executive Committee members; and
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where appropriate our Chairman. As part of our response to COVID-19 and to
the impact of the Bilsdale mast fire, we have sought to understand and support
customers who have been affected and ensure continued delivery of services.

Suppliers Our Procurement team oversees supplier relationship management, with a

category management structure so that employees have relevant expertise for
each supplier. We work ¢losely to ensure positive relationships, seeking to agree
fair terms and conditions and ensure timely payment, through adherence to and
reporting on the Prompt Payment Code.

Shareholders Shareholder Representatives on the Board and committees of the Board report

back to shareholders on the business and take their interests into account when
making decisions, while operating in accordance with their Companies Act
duties. The Group’s corporate governance specifies a number of categories of
decision which are reserved to shareholders, ensuring that the decisions
affecting shareholders are subject to the necessary oversight.

Stakeholders As part of our infrastructure projects, we engage with planning authorities and

focal communities to foster positive reiationships. Argiva’s charitable
engagement also seeks to support communities local to the areas in which it
operates. The Company is particularly proud of the community support
activities it undertook in the aftermath of the Bilsdale fire to assist members of
the public effected by the loss of the Bilsdale mast.

Employee Engagement Statement

1.

Information

Regular all company updates are provided to all employees via Argiva’s Hub {intranet} and email
updates; Management conducts regular company-wide live broadcasts and hosts face-to-face connect
days through the year to update employees on performance, strategy and other key developments;
with opportunities for employees to ask questions in real time.

Consultation

Argiva has active union representations through the Broadcasting Entertainment Communications and
Theatre Union (BECTUJ; strategic decisions which may affect employees (inciuding business change;
pay; and terms and conditions) are discussed with BECTU representatives in advance of action being
taken. Similar engagement also takes place with the Argiva Employee Board (AEB), which is elected by
employees, and their feedback and views are taken into account when making decisions affecting the
workforce, for example in setting timescales and the content of communications.

Involvement

Employees participate in annual bonus schemes which are based upon performance of the business
throughout the year, encouraging employees to contribute to the success of the business. The Group’s
cultural value of curiosity encourage new ideas and fostering strong relationships across the
organisation, supporting overall performance of the business.

Common Awareness

Financial and economic factors affecting the business are described to employees throughout the year
during management broadcasts; regular email communications with business updates and through the
Argiva Hub.
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Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

Qverarching Statement
This statement sets out the steps we are implementing to combat slavery and human trafficking. We remain
committed to further improving our practices in the future to combat slavery and human trafficking.

Organisation’s Structure

We are a communications infrastructure and media services provider, operating at the heart of the broadcast,
satellite communications, and smart metering markets. We're at the forefront of network solutions and services
in the digital world. We provide much of the infrastructure behind television, radio satellite communications
and smart metering in the UK and have a presence in Ireland, mainiand Europe and the USA.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2022, Argiva Limited and its subsidiaries, Argiva Muxco Limited, and
Argiva Smart Metering Limited were part of the Argiva group with head offices in the UK and over 1300
employees. We operate in the UK and Europe.

Argiva Limited (and its subsidiaries), Argiva Muxco and Argiva Smart Metering Limited each have an annual
turnover of in excess of £36 million.

Our Supply Chains

The Argiva Procurement team works in partnership with our suppliers, ensuring we meet our internal customer
needs. The Argiva values are core to how we interact with suppliers whether a high-volume preferred supplier
or one-time only supplier,

We have an exceptionally diverse range of services and goods that are required by the business and sourced by
our Procurement team including:

¢  Transmission — Argiva has numerous transmission sites throughout the UK;

¢ Construction — Argiva undertakes a broad range of construction activities from small changes to the
construction of new transmission towers;

*  Maintenance & Repairs;

¢ [T software and managed services;

¢ Satellite Capacity; and

e Corporate facilities (including corporate sites, stationery, recruitment, legal and professional fees).

Qur Policies on Slavery and Human Trafficking

We are committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part our business. Suppliers are required to comply with our Supplier Code of Conduct, which reflects our
commitment to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business relationships and to implementing and
enforcing effective systems and controls to ensure slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere
in our supply chains.

Due Diligence Process for Slavery and Human Trafficking
As part of our initiative to identify and mitigate risk we:
*» Aim to identify and assess potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
»  Tryto mitigate the risk of slavery and human trafficking occurring in our own business and our supply
chains;
*  Monitor potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
*  Where possible we build long standing relationships with suppliers and make clear our expectations of
their business behaviour;
s Expect our suppliers to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and have their own suitable anti-
slavery and human trafficking policies and processes; and
* Encourage the reporting of concerns and support the protection of whistleblowers.
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Supplier Adherence to our Values
We have zero tolerance to slavery and human trafficking. We expect all those in our supply chain to comply with
those values and our Supplier Code of Canduct.

Our Procurement team, reporting into our CFQ, is responsible for promoting and ensuring compliance with the
Modern Slavery Act 2015 as part of our supplier relationships.

Training

To ensure a high level of understanding of the risks of modern slavery and human trafficking in our supply chains
and our business, all Directors and members of the Executive Committee have been briefed on the subject, a 15
minute short course around Modern Slavery was sent out to all staff and 1,100 completed that in 2020/2021.
An online course was created in December 2021 that included the Modern Slavery Statement as well as an
overview of Madern Slavery and that currently goes to all new starters. 199 people have completed the course
thus far. We aim to provide a refresher course in 2022/2023 and then every 3 years.

Our Effectiveness in combating Slavery and Human Trafficking
We will use the following key performance indicators (KP1s) to measure how effective we have been to ensure
that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any part of our business or supply chains:
* Useof robust supplier selection process including supplier guestionnaires and compliance with Argiva’s
Supplier Code of Conduct; and
* Use of our payroll systems ta ensure that purchase orders and payments to suppliers are limited to
those who comply with our standards.

Steps taken during the financial year to 30 June 2022
in the past financial year, we have taken the following steps to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not
taking place in our supply chains, and in any part of our own business:

a) We have fully implemented our qualification process for all suppliers: One Time Only suppliers {low
value transactions less than 2% spend in FY22) all use our standard Purchase Order T&Cs, which includes
a mandatory compliance clause covering Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Laws.

Suppliers with ongoing relationships are all required to qualify via our e-procurement system, This
process includes background checks and either (a) confirmation of acceptance of the Argiva Supplier
Code of Conduct (which covers modern slavery and human trafficking); or (b) demonstration that the
Supplier has its own equivalent policies covering modern slavery and human trafficking. Purchase
Orders cannot be placed with new ongoing suppliers before the confirmation has been given.

b} We continue to limit the number of active suppliers with Oracle to reduce risk. During the financial year
to 30 June 2022 we had 976 suppliers registered on oracle and have traded with only 639 of these
suppliers during the fiscal year {N.B. this figure has reduced from >2,300 in FY18).

¢}  Woe continue to use our “Speak Up” reporting website and telephone line to enable people to notify
any concerns. These are overseen by the Internal Audit function and regular updates given to the
Group’s Audit & Risk Committee.

Statement

This statement is made pursuant to section 54{1}) of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and constitutes Argiva Limited,
Argiva Muxco Limited and Argiva Smart Metering Limited’s slavery and human trafficking statement for the
financial year ending 30 june 2022,

Note: The signed statement is available on the Company website at www.argiva.com
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Board of Directors and Executive Committee

Ownership

The Company is owned by a consortium of shareholders comprising Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
{48%), Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund 11 {25%), plus other Macguarie managed fund {1.5%), Health
Super Investments {5.5%), IFM Globa! Infrastructure Fund (14.8%) and Motor Trades Association of Australia
{5.2%). There is no ultimate cantrolling party of the Company, as defined by I1AS 24 ‘Related parties’.

In accordance with 1AS 24, there are two investor companies which are related parties with the Group, by virtue
of significant shareholding in the Group:

s Freguency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited (‘FICAL’) (48%), a company controlled by
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board. The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board is a professional
investment management organisation in Toronto which invests the assets of the Canada Pension plan.
The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board was incorporated as a federal Crown corporation by an Act
of Parliament in December 1597,

e Macquarie Eurapean Infrastructure Fund Il (‘MEIF 1) (25%), an investment fund managed by the
Macquarie Group. Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il is a wholesale investment fund focusing
on investments in high-quality infrastructure businesses across Europe. Macquarie Group Limited is
listed in Australia (ASX:MQG ADR:MQBKY).

Argiva Board of Directors

The Group’s Board of Directors is comprised of ten Directors representing our shareholder consortium as well
as two members of the Executive Committee. The following Board members were in office during the year and
up to the date of the signing of the annual report and financial statements.

i A—Audit and Risk Committee

G — Governance and Nomination Committee
R — Remuneration Committee

© O - Operational Resilience
{ Bold — Committee Chair

Mike Parton, Chairman
Governance and Nomination Committee Chair, Audit and Risk Committee Chair

Mike brings a wealth of experience from his background in the telecoms and technology
industry. Mike started his career as a Chartered Management Accountant, working for a
number of UK technology companies including 1CL, GEC, STC and Marconi, Mike has held
the roles of CEQ of Marconi plc. Chairman of Damovo Group and Chairman of Tele2 AB.

In addition to his role at Argiva, Mike is currently also Chairman of TDC Group and a trustee
of a young people’s charity, Grit.

A G R
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Shuja Khan, Chief Executive Officer

Shuja was appointed Chief Executive Officer in June 2022. Prior to this, as Argiva’s
Chief Commercial Officer since January 2020, he was responsible for all revenue
generating activities including strategy, regulatory affairs, product development and
customer experience and at the heart of the development of Arqiva’s 10-year
strategic plan, vision and purpose.

He draws on more than 20 years of leadership experience in the technology, media
and communications sector, including the role of Chief Commercial Officer across 24
territories at Cable & Wireless and various leadership roles at both Virgin Media and
liberty Global Europe with a focus on driving growth.

Sean West, Chief Financial Officer

Sean was appointed Chief Financial Officer in September 2019, having joined Argiva
in 2015 as Director of Treasury and Corporate Finance,

Sean has a background in all areas of corporate finance and financing, and as Director
of Treasury and Corporate Finance was responsible for all aspects of the Group’s
capital structure.

Prior to joining Argiva, Sean held senior corporate finance and treasury positions at
the Immediate Capital Group (ICG} and LandSec and brings a wealth of experience
across a range of industries and financial markets.

Appointed by IFM Investors and Motor Trades Association of Australia (joint appointment)

Sally Davis, Director

Remuneration Committee Chair

With over 30 years in the TMT sector Sally has held a number of senior product,
strategy and chief executive roles including being a former Chief Executive of BT
Wholesale, one of four operating divisions of BT. Prior to this, Sally had an early
product management career at Mercury Communications before becoming a
director at NYNEX during its merger with Bell Atlantic to become Verizon.

Sally is also a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Telenor and is Chairman of
Leonard Cheshire.

R

Appointed by Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited

Mike Darcey, Director

Operational Resilience Chair

Mike has over 25 years’ experience in the technology, media and telecommunications
industry with numerous positions held ranging from CEO of News International to
COO of British Sky Broadcasting Group. He has also provided strategic advisory
services to a range of clients in the media industry,

Mike has served or is currently serving on Boards including Dennis Pubiishing (UK) Ltd
{Chairman), M247 (Chairman), Home Retail Group {Senior Independent Director) and
Sky New Zealand (Director). He is also Chairman of British Gymnastics and Senior
Expert Advisor to MTM Consulting.

o G
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Batiste Ogier, Director

Batiste is a Managing Director at CPP Investments. With asset management
responsibilities across CPP Investments” global Infrastructure and Sustainable Energy
Group portfolios. In his role, Batiste is also a Director on the Board of Renewable Power
Capital, a renewable energy investment platform he helped found in 2020 and is a
Nan-Executive Director representative for CPP Investments on the Board at Anglian
Water. Prior to joining CPP Investments, he was a Director in the Infrastructure team
at First State Investments, during which time he was a member of the Supervisory
Board of the Coriance Group and a Board representative for FSI at Anglian Water,

Neil King, Director

Neil runs the European infrastructure business at CPP Investment Board. He has over
twenty-five vears of experience in the infrastructure market, including ten years at 3i
as a founding partner in its infrastructure investment business before joining CPP18 in
2015.

Neil is also a Non-Executive director at Interparking S.A., a European car parking
business which is in CPPiB’s infrastructure investment portfolio.
G R

Peter Adams, Director (alternate)
Peter is a Principal in the Infrastructure group at CPP Investment Board, based in
London.

Prior to joining CPP Investment Board, Peter was with the Boston Consulting Group,
where he advised clients in the U.S., Canada and Europe on strategy and operations.

Appointed by Macquarie

European Infrastructure Fund i

Paul Donovan, Non-Executive Director

Paul served as a Non-Executive director at Argiva from 2018 to 2020. He was re-
appointed to the Board in July 2022 following two years in role as Argiva’s Chief
Executive Officer.

Paul has over 20 years’ experience in senior executive roles across the technology,
media and telecommunications sectors. Between 2014 and 2016 Paul led the
transformation of Europe’s leading cinema operator, Odeon and UCI Cinemas Group,
ahead of its successful sale to AMC Theatres. Paul’s leadership led to innovations in
pricing, digital marketing and guest experience which laid the foundations for
improvements in business performance and public perception.

Prior to this Paul was CEO of Irish Telecoms Group eir. His background also includes
senior executive appointments with a number of significant global organisations
including Vodafone, Cable & Wireless, One20ne and Optus as well as senior
commercial roles at BT, Apple Computers, Coca-Cola and Schweppes Beverages and
Mars Inc.
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Susana Leith-Smith, Director
Susana was appointed to the Board in May 2022.

Susana is a Senior Managing Director in Macguarie Asset Management’s Real Assets
business in EMEA.

She has a wealth of experience in capital markets. Prior to joining Macquarie Asset
Management, she was at Barclays, most recently as the EMEA Head of Leveraged
Finance and managing all transactions in the Telecoms, media and Tech sectors.

Appointed by IFM Investors

Christian Seymour, Director

Christian is Head of Infrastructure at IFM Global Infrastructure Fund, responsible for
the business expansion in Europe and oversight of IFM’s existing European asset
portfolio, of which Codan Trust is an investment vehicle,

A G R 0]

Max Fieguth, Director (alternate)

Max is responsible for asset management of existing investments for IFM Global
infrastructure Fund, as well as supporting the execution of infrastructure
transactions. Prior to joining IFM Investors, Max worked as a Consultant in the
Operations Practice at McKinsey and prior to that at Bechtel on a number of
infrastructure projects. He holds a Masters in Mechanical Engineering from imperial
College Londan, an MBA from INSEAD and is a Chartered Engineer with the Institution
of Mechanical Engineers in the UK.
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Executive Committee

(also includes the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer on pages 46)

Katrina Dick
Chief Legal Officer

n 14

- Joined Argiva in April 2022 with experience in
energy, retail, health construction and
professianal services.

Most recent roles include interim General Counsel
at Anzo and General Counsel for Europe Middle
East and Asia for Vice Media.

Other previous roles as a partner in private
practice, several; roles in the communications,
media and broadcasting sectors and in-house
counsel for AAPT.

Adrian Twyning
Chief of Operations

Joined Argiva in March 2021 with experience in
energy, retail, health construction and
professional services.

Previously Director of Transformation at Dixons
Carphone

Other senior positions at British Gas and Brighton
and Sussex Hospitals NHS Trust

'

Peter Baker
Executive Director of Smart
Utilities Networks

Appointed to Argiva Executive Committee as
interim Director of Smart Utilities Networks in
June 2022, responsible for helping utilities
companies deliver their smart monitoring
strategies.

Previous roles include Head of the Finance,
Insurance and Professional Global markets at
Vodafone Business and leadership roles at CGI,
Cable & Wireless and Colt Technology Services

Vivian Leinster
Chief Simplification Officer

- Appointed to the newly created role in June
2022 from her previous position in the Executive
Committee as Chief People Officer, a role held
since her appointment to Arqiva in June 2020.
Extensive experience in people, organisation and
cultural changes.

Previous positions including Chief People Officer
at MS Amlin and Bupa UK and senior generalist
and specialist HR roles at BT.

Clive White
Chief Technology and
Transformation Officer

- Joined Argiva in April 2018.

- Previous transformation positions at RSA, Lloyds
Banking Group, Accenture, AT&T Global
Network and BSkyB,

Chris Alner
Executive Director of
Media and Broadcast

- Appointed to Argiva Executive Committee as
interim Director Media & Broadcast in June
2022,

- Warking almost exclusively in the media and
entertainment industry for almost two decades
previous roles have included positions at Disney,
MTV and BT Vision.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Arqiva’s approach to risk management is as follows:

- Argiva recognises that the effective management of risk is essential to achieve our business objectives
- Arqgiva adopts an Enterprise Risk Management {"ERM’) approach, which is recognised as ‘best
practice’ for top performing companies
- Managing risk is a core responsibility of management at all levels and is a key component of
governance and compliance
- Arqiva aims to embed risk management principles into the cuiture of the organisation

Enterprise wide management of risk is important for Argiva to meet our corporate objectives and for us to
protect future competitive advantage. The strategic importance of risk management is recegnised by top
performing companies and is an important part of good corporate governance. Arqiva subscribes teo the
Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing our risk profile.

Argiva has adopted 1SO31000 as its Enterprise Risk Management standard and ISO Guide 73 terminology.
Argiva has also adopted the 150 27000 series for Information Security including 1SO/IEC 27005 for Security Risk
Management which operates within the Argiva ERM Framework. Our statements and principles are linked to
our pracess through our risk management framework.
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The Executive Committee has responsibility for maintaining and updating their line of business risk register
which includes utilising the standardised approach to risk assessment and risk monitoring. The Group’s
centralised Internal Audit and Risk function provides training and suppert to ensure risks are captured
effectively and on a timely basis. The Internal Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to
review and consolidate the most significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly
Executive Committee and Audit and Risk Committee meetings. The Executive Committee takes
recommendations for ensuring the risk management framework remains effective going forward.
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Business Management: Senior Executive Management: Audit and Risk function 7 Audit

First defence is the day to day
cantrols and processes put iy place
by rmanagement to identify risks

and devetop mitigatitg actiois

e s

rairltestont Briansctet.
Bad publicity damages
Arqiva’s reputation and
customer and business
partner confidence and its
ability to do business as a
result of:
- A major event or incident
impacting our services;
Untimely delivery on
major projects;
Repeated unexpected
service outages;
Security breach or cyber
attack on networks; or
Major network or
equipment failure or
obsolescence or inability
to configure to comply
with information security
standards

Quartetly review of the corparate
tisk regriter to inciude review of
sk managetment policies, setting
of nsk appetite, monitoting

comptance and repotting of
signihcant risks to the Board of
Duectors,
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Arqiva carefully engages with
our customers to ensure that
project milestones are carefully
managed and management
regularly reviews the progress
of all projects.

Through continuous
measurement of operational
KPls and addressing shortfalls
in performance through
process excellence the risk
around service reliability is
carefully managed.

The Group has in pface a crisis
management ptan for public
relations and external
communications to provide
support should there be any
major events. This is regularly
monitored and reviewed.

Cyber-attacks and trends in this
area are continually monitored.

The Group continues to invest
in our infrastructure and
perform site inspections.

committee:

Independent business assurance
provided over the effectiveness
of the Group's system of internal
controls and processes, arxd
the effectiveness of the sisk
managarment flarmework.
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Management has identified the following risks as the most significant business risks affecting the Group,
presented together with identified mitigating actions.

The Group maintains 15027001
certification regarding information
secwsity and holds periodic reviews
of the security environment and
training to employees.

The Business Continuity Group
continues to meet regularty and will
test and roll out the Disaster
Recovery Plan,

Operational resilience plans have
been enacted following the fire on
the Bilsdale site. Using ather sites,
services were initially redirected
where possible to utilise other
transmitters in the area whilst a
temporary mast was erected with
98% of households service restored.
Argiva has workeg extensively in the
community to support impacted
viewers with pasitive feedback.

There has been continued capital
expenditure in the year to improve
infrastructure. The Group has
continued with our digitai
transformation programme with the
programme largely complete with
new systems launched.
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. “%% Impact of development of
alternative competing
technological solutions
against Argiva solutions
such as a faster move to
non-linear and IP delivered
services away from
broadcast delivered or on
the utilities side wider
competition to our portfolio
= of services 1o the water
sector. These could impact
customer decisions to not
renew contracts or reduce
the scope ol services for

. broadcast or utility
connectivity.

Asset condition is worse
than expected leading to
equipment failure or
obsolescence, service
outages leading to penalties
with customers
requirement for greater
than anticipated capital
expenditure

Qur new products do not
gain traction in the market
due to insufficient
investment in product
development, limited
market opportunity, they do
not meet customer needs
or have an unsustainable
cost base ultimately
impacting growth and
longevity of the business.

Argjiva’s Vision 2031 strategy
seeks to broaden Argiva’s
ambitions and ensure that it
can remain sustainable. It sets
out key pillars of activities
which will drive a focus on
building new business areas
and responding to technology
changes and opportunities in
the market. [t prepares the
business to embrace
partnerships and new
technologies which go beyond
the historic focus on Argiva’s
infrastructure and enable the
business to access new
technologies.

Argiva acts to engage with any
relevant Government or
regulatory process which might
impact Argiva’s business areas
in response to the
development of alternative or
competing technologies.

Arqiva acts to ensure that
operational performance is
retained at a very high-level
and that DTY, radio and DTH
services remain on-air in order
to support their ongoing

use relative to IP or broadband
alternative methods of
delivery.

Qur approach is to take a
balanced but focused approach
on asset quality and
maintenance combining an
asset lifecycle management
approach with an established
strategic risk framework to
prioritise our maintenance
strategy and system owner
reviews of platform health
assessed. Mitigation requiring a
Capex investment is prioritised
within the Capex budget
envelope.

Cperating and capital
expenditure are budgeted to
include investment to support
product develepment.

We maintain strong
relationships with our
customers and engage with
them in the development and
product discovery phase of new
products.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
process or discussions around C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
review to seek to ensure a long-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector. We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek
to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for
broadcast and award it to

mobile or move away from DTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

The strategic priorities of the Group
for the next 10 years put a focus on
the sustainable future of the
business including the development
of solutions for new and emerging
sectors to make the most of aur
existing infrastructure platforms and
expertise,

Site inspections are completed with
a focus on older sites and structural
maintenance plans have been
implemented.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
customers and other stakeholders
such as government and Ofcom or
develagments and opportunities in
the markets.

The launch of Broadcast 2040+ seeks
to safeguard the terrestrial TV and
radio broadcast products that
underpin the core business or Argiva
and secure the longevity of these
contracts.
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Customer demand and
ability to pay reduces due to
decline in advertising
revenues, listening trends,
faster migration to non-
linear and P delivered
services or structurai
changes to the broadcast
market seeing players exit
or consolidate to fewer DTT
channels resulting in lower
cash flows for the Group

Customers attack regulated
pricing, chal'enging long
term contracts and returns
on existing services and
increasing volatility.

Change in government
plans, policy or priorities
could lead to changes in
licencing and long term
contracts for the business
e.g. BBC Licence funding
freeze for 2 years and
potential funding model
changes.

The product development
process is performed in
increments (e.g. 3 months) with
checkpoints after each
increment to ensure market
and technology assumptions
still hotd.

Argiva acts to engage with any
relevant Government or
regulatory process which might
impact Argiva’s business areas
in response to the
development of alternative or
competing technologies.

Argiva's commercial teams
engage with customers around
pricing and ability to pay and
around renewal of services.
Prices vary in response to these
discussions which reflect
market conditions e.g. with
media customers on the
multiplexes Arqgiva operates on
DTT or DAB and through its use
of transponder capacity.
Argiva seeks 1o support the
industry in instances

where changes could
undermine the long-term
demand or ability to pay.

Argiva has long-term contracts
in place with its regulated
business customers - this
provides an inherent level of
protection to this risk.

Argiva works closely with the
Office of the Adjudicator
{OTA) to ensure that the QTA is
happy with how the system is
operating — this includes
regular audits and provision of
any information required and
monthly meetings.

Argiva maintains regular
dialogue with our stakeholders
to ensure the delivery of our
programmes are efficient,
timely and to specification.
Where specification changes
aceur, Argiva provides a
detailed assessment of the
potential costs of the scope
change and seeks an informed
recovery of these costs through
mechanisms in our contracts.

Arqiva’s assets and operations
remain predeminantly in the
UK and therefore our business

Annua! budget includes investment
10 support product development.

Arqiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
inciude any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB inciuding the BBC Charter
process or discussions around C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
review to seek to ensure a fong-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector. We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek
to avoid a Governrment decision

to take spectrum used for
broadcast and award it to

mobile or move away from DTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

During the Covid crisis this included
providing financial support to smalt
radio stations and agreeing
reductions with the large radio
Broups.

Arqiva has successfully agreed scope
and change requests on our smart
energy metering programme with
our customer demonstrating the
customer’s continued focus on
network roll out.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
process or discussions around C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
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information, networks and
systems infrastructure may
be subjected to cyber
security threats leading to a
loss or corruption of data,
penalties and impacting the
operational capacity of
Argiva.

Critical transmission
structures or T
infrastructure supporting
key operational processes
could fail leading to
operational outages or
catastrophic loss of service.

The scale and complexity of
Arqiva’s major programmes
bear an inherent risk of
unforeseen delays through
the supply chain and

has minimal exposure to the
changing relationships with
international markets.

The Group maintains an
150270001 certification
regarding information security,
which includes Cloud Security
Services. Employee training on
information security is
mandatory and guarterly
reviews are undertaken by
external consultants to
examine the robustness of the
security environment.

System menitoring and
scanning is maintained as well
as threat and vulnerability
management.

Argiva ensures data is regularly
backed up and Business
Continuity Plans and Disaster
recovery have been established
for each key site and each
business area including
establishing a network of
agencies to support, regular
site inspections and corrective
and preventative maintenance.
A Business Recovery Working
Group meets regularly to stress
test these plans and continually
review the Group's approach to
disaster recovery and
operational resilience.

Argiva maintains a robust
oversight of the delivery of cur
major programmes. This
includes identifying the key
personnel and resources

review to seek to ensure & long-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector. We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek

to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for

broadcast and award it to

maobile or move away from DTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

The launch of Broadcast 2040+ seeks
to safeguard the terrestrial TV and
radio broadcast products that
underpin the core business ar Argiva
and secure the longevity of these
contracts.

Debt markets have continued to be
monitored for accessibility and open
dialogue maintained with ratings
agencies. Evolving commercial
negotiations are closely monitored.

Argiva has implemented detection
and prevention solutions on
networks.

Argiva has continued to pass our
quarterly security reviews and has
consequently retained 150
certification.

A thorough review has been carried
out of endpoint security user access
to manage who has access to our
systems.

Site inspections are completed with
a focus on older sites and structural
maintenance plans have been
implemented.

Disaster recovery plans have been
enacted following the fire on the
Bilsdale site. Using other sites,
services were initially redirected
where possible to utilise other
transmitters in the area whilst a
temporary mast was erected with
98% of households service restored.
Argiva has worked extensively in the
community to support impacted
viewers with positive feedback.

The Group’s smart metering
communication network in the
North of England and Scotfand now
covers 93.5% of premises. Arqgiva

54



Argiva Group Limited (65254001)

Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

therefore challenges to
delivery. This includes the
delays from the global
computing component
shortage resulting in delays
to supply of water metering
devices and subsequent risk
to custemers on ability to
meet water leakage targets.

The risk that the Group
does not have an alignment
of skifls to support the
future requirements.

The Group does not

have the right culture or
the right people in the right
place at the right time with
the right skills to enable
execution of our

strategic plans

Failure to achieve long term
cost targets impacting the
future sustainability of the
business.

requirad for delivery and
working closely with its
suppliers and customers to
ensure that these requirements
are sufficiently available, A task
force has been established to
co-ordinate globat supply chain
(focus on water and energy
meters) with orders placed in
advance to de-risk supply. We
also seek to use multiple device
manufacturers and meter
providers.

Argiva recognises the
importance of our people and
seeks to make Argiva a
rewarding and enjoyable place
to work with the People and
Culture Initiative roadmap. The
Group operates a competitive
annual bonus plan for ali
employees and a long-term
incentive plan for our
leadership team. Additionally,
the Group operates formal
retention and succession
planning in knowledge-critical
areas of the business,

The changing customer and
competitive landscape as well
as our internal changes to

our strategy, organisational
design, technology and
processes require a different
set of mindsets, behaviours,
capabilities and skills so Argiva
has established and launched
the Culture transformation
programme to drive our people
work.

There is ongoing monitoring
and detailed change control
and regular monitoring of third-
party savings initiatives at both
the Executive Committee and
sharehaolder levels.

A simplification team has been
established to follow on from
the transformation programme
undergone and drive forward
efficiencies in our processes
and operations.

pages 66-67.

continues to support the DCC on the
meter roll out programme.

Argiva has continued to focus on
supporting individuals with
increased support and training for
new managers and emerging talent
and has established a People and
Culture Initiative Roadmap to
support employees and the
development of our culture.,

The cutture transformation
programme was launched in 2022
establishing the 3 culture goals to
support the achievement of our
strategy. .

The strategic priorities of the Group
for the next 10 years put a focus on
the sustainable future of the
business including the development
of solutions for new and emerging
sectors to make the most of gur
existing infrastructure piatforms and
expertise.

The Group has aiso launched in the
year its sustainability roadmap with
goals to mitigate our impacts and
support the environments we
operate in.

Details of the financial risks and details of mitigating factors are set out in the Directors’ report on
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Argiva Group Limited (‘AGL’), registered company number 05254001, {“the Company”} and its
subsidiaries {“the Group”) submit the annual report and audited consolidated financial statements (“the
financial statements”} in respect of the year ended 30 June 2022.

The Company is a holding company with an investment in a group of operating companies, financing companies
and cther holding companies.

The Directors’ report for the Company is set out on page 135.

Wates Corporale Governance Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2022, under The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting} Regulations 2018, Argiva has
continued to apply the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies (as published by
the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) in December 2018 and available on the FRC website).

Companies are able to adopt the Wates principles as an appropriate framework when making a disclosure
regarding corporate governance arrangements. We have adopted the disclosure in our 2022 Annual Report and
Financial Statements and we set out below how the principles have been applied over the past year.

PRINCIPLE ONE - PURPOSE AND LEADERSHIP — An effective board promaotes the purpose of ¢ company, and
ensures that its values, strategy and culfture align with thot purpose.

Purpose/focus and activities during the year.

The focus of the Board and Executive Cormmittee during the year has been to lead Argiva through the continued
uncertain Covid 19 period and respond to the fire at the Bilsdale mast in Yorkshire and to re-set the business’
purpose with a particular emphasis on its core broadcast, media networks and utilities businesses and its
customers. The following items were the key areas of focus during the year:

item Summary e ‘
Headline purpose and The development of a new and updated purpose for Argiva — which is “Enabling a
strategy matters switched-on world to flow” - and also the Vision 2031 work which has brought our

purpose, our vision and our strategy together has been the focus for building a
sustainable future for Argiva. The Board has overseen these matters alongside the
development and adoption of a detailed and robust long-term plan for the business
with appropriate cost and investment assumptions which now underpin the
business.

Capital structure Following the significant repayment of external debts in the prior year, the Board
has continued to monitor the capital structure in place to ensure its suitability for
the business needs. This included the establishment of new facilities post year end,
the proceeds of which will be used to redeem the Groups outstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

Customers Argiva is a smaller and less complex business post the Telecoms divestment, and
the Board has sought to ensure senior engagement with key customers and
stakeholders to strengthen working relationships, share Argiva’s new purpose and
to open up further opportunities for collaboration.

In addition, a significant customer engagement survey was carried out in May 2022.
This provided valuable insights in to Argiva’s performance, what it needs to do to
maintain its position in certain areas, and what it needs to do to prepare for the
future.

Integrated organisation | The Board has overseen the implementation of an integrated organisational design
whose purpose is to more directly and effectively serve our customers and ensure
alignment across our functions with the business’ purpose and direction.
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People & Culture A continued focus has been on ensuring the right levels of skills and experience |
amongst our employees which was important to deliver Argiva’s new purpose in
the new organisational design. The Board has overseen a company-wide
restructuring and redundancy programme which was carried out during the year.
This resulted in a significant number of changes in the employee mix ~ with a
number of individuals leaving the business, others being successful in being
appointed to new roles, and also a significant recruitment exercise to fill vacant
roles.

A senior leadership group continues to benefit from significant investment through
personal and leadership development activities. The leadership group has been
key to certain Culture transformation initiatives over the course of the year and
bringing to fruition a target culture blueprint for the business.

In addition, the implementation of our post-pandemic “Work, Life. Smarter.”
practices continues to be rolled out. The intention is to enable a migration to a
hybrid home/office working model for our people.

Operational The operational performance of the business has been closely monitored by the
performance Board as part of the regular Board meeting agendas. In particular, the impact of
Covid 19 on the performance of the business has been considered on a more
frequent basis, and the relevant operational risks associated with Covid 19
continue to be carefully managed. In addition, the global component shortage has
had an impact on meter supply schedules and this has been frequently considered
by the Board and senior management.

As noted below the operational performance of the business has been impacted
by the Bilsdale fire during the year, and the Board has overseen the Group’s
response as a priority.

Governance A number of appointments/changes have been made to the Group’s executive
committee during the year. In addition to the business’ new integrated
organisational design, a number of improvements and updates have been made to
the business’ internal governance structures and delegated authorities.

Covid 19 The principal aims of the Board in its response to the ongoing Covid 19 pandemic
were 1o ensure the safety of its employees and assist individuals with the evolving
lockdown situations and ‘working from home’ realities, and also maintain
operational capability and delivery to the Group’s customers. In addition, the
Board continued to oversee the Group's engagement with its most affected and
key customers,

Transformation The Board has continued to oversee the programme to upgrade the Group’s IT,
systems and processes to enhance operational capability and bring efficiencies to
the Group’s operations.

Bilsdale transmitter The fire at the Bilsdale transmitter site has had a significant impact on the group’s
fire operations in the year, with the response to the incident being a key area of focus
for the Board. The Board continues to oversee the restoration programme, with
key priorities being supporting the community and returning coverage.

Values and culture

Argiva’s values are embedded throughout the organisation, and adherence to them forms part of employees’
performance reviews and reward structure. Independent surveys of both employee and customer engagement
are undertaken. Engagement with BECTU is described under Principle 6 (Stakeholders) below. The Group’s
Peopie & Culture team monitors ahsenteeism rates and processes are also fn place to encourage and monitor
exit interviews. These form part of matters reported upon to the Operational Resilience Committee, which
reports in to the Board.,
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PRINCIPLE TWO - BOARD COMPOSITION - £ffective board composition requires an effective chair and a balance
of skills, backgrounds, experience and knowledge, with individual directors having sufficient capacity to make o
valuable contribution. The size of a board should be guided by the scale and complexity of the company.

Chair
The Group’s corparate governance structure creates a clear separation between the role of the Chair and that
of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chair (who is independent of the Group’s Shareholders) is a highly experienced business executive having
held many senior executive roles in the technology and telecoms sectors. The Chair has actively encouraged
open debate and discussion in the appropriate forums including main Board meetings which are scheduled to
take place at least six times per year, and also at Board sub-committee meetings {those committees being the
Audit & Risk Committee, Nominations & Governance Committee, Operational Resilience Committee, Capital
Structure Committee and the Remuneration Committee).

Balance and diversity

The Board has deep and relevant experience which has provided invaluable external industry input to assist
more effective decision-making in relation to a number of key matters brought before the Board. The Group
operates in a number of diverse and complex markets which require the Board to have a detailed understanding
of the relevant sector in order to arrive at informed decisions.

Argiva is actively working with Inclusive Employers in relation to diversity and inclusion. The Group recognises
that there is further work to do in this area and continues 1o promote relevant initiatives. Page 37 of the Annual
Report provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees.

Size and structure

The size and structure of the Board remains under periodic review so that it is best organised to meet the needs
and challenges of the Group. In terms of Board size, a balance has been struck between ensuring Shareholders
are adequately represented via their nominated Directors but alse identifying directors with relevant industry
experience to be appointed together with the Group’s CEO and CFO (see pages 45-49 of the Annual Report for
full details of the composition of the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Management). Whilst Frank
Dangeard, Mike Darcey and Sally Davis all originally joined Arqiva as independent non-executive directors, each
of them were also Sharehoider directors representing Macquarie, CPPIB and MTAA/IFM respectively in the year
to 30 June 2022.

We acknowledge that there is a relative lack of diversity on the Board. As part of the new appointments to the
Senior Leadership groups, improvements have been made to broaden diversity and this will continue in the
future. Details of the actions taken in the year towards this are discussed in the Corporate responsibility
statement on page 37 of the annual report.

Effectiveness
The Group undertook an extensive Board effectiveness/evaluation exercise in December 2020 using an external
online platform together with relevant diagnostics, and the results of the exercise were considered and
discussed at a meeting of the Nominations & Governance Committee and the Board of directors in February
2021. The key action recommendations from the exercise included the following:
- Argiva’s sustainability activities should be an increasing priority that form part of the company’s value
creation and strategic objectives.
- Diversity & inclusion and sustainability matters will be a more prominent agenda item at relevant
committee meetings and also at the Board twice a year from FY22 onwards.
- Succession planning and talent review matters will be regular agenda items for the Nominations &
Governance Committee.
- The composition of the Board (and/or the potential for a Board observer or external advisor} would be
kept under review to ensure the right breadth of experience and input at the Board.
- Anincreased focus by the Audit & Risk Committee in appraising strategic risk factors and whistleblowing
matters.
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PRINCIPLE THREE - DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES — A boord should have o clear understanding of its
aecountability and terms of reference, Its policies and procedures should support effective decision-making and
independent challenge.

The Board has a programme of six principal meetings every year, with additional meetings arranged for key
projects, strategic matters or circumstances such as Covid 19 or the fire at the Bilsdale mast in Yorkshire, as may
be required.

Accountability

Decisions which are within the remit of the Board or Shareholders are set out in a Shareholders’ Agreement (as
Board Reserved Matters and Shareholder Reserved Matters). There is a comprehensive Delegation of Authority
policy which sets out the responsibilities that are delegated to the Executive and those decisions which must be
made at Board or Shareholder level. This policy was updated and a revised policy brought to the June 2022
Board meeting for approval. Typically, Board or Shareholder Reserved Matters are raised at regular Board
meetings and written resolutions are obtained where otherwise required.

A Conflicts of Interest paper is maintained and regularly updated with details of Board or Shareholder conflicts.
Any conflicts which may compromise independent decision making wouid be raised by the Company Secretary
at the relevant Board meeting; a Director having a conflict is not entitled to discuss or vote on the relevant
matter, or to count in the quorum.

Committees

Five Board sub-Committees have been instituted. Pages 68-69 of the Annual Report provides an overview and
description of each of the Board sub-Committees comprising: Audit & Risk, Remuneration Committee,
Nominations & Governance and Operational Resilience and Capital Structure Committee. The Board sub-
Committees promote effective decision making and greater accountability and focus in relation to each of the
areas covered by the respective Board sub-Committees.

integrity of information

The Board receives regular reports from the Executive and Senior Management on key matters for which the
Board has responsibility, including strategic projects; comprehensive financial reporting; key customer and
regulatory matters; updates on operational resilience {including physical and cyber security as well as health and
safety and environmental issues); details of major bids and performance of key contracts and market issues
faced by the Group as well as developments in technology and regulation.

The Group uploads papers to a board portal for ease of review and administration. Other than in exceptional
cases papers are submitted in advance and taken as read at Board meetings, allowing any presentations to facus
on highlighting key issues, discussion and dealing with questions. The Chairs of each of the Board Committees
are aware of the importance of their position and during FY22 they have each met {virtually) with key employees
of the Group to build relationships and gain direct access to those dealing with the day to day business of the
Group.

PRINCIPLE FOUR - OPPORTUNITY AND RISK — A Board should promote the long-term sustainable success of the
company by identifying opportunities to create and preserve value, and estahlishing oversight for the
identification and mitigation of risks.

Opportunity

The Group’s Board maintains a focus on how the Group creates and preserves value over the long-term which
is principally achieved through a weil-developed strategic and long-term planning process. The Board keeps its
strategy under review which provides a forum to present future business opportunities. Appropriate
governance mechanisms are in place to ensure that new business opportunities above a certain value are
considered and approved by the Board.

Risk

The Group has a well-developed risk management process in place and continues to use its an online risk
assessment tool, which is used throughout the business (which is described on pages 50 of the Annual report).
The Group's Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to review and consolidate the most
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significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly Executive Committee and Audit
& Risk Committee meetings.

Arqiva’s key operational risks and mitigations are outlined in detail on pages 54-55 of the Annual Report.

Responsibilities
The Group has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing its risk which has been approved
by the Group’s Audit & Risk Committee. This incorporates an internal control framework clearly defining roles
and responsibilities of those involved. Responsibilities include the following:
- The Group’s Executive Committee takes recommendations for ensuring the risk management
framework remains effective going forward;
- Processes are in place for managing the principal risks and uncertainties;
- Theinternal control framework (described on page 50 of the Group's annual report) confirms that there
is a menitoring and review process in place to evaluate risks at both business unit and Board level.

PRINCIPLE FIVE - REMUNERATION - A board should premote executive remuneration structures aligned to the
fong-rerm sustainable success of a company, taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the company.

Remuneration

A consistent approach has been adopted in setting the level and structure of remuneration in relation to each
member of the Executive Committee to secure appropriate and fair levels of remuneration. Benchmarking and
advice from external remuneration consultants is obtained. Remuneration comprises of a number of elements
including base salary, an annual bonus and a long-term incentive plan.

Page 37 of the Group’s annual report provides more detail and explains how remuneration is structured to
recognise high perfoermance reward for achieving targets in line with the Group's sustainable success and values.
This aligns with remuneration arrangements for the remainder of the organisation where every employee’s
remuneration is Made up of a combination of base salary and annual bonus (which, again, is linked to personal
performance and achieving financial targets in line with the Group’s objectives).

Policies

The Group has delegated remuneration matters to the Remuneration Committee {which is a committee of the
Board). The Remuneration Committee operates in accordance with documented terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee is committed to take into account the pay and employment conditions of the Group’s
wider workforce when making recommendations in relation to Executive pay.

The Group’s bonus and long-term incentive plans are documented in writing and reviewed at least annually by
the Remuneration Committee and any payments made operate against documented performance targets.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee considers the company wide annual pay increase on an annual basis.
As part of this process, the Remuneration Committee will assess increases against certain criteria including
taking into account other comparative pay metrics in the industry, discussions held with BECTU, the existing and
future financial capacity of the business, and also aligning with the long term sustainable success of the
company. In the year to 30 June 2022, annual pay negotiations were concluded with BECTU with agreement to
go to a ballot of its members. This occurred in early July 2022 and agreement was reached on the business’
proposals.

The Group has published its full gender pay gap report which is available on the company website at
www.argiva.com. The latest report shows the emphasis and commitment to diversity and inclusion with
improvements in both the mean and median pay gaps for the reporting period. The full report provides details
on why we have a pay gap, the reasons for the increase in the year and the acticns we are taking to address the
IssuUe.
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PRINCIPLE SIX - STAKEHOLDERS ~ A board has a respansibility to oversee meaningful engogement with material
stakeholders, including the workforce, and have regard to that discussion when taking decisions. The board has
a responsibility to foster good stakeholder relationships based on the company’s purpose.

Stakeholders

The Group’s key Stakeholders include its employees; customers; suppliers; debt investors; Shareholders;
pensions trustees; and regulatory and government bodies including Ofcom, DCMS and BEIS.  Senior
Management and the Strategy and Regulatory team work closely with industry and lobby groups and
representatives of the various regulatory bodies, and the Board is regularly briefed informally and formally on
developments. The value of good relationships with local communities, in the context of planning requirements
for exampile, is understood and focus is given to fostering these relationships. The Group provides reports to
investars and creditors as part of its listed debt obligations and conducts regular investor calls which give the
opportunity for debt investors 1o raise questions with the Group. The Group’s procurement operations function
actively undertakes reviews of its supplier base and to enhance its best practice in this field.

Workforce

Argiva communicates to its employees through regular email newsletters, updates over email directly from the
CEQ and local messaging from the Executive Management. The CEO and Executive Management have also
conducted small listening groups in person where possible. However, due to the Covid 19 pandemic, the use of
live broadcasts and presentations streamed online {rather than roadshows) has continued and this has been
well received by employees. This has been done alongside interactive question functionality which enables a
live dialogue with the workforce. Individual video interviews with members of the Executive Management have
also been published on the Argiva intranet. Ouring the Covid 18 pandemic in particular, the Executive
Management team has been the principal conduit through which the Board has been able to assess workforce
considerations and related views for the purposes of their decision making processes.

The Group has active union representation from BECTU, as well as an elected Employee Board, and employee
forums throughout the different functions. The People & Culture team work closely with each of these bodies,
consulting on any proposed changes to terms; policies and processes; as well as seeking feedback on workplace
morale, culture and issues of concern or interest to the workforce. [n the year to 30 June 2022, due to the
company wide restructuring and redundancy programme and return to the office after the Covid 19 lockdown,
the interaction between Argiva, its Employee Board and BECTU has been heightened. A constructive and pro-
active dialogue was swiftly established between the parties and a constructive relationship has been cemented
as a result.

External impacts

The Group’s Corporate Responsibility statement sets out, on pages 35-39 of the Directors’ Report, a description
of the Group’s focus areas used to ensure that it acts responsibly, ethically and safely, from a Corporate;
Community; Employee; and Business perspective. The statement also includes a summary of the Group’s
approach to environmental factors. The Group's Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement
on page 42-43 sets out a description of Argiva’s considerations in this area, including supply chain impacts.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

Intreduction

This report provides an overview of Argiva’s approach to environmental sustainability as well as progress and
successes made during the financial year. It also provides information and data we are required to report under
the Task Force for Climate Change Disclose (TCFD) and the Streamlined Energy Carbon Reporting (SECR).

New Sustainability Framework
This year Argiva launched its sustainability framework. The framework is focused on environmental
sustainability and has three clear goals:
Goal 1 Become a net zero organisation by 2040, with an interim goal of net zero across our scope
1 and 2 emissions by 2031

Goal 2 Positively enhance the environments we operate in
Goal 3 Optimise our use of natural resources
Goal 1 Net Zero

We understand and can currently measure our scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions. As a result we have set a more
aggressive goal to achieve net zero compared to our scope 3 emissions. We have specifically chosen a 2031
deadline to align with Argiva’s ten year business strategy Vision 2031.

We are currently focused on the creation of abatement plans detailing how we will achieve next zero on our
scope 1 and 2 emissions. Currently we can measure enly part of our scope 3 emissions. This year we will
undertake further analysis of our supply chain to measure the current carbon emissions and work with our
suppliers to understand their plans towards net zero.

We are committed this year to supporting the Science Based Target initiative to enable us to measure our
progress towards net zero and provide credibility to our plans.

Goal 2 Environmental Enhancement
Our second goal targets how we can positively enhance the environments we operate in. Initially we will focus
on three areas:
1. tdentifying ways in which we can reduce our energy consumption in our buildings and technical
equipment
2. Argiva own and operate a network of over 1,500 sites around the UK. We have an opportunity to make
decisions about how we manage the land and how we can support and improve biodiversity
3. To provide greater transparency of the individual carbon footprint of cur key products and services to
enable our customers to make informed choices

Goal 3 Resource Optimisation

Our third goal will ensure we can find ways to optimise the use of our natural resources. We will take a holistic
view of how we use our natural resources, both upstream to understand how we minimise waste creation and
downstream to maximise reuse and recycling.
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Sustainability Successes

We are stiil developing our plans to achieve our three goafs but have still had some notabie successes during the

year.

Carhon Emissions Reduction
Carbon Emissions

The table below provides a breakdown of carbon emissions by scope in accordance with the Green House Gas

Protocol.

UK Greenhouse Gas Emissions Yeoar ended Year ended
e e 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Total Energy consumption (kWh) 214,456,587 222,357,758

i Gas 1,772,197 2,055,282

| Electricity 207,524,329 215,261,826

| Transport Fuel 5,414,256 5,040,650
Scope 1 emissions in t/€CO2e | Gas 313 376

i Gas Oil* 129 -

| Fluorinated Gases (HVAC) 618 -

;. Owned transport {fleet) 1,208 1,120

' Total 2,274 1,496
Scope 2 emissions in t/CO2e . Market Based 9,943 639

Location Based 40,131 46,471
Scope 3** emissions in t/C02e Business travel {employee owned 178 129

- and hire vehicles)

" Public Transport and 231 -

! Accommodation

i Water Consumption 21 -

i Waste in Qperations 5 -

- Total 435 129
Total gross emissions in metric ° Market Based 12,946 2,264
tonnes CO2e (Scope 1,2 &3)

. Location Based 43,134 48,096
Intensity Raotio TCOZ2e / £m | Market based method 20.5 3.49
revenue ’

i Location based method 68.30 74.31

Footnotes:

E€missions sources reported are where we have verifiable data to support.
**This is not a complete Scope 3 inventory; we are currently working towards understanding carbon emissions associated with our supply

chain.

*Dees not include emissions associated with pertable diesel generators.

The following standards and guidance are used to both monitor and report on our relevant carbon emission

sources:

e Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard developed by World Resource

Institute (WRI) and World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBSCD) which can be accessed
via https://ghgprotocol.org/standards

Green House Gas Reporting: Conversion factors 2022: full set, used to report on 2022 greenhouse gas
emissions. Access available via https;//www.gov.uk/government/publications/greenhouse-gas-reporting-
conversion-factors-2022

Environmental Reparting Guidelines: Including streamlined energy and carbon reparting guidance March
2019. Access available via https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environmental -reporting-
guidelines-including-mandatory-greenhouse-gas-emissions-reporting-guidance
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Scope 1 Emissions

This year we have trialled several electric vehicles to help gain a better understanding of aperating an effective
electric vehicle business fleet for our field engineers. We have also installed electric car charging points at our
head office and plan to roll gut further charging paints across our other office locations.

Scope 2 Emissions

Arqgiva, like many businesses, has taken the opportunity following the pandemic to review ways of working to
ensure we have the right office environments for all employees. This has resulted in the sale of one office and
consolidation of working areas on larger sites to reduce the need for heating and lighting. These initiatives
delivered annual energy savings of over 165,000 kilowatt hours.

Our existing on-site solar generation across four of our sites continues to provide the national grid with clean
renewable energy. This year our sites generated over 200,000kwh of power, enough to support over 45
domestic homes in the UK using an average energy profile.

Environmental Enhancement

Energy Use Reduction

The old transmitters at our sites Meldrum, Pontop Pike and Rowridge have all undergone technical refreshes
and replaced with new more efficient technology. Transmitters at Washford, Droitwich and Holme Moss have
all been re-engineered, allowing them to operate at a reduce power consumption.

The combined impact of all these technology changes has reduced the overall energy consumptions across the
six sites by over 1750 Megawatts or 339 tonnes of carbon dioxide.

Biodiversity
Argiva is committed to enhance and protect our natural environment. Increasing biodiversity, helps to ensure
ecosystems are resilient to climate change and also helps control climate change through carbon sequestration.

Our site at Morn Hill, part of the South Downs National Park, provides a good example of where proactive
management can both support and enhance biodiversity. The site is managed predominantly using grazing
animals and scrub clearance to create ground conditions suitable for a variety of plant and animal species. This
year over 750 Brown Argus butterflies were recorded, the highest number since monitoring started in 1991. The
site also hosts a stable population of slow worms and commeon lizard, which is a great reflection of the overall
health of the habitat.

Rescurce Minimisation

Our ambition is to embed the principles of a circular economy into all aspects of our business operations to
ensure we are considering both the up and downstream effects of our decision making. This year Argiva recycled
over 100 tonnes of waste, achieving an average recycling rate of 46% across its operations.

Our employee canteens are a great example. We removed all single use plastic and promoted the use of bringing
your own drink and food receptacles.

Climate Change
As well as our commitment to reducing our carbon emission and becoming a net zero organisation we also
consider the impact of climate change en our business operations.

Climate Change Risk Governance

Argiva have implemented a Sustainability Committee consisting of member of ExCo and senior leaders across
the business. The role of the committee is to ensure that Argiva meets its environmental sustainability ambitions
and commitments.

Qutput from this committee is fed into the Operational Resilience Committee, a subcommittee of the Board.
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Climate Risk Management
Argiva have a large portfolio of sites. We have taken a risk-based approach and assessed the resilience of sites
with greater strategic importance for network resilience.

Our assessment has focused primarily on environmental physical risks and opportunities such as:

e Flooding

e Storms and severe weather
s Rising temperature (for example heat stress on equipment)

s Poor Air Quality

e Wildfires

»  Through the risk assessment process the following physical risks have been deemed material and the
business impact and subsequent response has been provided

Risk / Opportunity

Potential impact

Business Response

Wildfires (for
example moorland
fires)

wildfires can cause
significant damage to
Arqgiva assets and extreme
events could cause
catastrophic failure to our
sites and services

Full site audit completed on significant assets to assess
fire risk. Installation of fire breaks and increased
maintenance around perimeter fence and stay wires
to reduce risk of adjacent fires impacting Argiva assets

Increasing external
temperature

Unexpected increasing
external temperatures can
lead to instability in
equipment performance
leading to service failure.

Trial deployment of remote monitoring temperature
and humidity sensors. Operational readiness improved
through system monitoring reducing response times
to potential system failure. Opportunity to reduce
engineer resaurce through ofn-site maonitoring.
Increased productivity and reduction in miles travelled
and associated carbon emissions

Storms and Severe
weather

Extreme weather events
can lead to hazardous
conditions accessing site
to undertake planned or
reactive maintenance.

Operations Centres monitor Meteorological Office
Weather Forecasts daily and issue pro-active alerts,
which are issued to Field Operations Managers to
allow forward planning of engineering resource

As our carbon abatement plans mature and formalise over this forthcoming financial year for our scope 1 and 2
emissions sources 50 will our level of understanding of the risks associated with our transition to a low carbon
economy. This process will identify those risks that are material, allowing them to be considered in the context
of the overall strategic direction of the organisation.
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Directors Report

Financial Risk Management

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group have been outiined previously in this report (see pages 51-
55). As a result of these, as well as the on-going business activities and strategy of the Group, Arqgiva is exposed
to a variety of financial risks that include financing risk, purchase price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest

rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

The key financial risks affecting the Group are set out below, together with a summary of how these risks are
managed.

Y
AL ()]

financing to

plans.

High inflation risk
impact on both operating and
financing cashfiows.

has an adverse

The Group will need to refinance
at least part of our debt as it
matures and may need additional
cover
expenditure and certain other
expenses to support its growth
The Group cannot be
certain that such financing will be
readily available on attractive or
historically comparable terms.

capital

Breach of debt covenants and/or
a downgrade in our rating could
impact the availability of finance
or the comparability of terms.

Energy is a major component of
the Group’s cost base and is
subject to price volatility.

The Group is exposed to credit risk
on customer receivables.

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to adverse impacts to debt as a result of
inflation. Inflation-linked swaps convert fixed or
floating rate interest costs to RPI-finked costs.

A significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts within core TV and radio products are RPI
index linked.

Increase in power costs are in part managed via pass-
through arrangements to customers.

The Group mitigates this risk by the strength of the
stable long-term investment grade capital structure in
place. Our BBB+/BBB (S&P/Fitch) ratings reflect our
strong ability to service and repay debt from our cash
flows over a reascnable period of time, maintaining
debt with a variety of medium- and long-term
maturities, so that over time we do not have a
significant concentration of debt due for refinancing in
any given year, and aiming to refinance debt well in
advance of the maturity date.

With regards to covenants the Group maintains
financial covenant monitoring and modelling, both
retrospectively and prospectively and maintains
regular dialogue with credit ratings agencies.

A proportion of this risk is managed via pass-through
arrangements to customers. The Group’s residual
exposure to fluctuations in the electricity price is
managed by forward purchasing the majority of power
requirements. Key revenue and cost milestones are set
on larger projects to ensure the financial risks of
volatile market pricing are mitigated.

Credit risk is managed through appropriate credit
checking procedures prior to taking on new customers;
and higher risk customers paying in advance of services
being provided. Performance is closely monitored to
ensure agreed service levels are maintained reducing
the level of queried payments and mitigating the risk
of uncoilectible debts.
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The Group is exposed to
counterparty risks in its financing
operations.

Ensuring the Group has sufficient
¢ available funds for working capital
requirements and planned growth

and funding for the Defined
. Benefit pension scheme,

Exposure to interest rate risk due
© to borrowing variable rate bank
debt.

The Group operates from LK sites
and predominantly in the UK
market. While some customer
and supplier contracts are
: denominated in other currencies
: {mainly US Dollars and Euros), the
majority of the Group’s revenues
and costs are sterling based, and
. accordingly exposure to foreign
exchange is limited.

The Group carefully manages the credit risk on liguid
funds and derivative financial instruments with
balances currently spread across a range of major
financial institutions which have satisfactory credit
ratings assigned by international credit ratings
agencies. The levels of credit risk are monitored
through the Group’s on-going risk management
processes, which include a regular review of the credit
ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a
maximum level and term for deposits with any single
counterparty.

The Group maintains cash reserves and access to
undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast
requirements. As at 30 June 2022 the Group had
£251.2m cash available and £66m and £150m undrawn
working capital and liquidity facilities respectively
available to cover senior interest payment if required.
The Group also has a £30.0m facility to support
‘Comms Hub Receivables Purchasing’. The Board
considers the availability and adequacy of working
capital funding requirements in conjunction with
forming its long-term financial plan for the business. A
further £50m working capital facility has been
established post year end which can be drawn as
reguired.

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to rising interest rates. The Group maintains
a hedging policy to manage interest rate risk and to
ensure the certainty of future interest cash flows and
compliance with debt covenants. The derivative
contracts held are fixed rate hedging, split between
interest rates and inflation-linked swaps, The Group
has, however, elected not to apply hedge accounting
meaning gains and losses are recognised through the
income statement as fair values fluctuate (2022:
£76.1m Joss; 2021: £11.1m loss). Interest rate swaps
convert variable rate interest costs to fixed rate
interest costs while inflation-linked swaps convert
fixed or floating rate interest costs to RPl-linked costs,
which fluctuate in line with the RPI index as do a
significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts.

Management regularly monitors the impact of foreign
exchange risks and assess the need to put any
mitigating financial instruments in ptace. This risk is not
currently considered to be material and no currency
financial instruments are held at 30 June 2022,
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Internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors review the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control, including risk
management systems and financial and operational controls (see page 50).

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee includes representation from the Board of Directors. Mike Parton will chair Audit
& Risk Committee meetings (or another committee member may be appointed to chair the meetings as
required).

The Committee has responsibilities of oversight of risk management procedures, monitoring compliance and
regulatory issues (including whistleblowing arrangements} and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and internal audit function.

The Committee is authorised to seek any infoermation it requires from any employee of the Company in order to
perform its duties, and to obtain any external legal or other professional counsel it requires.

Meetings of the Committee are attended, at the invitation of the Chairman of the Committee, by the external
auditors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and representatives from the business as
required.

Internal Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the work undertaken by the Group’s internal audit
function, assessing the adequacy of the function’s resource and the scope of its procedures. The internal audit
function agrees its annual audit plan with the Audit and Risk Committee and regularly reports its findings and
recommendations. The Group’s internal audit plan incorporates an annual rolling review of business activities
and incorporates both financial and non-financial controls and procedures.

External Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Group’s external auditor. The Committee makes an assessment of the
auditors’ independence and objectivity taking inte account the relationship with the auditors as a whole,
including the provision of any non-audit services.

PwC were re-appointed as external auditor in 2016 following a competitive tender process.

The auditors have provided certain non-audit services, principally in relation to non-audit assurance. The Audit
and Risk Committee considers the acceptability of all non-audit services with the auditors in advance of
commencement of work to confirm acceptability and ensures that appropriate safeguards of audit
independence are established and applied, such as partner rotation.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, chaired by Sally Davis, is established to make recommendations to the Board
regarding executive remunerations, including pension rights and to recommend and menitor the level and
structure of remuneration for each member of the Executive Committee. Additional oversight is extended to
setting and monitoring reward and incentive policies, including the bonus schemes, and reviewing and making
recommendations in relation to wider reward policies.
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Governance and Nomination Committee

The Governance and Nomination Committee, chaired by Mike Parton, is established to give oversight to the size,
structure and composition (including skills, experience, independence, knowledge and diversity) of the Board to
ensure that the continued leadership ability is sufficient to allow the business to compete effectively in the
market. This also includes oversight of the succession planning for directors (and other senior executives where
appropriate).

Operational Resilience Committee

The Operational Resilience Committee, chaired by Mike Darcey, has oversight of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the operational resilience strategies and procedures of the Group (including principles, policies and practices
adopted in complying with all statutory, and sub-statutory, standards and regulatory requirements in respect of
safety, health and environment (‘SHE’) matters affecting the activities of the Group). This includes consideration
and risk management of areas of significant and individual cyber security, physical security, business continuity
and SHE risk.

Equal Opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective
aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every
effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues, and the appropriate training is
arranged. It is the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of a disabled person,
should, as far as possible, be identical to that of a person who does not have a disability. Further information on
how Argiva supports its employees can be found on page 36.

Political Donations

No political donations were made during the year {2021: none).

Charitable donations

The Group has made £0.1m {2021: £0.1m) of charitable donations in the year.
Research and development

The Group perfarms research and development intc new products and technology, the costs of which are
capitalised where they meet the criteria for capitalisation in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
research costs expensed in the year were £1.5m (2021: £2.0m). In addition, the Group carries out research and
development as part of its contract bid processes and these costs are expensed as part of the bid costs unless
the development expenditure can be capitalised. The bid costs expensed during the year total £1.4m (2021:
£1.3m).

Development costs incurred as part of capital expenditure projects, which support customers contracts, are
included with the total project spend within property, plant and equipment. The Group’s capital expenditure in
the year was £%8.5m (2021: £104.0m) and includes capitalised labour of £26.1m (2021: £34.4m), Other
development costs are capitalised within intangible assets. In the year, new development costs capitalised total
£1.8m (2021: £0.3m) with amortisation of £2.5m (2021: £1.6m} charged against such capitalised development
costs.

Overseas branches

The Group has trading branches based in the Isle of Man, the Channel Islands and France.

69




Arqiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Events after the reporting date

On 19 August 2022, the Group signed a commitment for a £450m term facility and a £50m Working Capital
Facility both with an expected maturity date of 2028. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a margin
over SONIA. Argiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited (a subsidiary of the Group) is the borrower of this
arrangement. The proceeds of this facility when drawn will be used to redeem the Groups outstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

The maturity of Shareholder Loan notes have also been extended since year end and now have maturity dates
ranging from March 2029 to March 2030.

On 21 September 20232, a second interim stage payment of £10.0m was received from the insurers in relation to
the Bilsdale fire. At 30 June 2022, this represented a contingent asset and has therefore not been recognised in
the income statement,

On 23 September 2022, it was announced that the corporation tax rate change from 19% to 25% with effect
from 1 April 2023 was to be cancelled. For further detail see notes 12 and 19 of the financial statements.

Dividends and transfers to reserves

Now Digital (East Midlands), a Group company which includes a non-controlling interest, declared a dividend in
the year of £nil (2021: £0.4m).

The Directors’ of the Group have not recommended a dividend in the year (2021: nil}.
The consolidated loss for the year of £634.6m (2021: restated® profit of £480.5m) was transferred to reserves.
Going Concern

The Strategic report includes information on the structure of the business, the business environment, financial
review for the year and uncertainties facing the Group. Notes 20, 23 and 25 of the consolidated financial
statements include information on the Group's cash, borrowings and derivative respectively; and financtal risk
management information presented within this report.

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios. The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally
generated cash flows, will continue to provide sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations,
including our contractual and commercial commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing as
they fall due. This is further supported by the new debt facilities established post year end, see note 31 for
further information. For this reason, the Directors are confident that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the geing concern
basis of accounting in preparing this financial information.

Future Developments

The Group plans to continue in its commercial and operational business in accordance with its strategy. Further
detail is contained within the Strategic report on page 19.

% The prior year profit has been restated to reflect adjustments to the tax credits recognised. See note 12 to
the financial statements for detail.
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Ownership and Directors

A description of the ownership of the Group and the Board of Directors holding office during the year and up to
the date of signing of the financial statements can be found on page 45.

At 30 June 2022, Mike Parton was the Group’s independent Chairman and Katrina Dick was the Company
Secretary. Katrina Dick was appointed to this role on 6 April 2022, This role was previously held by Jeremy Mavor
whao resigned on this date.

For details on the background of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee please refer to page 45.
Details of the statutory directors of the Company are shown on page 135.
Directors Indemnities

The Company has provided an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which is a qualifying third-
party indemnity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force during the full financial
year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the Independent Auditors
The Directors of the Group in office at the date of approval of this report confirm that:

- So far as the Directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Auditors are
unaware; and

- Each Director has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that
information.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed for the
Group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been
followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group’s and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board

N —

Mike Parton

Director
26 September 2022
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Arqiva Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinton:

e Argiva Group Limited's Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) give
a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the Group's loss
and the Group's cash flows for the year then ended;

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards;

s the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law); and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements {the “Annual
Report”), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2022; the
Consolidated income statement, Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, Consolidated cash flow statement and
Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs {UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our apinian.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Our audit approach

Overview

Audit scope

« For the Group Financial Statements we performed an audit of the complete financial information of three entities and
the consolidation. We also conducted audit procedures on specific line items for 12 entities to ensure sufficient
coverage. The audit work performed achieved coverage of 95% of revenue and 99% of adjusted EBITDA (consisting
of continuing profit before tax, finance income, finance costs, other gains and losses and exceptional income and
expenses). All entities have been audited by the Group audit team and hence no component auditor has been involved
in the audit of the Consclidated financial statements

Key audit matters

» Carrying value of goodwill (Group)

+ Recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets (Group)

= Valuation of defined benefit pension scheme obligation (Group)
+ Recoverability of intercompany receivable balances (Parent)

Materiality

s Overall Group materiality. £11,800,000 based on approximately 3.5% of Adjusted EBITDA.
+ Overall Company materiality; £200,000 based on approximately 2% of Net Assets.
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* Performance materiality: £8,900,000 (Group} and £150,000 (Company).

The scope of cur audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors' professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most sighificant assessed risks of material misstaterment
{whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and
any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therean, and we do niot provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Recaverability of intercompany receivable balances (Parent) is a new key audit matter this year. Valuation of financial
instruments and Covid-19 impacts, which were key audit matters last year, are no longer included because of the limited
ongoing impact of Covid-19 on the Group and Caompany, and the valuation of financial instruments being less complex
and less significant in the current year. Otherwise, the key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Canrying value of goodwill (Group)

IAS 36 'Impairment of assets’ requires management to We obtained an understanding of the allocation of goodwill
perform annual impairment assessments in respect of to cash generating units in management's impairment
goodwill. The Group's goodwill is material, amounting to model and assessed its approprigteness.

£1,457.4m (£1,339.6m allocated to 'Media Distribution'
and £117.8m allocated to 'Smart Utilities Networks"), and
the impairment assessments performed over goodwill
include a number of assumptions which are subject to
management judgement and estimates. Our elevated
audit risk relates predominantly to the Smarnt Utilities
Network CGU, given the lower headroom on this CGU
and the greater uncertainty around the future growth of
the utilities sector.

We tested the impairment model, assessing its
mathematical accuracy, the accuracy of inputs to the mode!
and the reasonableness of the assumptions applied by
management in assessing the recoverable amount for each
cash generating unit. These included the assumptions for
revenue and cost growth, capital expenditure and the
discount rate used.

We tested the cash flows and agreed these to Board
approvals and performed a look back test to assess
accuracy of forecasting.

Refer to page 94 and page 108 (note 4 - critical
accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty =impairment of goodwill and note 14 =
goodwilt)

We inveolved our PwC valuations experts to evaluate the
discount rate and terminal growth rate used to calculate the
present value of the cash flows and confirmed these were
calculated using an acceptable methodology and concluded
that the discount rate and terminai growth rate is materially
in line with what we weould expect.

We reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis and
performed our own sensitivity analysis considering various
reasonably possible scenarios impacting key assumptions,
including forecast cash flows, terminal growth rate and
discount rates. Based on this testing, we considered
whether the carrying value of the goodwill balances were
adequately supported by the value-in-use impairment
model prepared by management, and found there to be
sufficient headroom.

Recognion and recoverabilily of deferred lax assels
(Growp)

Following the introduction of legislation in previous years We obtained management's detailed workings which set
which restricts interest deductions, the Group recognised | out the various elements of the deferred tax asset, including

a significant deferred tax asset at that time. At year end, support for judgements taken on recognition. The
a deferred tax asset of £233.8m is capitalised on the appropriateness of this assessment was in conjunction with
balance sheet with a further £478.4m of potential our taxation specialists.

deferred tax assets not recognised on the basis that they

are not considered to be recoverable. We challenged management's assumptions in relation to

tax losses and the evidence available to support the
recognition of losses arising in various entities, including
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There is judgement involved in the determination of the
elements of the deferred tax asset to recognise and the
value of that recognition, including the extent to which
there are foreseeable taxable profits to support its
recoverability.

Refer to page 94 and page 114 (note 4 - critical
accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty — deferred tax and note 19 —deferred tax)

consideration of whether specific steps are required in
order to enable the value of the losses to be realised and
the stage of Argiva's steps towards recovery.

We obtained management's forecast of taxable profits and
agreed those to the approved long term plan, and also
agreed the consistency of these forecasts with those
utilised in management’s goodwill impairment assessment.
The calculations of the forecast taxable profits were
reviewed, and an analysis of the sensitivity of the utilisation
horizon to variations in EBITDA was considered.

We further assessed the potential deferred tax assets not
recognised and concluded that only assets that are
expected to be available to the Group have been
recognised and judgement relating to these unrecognised
assets will remain under review and reassessed as the
Group's circumstances and relevant tax legislation evolves.
We have reviewed the disclosure over the significant
judgement in the financial statements and we concur with
the disclosures made.

As a result of our work performed no material errors were
noted in respect of the amount of deferred tax asset
recognised in the financial statements at 30 June 2022.

Valuatian of defined benefit pension scheme ohhgaiion
{Group}

The Group operates one defined benefit plan which has a
surplus at the year end of £61.0m (2021: £47.1m). The
valuation of the defined benefit plan obligation {£184.6m,
2021: £248.8m) includes a high level of estimation
uncertainty, comprising several different key
assumptions. There is a risk that an error within one or a
combination of those assumptions could lead to a
material misstatement in the financial statements.

Refer to page 95 and 129 (note 4 - critical accounting
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty —
Actuarial assumptions used to determine the carrying
amount of the Group’s defined benefit plan liabilities and
note 29 — retirement benefits)

With the support of our PwC actuarial specialists we
assessed the appropriateness of key assumptions used to
derive the pension benefit obligation, including relativity to
our acceptable ranges based on market data, and
concluded that all of the key assumptions are appropriate.

We also tested the key inputs used by management’s
expert to supporting evidence with no exceptions noted. We
reviewed the actuarial report and enquired of
rmanagement's actuarial expert. We understood how
management addresses the risk of the actuary’s modelling
accuracy and the controls in place for the modetiing, and
performed our own data validation checks. We also
performed risk assessment analytical procedures an both
the financial and demographic assumptions.

As a result of our work performed no material errors were
noted in respect of the pension benefit obligation
recegnised in the financial statements at 30 June 2022.

Recoverability of intercompany receivable balances
{Parenf)

The Company has balances receivable from a Group
company amounting to £4.4m (2021: £4.0m) as at 30
June 2022. This is considered a key audit matter as there
is consideration in the assessment of the recoverability of
receivables.

Refer to page 144 {note 4 - Other receivables)

We evaluated management's assessment of the
recoverability of intercompany receivables, including
compliance with the requirements of IFRS 9 and expected
credit loss methodology, and reviewed and independently
tested an assessment of the ability of other Group
campanies to repay by comparing the receivable to net
assets of the counterparties.

As the net asset values did not support the recoverability of
the intercompany receivables, we considered the assets
held and confirmed that by taking into account the liquidity
of assets held that the intercompany receivables are
considered to be recoverable.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and

controls, and the industry in which they operate.
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We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate. Arqiva Group Limited's business is carried out through a single principal
trading subsidiary, aligned into two customer-facing business units; Media Distribution and Smart Utilities Networks,
supported by the Group's Operations, Technology and Transformation and Corporate functions. In addition, there are a
number of entities which provide financing to the operations.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect
of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financiat statements - Group Financial statements - Company
Overalf £11,800,000. £200,000.
materiality
How we Based on approximately 3.5% of Adjusted Based on approximately 2% of Net Assets
determiried it EBITDA
Ratignale for Based on our professional judgement, Based on our professional jJudgement, net assets is an
benchmark adjusted EBITDA is an appropriate appropriate measure to assess the performance of the
applied adjusted measure to assess the Company and is a generally accepted auditing
performance of the Group, which focuses benchmark. A rule of thumb of approximately 2% is
on the underlying trading results. appropriate given that the entity itself is not a PIE.

For each compenent in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components was between £0.01m and £11.2m. Certain components
were audited to a local statutory audit materiaiity that was also fess than our overall Group materiaiity.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the
scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures,
for example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality, amounting te
£8,900,000 for the Group financial statements and £150,000 for the Company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our
normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with those charged with govemance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above £590,000 {Group audit} and £10,000 (Company audit) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our
view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because naot all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the Group's
and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
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in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or materiai
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us alsc to report certain
apinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 30 June 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directers’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of nan-compliance with laws
and regulations related to the Communications Act 2003 and UK Tax law, and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that
have a directimpact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management's incentives
and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to management’'s manipulation of key performance measures such as
adjusted EBITDA {consisting of continuing profit before tax, finance income, finance costs, other gains and losses and
exceptional income and expenses). We have determined adjusted EBITDA is the key metric for stakehaolders, such as the
Group's ultimate shareholders and lenders. It is considered that the most likely risk of management manipulation of this
metric is through the posting of manual journals and management bias in significant accounting judgements and estimates.
Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

+ Discussions with management and Directors, including consideration of known eor suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

+ Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management and considering risk of management bias in their
significant accounting judgements and estimates as disclosed in Note 4 of the financial statements;

+ Identifying and testing unexpected journal entries, including any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations or journals posted by unexpected users;

+ Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
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+« Reviewing financial statement disclosures made by management in their significant accounting estimates and
judgements as disclosed in Note 4 of the financial statements; and
* As required by ISA 240, incorporating an element of unpredictability into our audit testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above, We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from errar, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through coliusion.

QOur audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of iterns for testing, rather than testing
complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is
selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report. In our engagement letter, we
also agreed to describe our audit approach, including communicating key audit matters.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do niot, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume respensibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

B Contle

Nigel Comello (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

26 September 2022
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Consolidated income statement
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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Consolidated statement of financial position

30 June 2022

fm

30 June 2021

{Restated)’

£m

Non-current assets

Goudwill

Cther intangible aswets
Praperty, plant and squamen

Defered tox

Retirernent benefis

tntarest it

venvative Laangd mstraments

Current assets

Trade zind nther roreivaiices

Contract 2

Cach anc cash eguivaents

Totaf assets

Currenat Kabilities

Trade aivl gther payahles
Lorparation Lax

Contract aahiites
Eorrowinigs

Provision:,

Net current lahilities

Non-current liabiities

Cortract fabylitieg

Horrowings

Seevative Tnancial Instrura2ntg

FLOVISInNS

Total liahilities

Neat liabifities

The Consubidal

Pricr year igures have Lbeen -eot

L OCialE =g |0 yertyres

taternenl of {ingnce! oost

weod nr the next pape

3,548.5

IR

nl 2

13

(2,558.0)

w

'

%]

]

[sal

{3714

{27774}

(2az

{8,578.2)

(2,125.3)

(355.%)
(2,546.0)

(4,621.6)

(7,773.0)

{7,179.6}

4,224.5)

{3,594.7)

aod b, tetles Do ady-tinent LG the 13y charpe, @y walias the assonates tax balonces Tee nore 12 for detedl

Arglva Group Uimied fcompany reg 05254001) 82



Ay rt and Consalidated Financial Staternents 2022

Consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

30 June 2022 30 Jure 2021
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1 General information, authorisation of financial statements and Statement of
Compliance

Internationsl Accounting Standards
arid with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
companies reporting under those
standards.

fune 2022 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (ogether the
"Group’)

Argiva Groyup Limited ('AGL) ('the
Company’}is a private company
Emited by shares and incorporated in
England, in the United Kingdom
UK’} under the Companies Act 2006
under reégistration number
05254001, The address of the

The nature of the Group’s operations
anrd its prmcipal activities are set out

in the Stratepic Report con pages 16 e Comipany has elected to prepare

regisiered office is Lrawley Court, o 18. its financial statements in
Winchester, Hampshire, England aoccordance with FRS 101 Reduced
5021 2CA. Statement of Compliance Disciosure Framework and with the

requirements of the Companies Act
2006. These are presented on pages
135510 1455.

These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in
accordance with UK -adopted

These consclidated financial
statements for the year ended 30

2 Adoption of new and revised Standards

New and revised Standards
The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current year. Their adoption
has not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

Amendmcits to RS 9, IAS 30 and IFRS 7 intarest Rate Benchinal

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRS Standards that have heen issued hut are not yet effective:

FRS 17 {Including the June 2020 insurance Contracts

amendments tc IFRS 17)

Amendmants to FRS 10 and 1AS 28

Amendments to 1AS 1
Amendments to FRS 3
Amendiments to 1AS 16

Amendments to 1AS 37

Anndal mproverents to RS Standards
2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statemente 2

Amendments 1o [AS &

Arvendments 1o 1AS 12

Sale ar Caontiibution of Assets bebtween an Investor and its
Assaciate or joint Venture
Classification of Labilities as Current or Non current

Reference 1o the Conceptual Framewark

Froperty, Plant and Equipment —Proceeds betore intended
Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fuifilhing a Contiact
Amendiments to IFRS § First-iime Adoption of international
Financial Reporting Standards, iFRS 9 Finandial Instiuments,
iFRS 16 Leases, and 1AS 41 Agriculture

Disclosine of Accounting Polinies

Cefinition of Accounting Estimates
Neterred Tax relatocd to Assets and Liabiities avsing hom 3

single Transaction
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3 Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These coneolideted finandal
statements have heen prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted
international Accounting Standards
and with the reguirements of the
Companies Act 2006 ag applicable to
comgparies reporting under those
standards.

The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the valuation of financial
instrurments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical
cost is generally hased on the fajr
value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. The
principal accounting policies adopted
are ser out helow. These policies
have been spplied consistentiy
acrnss the comparative financial
periods inciuded within these
inancial statements.

The Company’s finandial statements
have been prepared under FRS 101
and in accordance with the
Cornpanies Act 2006 and are
inciuded in this report -~ see

¢ page

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated finandial
tatemnents incorporate the finas
staternents of the Company and

entities controlied by the Company

(s subsidiaries, topether ‘the

Group’) made up to 30 June 2022

Control s achieved when the
Company!

L] has demonstrabie power over
the retevant activities of the
investes;

* s exposed, or hasrights,
variable return from its
involvement with the invectes,;

arc
*  has the ability to use its power

returns,

tg sffect it

{company reg 05254001

The Company reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed
above.

Cansalidation of a subsidiary hegins
when the Campany obtains control
gver the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the
consolideted income statement from
the date the Campany gains conurol
untii the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsiciary

intra-groeup profits have been
eliminated. Undertakings, other than
suhsidiary undertakings, in which the
Group has ar mvestment
representing not fess than 20% of the
voting rights and over which it exerts
significant influence are treated as
associated undertakings. Where the
Group has an imvestment that has
joint cantrol, rhis is treated as s joint
vanture. Associates and joint ventures
are sLoounted for using the equity
methoed of accounting in accordance
with 1AS 28 ‘Investments in Assaciates
and joint Ventures”,

Going concern

Histaricaily the Group has reperted
insses and has & significant net
hability Statement of
Financial Position, taused primarily
by debt and the refated financing
casts. However, the Group has
iontinyed 1o generate strong
operating cashilows

nosition on the §

The Group meet
workeg capial

reguirements through the net cash
generated from our operations. The
Grouwp performs a3 review of going
concern through & review of

ng cash fiow

forecasting i
torecasts and cons:dering the
requirements of canital expenditure
and deht repavmants and incuding

any severe but plausibie scenarios.

The Group Has sufficent financial
resources which, together with
internally generated cash flows, will
continue to provide sufficient
sources of liquidity to fund aur
current operations, including our
ontractual and commercial
commitments both in terms of
capital progranines and financing as
they fall due, For this reason, the
Oirectors are contfident that the
Group hes adequate resources to
continue in operational existenre for
the foreseeable future. Thus, the
Group cantinues to adapt the going
concern hasis of accounting in

prepermg this financiat information.

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the gross inflow
of economic benetit for seryice:
provided ufilising Argiva’s
communications infrastructure,
completion of significant engineering
projects and the sale of
communications equipment.
RHevenue is stated net of value added
tax. Reverue is measured at the faw
value of the consideration received
oF receivable.

Gnomception of a rontract,
performance obligations are
identified fur each of the distinct
goods or services that have been
promised to he provided fo the

customer. The consideration
specitied inthe contract is allocated
to each performance ohligation
wentified based on their relative
standalone selling prices and is
recognised gs revernue as they are
fied, Determining the

satis
standalone sefling price ofien
reqguires judgement and may be
derived from regulated prices, st
prices, a cost-plus derived price, or
the price of simitar products when
sold on 3 standalone basis by Argiva
or a campetitor. In some (ases it may
be appropriate 1o use the contract
price when this represents 3 bespoke
nrice that would be the same for 2

3 CUSTOIMEr In & si

Crrdurnstance.
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Cash received or invoices raised in
advance are taken to deferred
income and recognised as contract
labilities, and subsequentiy
recopnised as revenue when the
services are provided, Where
consideration received in advance is
discounted, reflecting a significant
financing component, it is reflected
within revenue and interest payahie
and simitar charges on @ pross basis

Revenue recognised in advance of
cash being received gr an invoice
being raised is recognisad as accrued
income within contract assets and
subseqguently reclassified to
receivables when the right to
consideration is unconditional.
lnvoices are issued in ling with
contract terms,

The Group recopnises deferred
incorme within contract liabilities
which relates to cash received in
relation to future services for TSAs
and the utilisation of broadcast sites
tor teleconimunications equipment
as a result of the sale of the
Telecoms husiness, The contract
liability associated with the
utilisation of broadcast sites and
equipment is expected to be
refeased over the next 34 years,

The Group does not have any
material ohlipations in respect of
returns, refunde or warranties,

The following surnmarises the
performance ohligations we have
identified, and provides information
an the timing of when they are
satisfied and the refated revenue
recognition policy. The revenue
expected 1o be recognised in future
neriods for contracts in piace at 30
June 2022 that conrain unsatisfied
performance obligations is included
innote 5.

Rendering of services

Performance obbgations under
contracts for the rendering of
services, which includes network
access rights and licence ownership,
are identified tor each distinet
service of deliverable for which the

custoimer has coniracted and are
considered 1o he satisfied over the
time period that the services o
deliverables are delivered. Revernue
s recognised over tme in line with
the service provision over the
contractual period and appropriately
reflects the pattern by which the
perforinance obligation is satisfied.
Such revenues inciude televisicn and
radio transmission servicss, media
services, and machine-to-machine
connectivity.

For jong-term services contracts
reverue is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the

contract, However, if the
performance patlern is other than
straight line, revenue is recognised as
services are provided, usually on an
output or network coverage basis.
Such reverues include Siman
metering network build and service
Gperaticn.

Pre-contract costs relate to the
Smart Utilities Network contracts
and are incurred in the initial set up
phase and deferred. These costs are
then recognised in the income
wratement on a straight-line basis
over the remaining contractual term,
urtless the patiern of service delivery
indicates a different profile is
appropriate These costs are directly
artributable to specific contracts,
relate to future activity, will generate
future economic benetits and are
assessed for recoverability en a
regular basis. Costs related to
delivering services under long-term
contractual arrangements are
experced asincurred.

The Group holds contracts which
include a customer’s nght to receive
credits in the event of service loss.
Provisions for service credits are
recognised through a reduction in
revenue which reflects the expected
vaiue of any such service credits. The
Group only recognises revenue to
the extent that it is highly prohable
that there wil net be 2 material
inthe future,

reversal

Delivery of engineering projects

Argiva provides support to its
custoiners by undertzking various
engineering orojects, Contracts for
the delivery of engineering projects
sre split into specific performance
chiigations. Performance obligations
relating to services are satisfled over
the time period that services are
delivered, performance obligations
relating to the provision of assels are
satisfied at the point in time that
control passes 1o the customer,
Revenue from such projects, which

are long-term (greater than 12
months) contractugl arrangemn
is recognised hased on satisfaction of
the identified performarnice
obligations using the percentage of
completion method. The stage of
completion s based on the portion
of costs incurred as a percentage of
total costs. Profit is recognised, if the
final gutcome can be assessed with
reasonable certainty, by including
reverive and related costs inthe
income statement as contract

] o
nts,

activity progresses.

Adoss on a fixed price contract is
recognised immediately when it
becomes probable that the contract
cost will exceed the total contract
revenLe.

Sule of commurications equipmernt
Performance obligations from the
sale of communications equipment
provided as part of customer
contracts are satisfied and revenue is
recognised at the point in time that
cortrol passes to the cusiomer,
which is typically upon delivery and
accaptarice by the customer, Insome
cases, payment is not received in full
at the time of the sale, and
contract asset is recognised for the
amount due from the customer that
will be recovered over the contract
pericd. Revenue 1o be recognised it
caleutated by reference to the
refative standalone selting price of
the equipment.

Business comhbinations, including
goodwill

Acguisitions of subsidiaries and
Businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The

consideration transterred in @

Argiva Group Umited {company reg 05254001) 2g
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business combination s measured at
fair value, which is caiculated as the
surn of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferreq by th
Group, Habilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interest
issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acguiree, Acguisition-
retated costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. Goodwel is
measured as the sum of the
conzideration transferred, the
amount of any non-contrelling

imerests in the acguiree, and the Tair
value of the acguirar's previgusly
held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) fess the net of the
acguisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the
Habilities assumed. Goadwill is not
arnortised but is reviewed for
irpainment at feast annually or
where there is indication of
impairment. On disposal of &
‘uo‘(dié"y,t e attributabie amount
of goodwill is included inthe

determination of the profit or fpss on
disposal.

intangible assets
intangibie assets are initis
recognised atcost and are

subsegquently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impainment losses.,
Amaortication is charged to the
income statement on a straight-tine
hasis over the estimated usetu} ife of
the asset, on the following bases:

Asset Description

Estimated Useful Life

Licences
Development costs
Access rights
tware

xpenditure on researsh activivies is
recognised as an expense N the
period in which it s incurred.

An internally-generated mrangibie

asset arising from development {or

from the development phase of an

internal project) is recognised if, and

only i, all of the following conditions

monstrated:

¢ thetechmical feasibility of
cornpleting the intangible asset
50 that it will be available for
UsE O sale;

= theintention to complete the

tang ble asset and use or rell

have heen de

iy 1o use or sell the

aile assel;

¢ howtheintangible asset will
generate probable future
eLOnRomic Heneﬂfs;

ity of adequate

af, financial, and other
resOurCes to compiete tha
developmeant and to
the intangible asset; and

. the abifity to measture relab

use or seil

he exp

nditure attnbutabieto
the intangble asset during it
deveinpment,

Length of the ticence period {no more than 20 years)

10 years

Length of the agreement (na more than 20 years)

_olbyears

meurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the
recoghition critena listed
where no internally generated
intangible asset ¢3n be recognised,

shove,

developrment expenditure is
recognised in the income statement
inthe period i wihich it g incurred,

Subzequent to imtial recognition
internally-generated intangible
assets are reported &t cast less
accurmulated amortisation and
accurnulated impairment losses, o5
5 g5 intangibie assels
that are acquired separately.

the same ba

An intangible ascet s derecognised
on dispasal, or when ne future
econcrm( henefits are expected from
wse or disposal. Gains or Insses
arising from de recognition of an

in angsuie as&ei‘, measured as the

et disposal
818 ofepds and the carrying amount of
the assel, are recogni profit or
i0ss when the asset is derecognised.

sed in

Property, plant and equipment
P?OH!-,’V{V, p fant ar d equipment are

which includes coats u:recﬂy
i-*vg the a<=r-“fs

acquisition, less accumulated
depreciation and any provision for
impairrnent,

Assets inthe course of construction
for production, supply ar
administrative purposes,
at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. The cost of self
ronstructed assets includes the cost
of rmateriats and dirert iabour.
Labour costs are capitatised within
the cost of an asset to the extent
that they are directly attributable to
the construction of the asset. The
value capitalised captures all
elements of employee benefits a3
defined by {AS 13

are carried

Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borr uwéng Casts
capitalised in accordance with the

Group’s atcounting policy.

iation of these assets

commences when the ascets sre
rezdy for theirint
Depreciation is recognis
write off the cost or valua

Deprec

sete {otherthan fre
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Asset Description

Estimated Useful Life

Freehaid huildings
Leasehold huildings
Plant and equinment

- Communications infrastructure netwaork

- Network computer eguipment
- Motor veh

The estimated weelul livey, residuat
values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each
reporiing perigd, with the effect of
any (hanges in estimate sccounted
for on & prospective basis.

Freehold {and is not deprecizted.

Assets held under leases are
depreciated over the shorter of their
iease term and their expected useful
lives {on the same basjs as owned
as5ets).

Anitem of property, glant and
equiprment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic
bernefits are expected 1o arise from
the continued use of the ascel. The
gain orioss arising on the disposal of
an asset is determined as the
difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying smount of
the asset, and is recognised in the
income statement.

impairment of non-financial assets
Al esch reporting period date, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets
1o determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. i any
such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated to determine the extent of
the impairment foss {if any). Where
the assel does not generate cash
flows that are independent from
other assets, the Group estimates
the recoverabie amiount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset
belengs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allecation can be
identified, corporate assets are also

les

20 - 8C years

Length of irase {typically between 20 80 years)

8- 80 vyears
3 - 20vyears
L 3oayesrs

alloeared to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation
asis can be identified.

An intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life, such as goodwill, is tested
for impairment at least annuaily and

whenever there is an indication that

the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount i3 the higher of
fair vatue less costs to sell, and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the
risks specific 1o the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset
{or cash-generating unit} is estimatad
to baless than s carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoveraie amount. An
impairment lass is recognised
immediately in profit or joss.

Where an impairment joss
subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset {or cash-
generating unit) s increaced to the
revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so thatthe increased
carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amourit that would have
heen determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset {or
cash pererating unit] i prior years,
A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or

foss untess the inigairment relates to
goodwill, in which case it cannot be
reversed.

Financial instruments

Finangial assets and financial
liazbilities are recognised in the
Group’s statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financiai assets and financial
liabitities are initially measured at fair
value, Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liahilities {other than
financial assets and financial
fiabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted
fror the tarr value of the financial
assets or financial kabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acguisition of
financial assets or financial Habilities
at {air value through profit or loss are
recogrised immediately in protit or
lass, presented as an ‘other gain or

[y
W35S

All financial assets are recognised
and deracognised on & trade date
where the purchase orsalecf a
financial assetis under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the
financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market
concerned.

The Group's financial assets are
classThed into the following specitied
categories: financial assets ‘st fair
value through profit or foss’
UFVTPL), ‘measured at amortised

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001} ag
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cost’ or ‘'measured at tair value
through other comprehensive
income’ FVYOLN). The classificari
depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initia!

oy

recogrition.

Financiat assets measured at
amgrtised cost are rnon-gerivative
financial assets with fixed or
determmable payments that are not
guoted in an active market, They are
initizlly recognised at fair value and
subseguently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method. They are included in current
assets, axcept for maturities greater
112 months after the reporting
date, which are classified as non
current assets, The Groun’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost
comprise rade and other receivahles
andd cash and cash equivalents:

Trude receivabies

Trade receivabies do not carry
any interest and are stated at
their nominal value as reduced hy
approprizgte allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts.
impairment of irrecoverable
amounts is based on an expected
credit loss model. In addition to
the expected credit loss model,
the Group's policy i< to also
congider specitic provisions for
trade recevables outstanding for
more than 30 days beyond the
agreed terms, or where the
busingss envirgnment indicates a
SPEC risk. Management makes
an assessment of the level of
provision required and
adjustments to the caiculated
fevel of provision are rmade
accordingly.

Cask and cash equivalents
Cath and cash equivalentis
comprise cash on hand and

demand depasits and other
short-term highly liquid

ments that are readily
convertible 1o a kaowrn amount

The Group's financial liabilities are
classitied as either financial Habilities
‘at FVTPL or financial Habilities 'at
amortised cost’ according to the
substance of the contractual
arrangements entered mro.

Borrowings

interest hearing bank leans and
cverdrafts are initially recorded
at fair value, calculated as the
proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs. Finance charges
inciuding premiums payable on
settlerment or redemption, and
direct issue costs are accourited
for on an accruals hasis to the
ircome statement using the
effective interest method, and
are added to the carrying amount
of the instrument to the extent
that they are not settied in the
neriod in which they arise.

i

Trude and other payables

Trade and gther payables ace not
interest bearing and are intiatly
recorded at fair value and
subseqguently measured at
amortized cost using the effective
mteredd method. They are
included in current liabilities,
except for maturities greater than
12 months atter the reporting
date, which are classified as nan-
current liabilities.

The Group enters into a variety of
derivative financial instruments o
manage its exposure Lo interest rate
through interest rate swaps.

Derivative financial instruments are
recognised at fair value at the date
thie derivative contract is entered
into and are revalued at far vaiue at
each balance sheet date The fair
value of thewe nstruments s
determined from the expected
future cash flows discounted at

risk-adjusted rate. The future cash

lows are estimated based on
forward {irterest/inflation} rate
onbservable from rates and yieid
curves a2t the end of the regort
period, and contract rates. The
difference between the
the rick-adiosted rate and the fair
eis ysed to

air vatue at

vailie 3t the

determine the debit valuation
adiustment and/or credit valuation
adjustment to these instruments,
The Group does not apply hedge
accounting principles,

A derivative is presented as a3 non-
current asset or a non-current
ligblity if the rernaining maturity of
the instrument is more than 12
months and it is not expected to be
realised or settled within 12 mgnths
Otherwise derivatives are presented
as current assets or current lisbilities
Where derivatives have an
amortising protile, the fair value of
the elerment (i.e. the notional
principal) that matures within 12
months s presented as a current
asset or current Hability, These
derivatives are presented on & net

hasis,

Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 delines fair value as the price
that would be recefved to seil an
asset or pakd Lo transfer a llability in
an orderly transaction between
market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly
ohservable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In
estimating the fair value of an asset
or & lghitity, the Group tahes into
account the characteristics of the
asset or lability if market
participants would take those
chargcteristics info account when
aricing the asset or liability at the
measJdrement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure

purposes in these financial
staternents i determined on such &
hasis.

Ir addition, for financ
purposes, fair value messurements
are categorised into tevel 1,2 or 3
based on the degree 10 which the
inputs 1o the {air value
messurements are ghseryable and
the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement Inits

> described s

al reporting

e«  {evel Linpuls are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets
for identical zssets or Habilities
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that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

«  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other
than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or
liahility, either directly or
indirectly; and

e level 3inpuls are unobservable
inputs for the asset or liahility.

Disposal group held for sale,
discontinued operations and gain on
disposal of discontinued operations
Disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount wil
he recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable within
the next 12 months. They are
measured at the lower of therr
carrying amount and fair value tess
costs to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits and finaricial
assets that are carried at fair value.

An mipairment loss Ts recognised for
any initial or subsequent write-down
of the disposal group to fair value
less costs to sell. A gain s recognised
for any subseqguent increases in fair
vaiue less costs to sell of an asset {or
dispasat group), but not in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognised. A gain or loss
not previously recognised by the
date of the sale of the disposal group
is recognised at the date of
derecognition

Non-wurrent assets that are part of a
disposa! group are nct depreciated
or amortised while they are classified
as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attriputable to the
liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.

The assets of a disposal group
classified as held for saile are
presented separately from the other
assets in the balance sheet. The
frabifities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are
presented separately from other
Habilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a2
component of the entity that has
been disposed of or is ciassitied as
hetd for sale and that represents a
separate major fine of business or
geographical area of operations, is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to
resale, The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately
in the Income Statement

A gain or loss on disposat of
discontinued gperations is
recognised within the consclidated
income statement representing the
consideration received less
transaction costs and the carrying
value of the disposat group held for
sale, and deferred income generated
in relation to future services.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present ohligation (tegal
or constructive) as a resuit of 2 past
event, it is probable that the Group
will be reguired to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate can
he made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the
censideration reguired to seftle the
present obligation at the halance
sheet date, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows
estimated to settte the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows
{when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if
it is virrually certain that
reimbursement will he received ang
the amount of the receivable car be
measured reliably,

Decommissioning provisions are
recognised within provisions for
fHabilities and charges and included
within property, plant and
squipment, where the costs of
disrmantling assets are considered
material. The amounts recognised
within property, ptant and
equipment are depreciated over the
useful economic life of the asset. The
provisions are discounted to reflect
the time value of money where
material.

When the probahility that the Group
will be required to settle an
obligation or a refiable estimate
cannot be made of the amount of
the obfigation the Group discloses a
contingent hahility in the notes to
the financizl information.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum
of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payabie is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable
nrofit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxabie or
deductible in other years and it
further excludes items thal are never
taxabie or deductibie. The Group’s
lighility for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been
gnacted or substantively enacted hy
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to
he payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying
arnounts of assets and lahifities in
the financial information and the
corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liahilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and
deferred 1ax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be availzble
against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deterred tax
assets s reviewed at each bhalance
sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow ali or part of the
asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised based
an tax laws and rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheel date. Ueferred tax
is charged or credited in the income
staternent, except when it relates to
items charged or credited in other
comprehensive income, in which
case the deferred tax is also deakt
with in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current
tar assetls against current tax
liahilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle ils current tax assets
and liakilities on a net basjs.

Retirement benefits

Defined contribution schemes

For defined contribution schemes,
the amount charged to the income
statement in respect of pension costs
and other post-retirament benafits s
the contribution payable i the year.
Differences hetween contributicns
payable for the year and
contributions actually paid are
shown as either accruals or
prepayments in the statement of
fimancial position,

Defined benefit schemes

Defined benefit schames are funded,
with the gosets of the scheme heid
separately from those of the Growp,
i separate trustee administered
funds. Pension scherne assets are
measured at fair value and ligbilities
are measured on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to
the current rate of return on 3 high
auality corporate bond of eguivalent
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currency and terms to the scheme
liabilities.

The Plan closed to future acerual of
benefits on 31 lanuary 2016.

Prior to closing the scheme to future
accrual, the Group presented current
and past service costs within cost of
sales and administrative expenses
{see note 29) inits consolidated
income statement. Curtaiiments
gains and losses are accounted for as
a past-service cost.

Notinterest expense Or income is
recogrised within finance incoire
(see nete 9),

The retirement benetit obligation
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial posirion
represents the deficit or surpius in
the Group's defined benetit
schernes. Any surphus resulting from
this calcuiation is imited to the
present vaiue of any econoimic
benetits available in the form of
refunds from the schemes or
reductions in future contributions to
the schemaes.

Aldishility for 2 termination benefit is
recognised at the earlier of when the
ertity can ne longer withdraw the
offer of the termination benefit and
when the entity recognises any
related restructuring costs,

Leases

The Group us lessee

When the Group enters into @ leage a
‘right-of-use asset’ 1s recognised for
the leased itemm and a lease liahibity is
recoghised for any future jease
payments due at the lease
cornmencernent date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost,
heing the present value of the lease
payiments naid or payable, pius any
initial direct costs incurred in
entering the lease.

Right-of -use assets are depreciated
on a straight-tine basis from the
commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the asset's useful fe or
the end of the lease term, The lease
rerimis the non-cancelisble period of
the lease plus any periods for which

1the Group is reasonably certzin’ to
exgreise any extension opticns.

The useful life of the asset is
determined in a manner consistent
to that for owned property, plarit
and equipment. If right-of-use assets
are considered to be impaired, the
carrying value is reduced accordingly.

Lease Habllities are initially measured
at the value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the
commencemernt date and are usually
discounted using the incremental
horrowing rates of the applicable
Group entity. Lease payments
ncluded in the lease liability include
hoth fixed payments and in-
substance fixed payments during the
terrn of the ledse.

After initial recognition, the lease
fiability is recorded at amortised cost
using the effective intgrest method,
Itis remeasured when there s a
change in future lease payments
grising from a change in an index or
rate (e.g. an inflation related
increase), a renegotiation of the
lease terms or if the Group's
assessment of the lease term
changes, any change in the lease
liability as a result of these changes
also results in a corresponding
change in the recorded right-of-use
asset.

Government grants

Govermiment grants are not
recognised until there is reasonahie
assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be
received.

Government granis are recognised in
profit or Inss on a systematic basls
gver the periods in which the Group
reCOgnises as expernses the related
costs for which the grants are
intended 1o compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary
candition is that the Group shoutd
purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are
recogrused as deferred revenue in
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the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful tives of
the related assets.

Operating profit and exceptional
iterns

Operating profitis stated afrer
excepticnal iterms, including
restructuring costs, impairment and
after the share of resufts of
associates but befare finange income
and finance costs.

Exceptional items are thoze that are
considered to be one-off, non-
recurring in nature or material,
either by magnitude or nature, that
the Directors helieve require
separate disciosure to avaid the
distortion of underlying
performance, for example one-off
impairments, redundancy
programmes, restructuring and costs

refated to significant corporate
finance activities. The Directors
helieve the resulting EBITDA
represents underlying perfarmance,
excluding significant one-off and
non-recurring events, that more
fairly represents the on-going trading
performance of the business, These
terms are therefore presented
separately on the face of the income
staterment

FEITNA i< an alternative performance
measure defined as operating profit
before depreciation, amortisation,
profits/{losses) on disposal of fixed
assets, impairment of assets, other
incoime, and exceplional items. A
reconciliation between operating
orofit and EBITDA is provided in note

5.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rate

ruling at the date of the transaction,
except in the case of certain
financing transactions where hedging
arrangements are in place and
transactions are recorded at the
contracted rate.

Maonetary assets and liabilities
denated in foreign currernicies are
retransiated at the exchange rate
ruting at the halance sheet date or
the cortracted rate if applicable. Any
exchange ditferences arising are
taken to the income statement.
Transactions in the income
statement of overseas operations are
translated using an average
exchange rate,

Exchange differences on transfation
of overseas subsidiaries are
recognised through the statement of
comprehensive income in the
Group’s translation reserve.

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

in the application of the Group’s
accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other scurces.

The Judgerments, estimates and
associated assumptions are based on
istorical experience and other
factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ
from these Judgements, estimates
and assumptions

The judgements, estimates andg
underlying assumptions are reviewed
¢n an on-going basis. Revisions are
recognised in the pericd in which the
estimate is revised.

Critical judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies

The tollowing are the critical
judgerments and those invelying
estimations thal the Direciors have
madce in the process of appiying the

Group’s accounting policies and that
have the mast significant effect on
the armounts recognised in financial
statements and could reasonably be
expected to change materially in the
next 12 months.

Deferred tax
Critica!l accounting judgements:

As disclosed in note 19, the Group
has a significant unrecognised
deferred tax asset, primarily in
respect of deferred interest expenses
and tax losses. Judgement is required
in determining whether these assets
can be accessed considering the
restrictions of relevant tax legislation
and expectzations of future profits
within particular group entities.

Cniy assets that are expected to be
available to the Group have been
recognised but the judgement
refating to these unrecognised assets
witl remain under review and
reassessed as the Group's
circiimstances and relevant tax
legisiation evolves,

Provisions and contingent liahilities
Criticai (1 counting judgements:

As disclosed in note 26, the Group's
provisians principally relate to
obligations arising from contractuai
obligations, restructuring and
nroperty remediation plans and
decommissioning chligations.

The identification of such obligations
in the context of daily operations
which require provisions 1o be made
reguires judgement.

Judgement is also required to
distinguish between provisions ant
contingent liabilities, See note 28 for
detail.

Impairment of goodwill
Key estimates:

The carrying amount of the Group’s
goodwill is reviewed at. each
statement of financial position date
to determine whether there is any
impairment, in compliance with the
Group's actounting policies. See note
14 {or detail,

Argiva Group Limited (company reg 05254001) 94



Annual Report and Consalidated Financial Statements 2022

Actuarial assumptions used to
determine the carrying amount of
the Group's defined benefit plan
ohligation

Criticad qecounting judgements:

The Group’s defined benefit pian
liabilitios are discounted at a rate set
by reference to markel yields at the
end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds. Significant
judgement is required when setting
the criteria for bonds to be included
in the population from which the
yield curve is derived. The most
significant criteria considered for the
selection of honds include the issue
size of the corporate bonds, gquatity of
the bonds and the identification of
outiiers which are excluded. The
Group selects these assumptions in
consulttation with an external
qualified actuary.

Key estimations:

Estimates are used in determining
the present value of the scheme
liabilities, which depend on such
factors as the life expectancy of the
members, the salary progression of
our current employees and price
inflation.

Management has considered the
estimated impact of adjusting the
assumptions used to determine the
nresent value of the scheme
fiahilities, which are summarised in
note 29,

tmportant accounting judgements
and estimates
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Important accounting judgerments
and estimates are those judgements
and estimates which management
considers to he important to the
understanding of the financial
statements but that are not
materially significant encugh to be
deemed critical.

Useful lives for property, ptant and
equipment and intangibies

important gecounting estimates:

Depreciation or amortisation is
charged to the income statement
based upon the usefut lives selected.
This assessment requires estimation
of the period over which the Group
will derive benefit from these assets.

Management monitor and assess the
appropriateness of useful economic
lives, such lives may also be
impacted by external enarket
changes. v the event that such a
change were To result in a revision of
useful econaomic hives this could
result ina change to the annual
depreciation charge going forwards.
I the thearetical scenario wherelry
mediim and long term useful
eronomic fives of property, plant and
equipment were to be reduced by
ore year the estimated impact on
the depreciation charge for the year
is approximeately £14m (2021:
approximately £12in), with a
reduction in depreciation in later
years.

The Group manages its property,
nlant and equipment on 8 portfolio
hasis through a central estates team.
This team contains gualified
surveyors who have a wealth of

experience working for the Group
and within the industry as a whole

The carrying values of intangibles are
disclosed in note 15, and those for
propernty, plant and equipment are
disclosed in note 16.

Provisicns

Key estimations:

Estimates have been made in respect
of the probabie future obligations of
the Group. These estimates are
reviewed annually to reflect current
economic conditions and strategic
plans,

The decommissioning pravisions are
reviewed annuatly and are calculated
based upon expected costs and past
costs incurred on similar sites as
determined by site and project
managerment, as well as sssessments
made by internal experts {see 1iote
26).

Management is also required 1o make
estimates in relation to the discount
rates applied in the calculations.

Management has estimated the
impact of reducing the
decommissioning timetable by cne
yearto be £0.2m (2021: £0.2m) in
relation to the unwinding of provision
discounting or, if all site
decommissioning was recognised in
line with potential earlier expitration
dates, a sensitivity of up to £10m
across the portfolio as a whole. Such
movernent in any one financial year is
not considered likely.
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5 Revenue and functional information

The Group derives its revenue from the rendering of services, engineering projects, and the sale of communications
equipment. See note 3 for the accounting policies adopted.

The following tables disaggregate revenue from contracts with customers by our major service lines.

Media Smart Utilities Total continuing Total discontinued
Distribution Networks operations operations? Total

Year ended 30 June 2022 Em £m £m £ Em

gendenng of Lervicey 464 2 1130 ST 8T7.2
trigingnring projecty k! - 21 . 21
Sale of poads . 445 8 A48
Revenue 466.3 157.8 6243 -
Tota! continuing
tedia Smart Utilities Total discontinued
operations
Distribution Networks cperations? Total
Year ended 30 June 2021 (Re- £m
presented)’ £m fm £m £m
Fendering of servines 4824 1039.4 591.7 44 5961
Enginennrg proecs 1.2 112 s
Sale of guods 39.4 354
Revenue 493.5 148.8 642.3 4.9

Revenue expected to be recopnised in Future periods, included in our order book, for performance obtigations that are
not complete (or are partially complete) as 30 June 2022 1s £3,397.2m (Restated 2621: £3,743.1m}. During the year
management has performed a review of the classification of expected revenues between rendering of services and
sale of goods in the order hook, The prior year numhbers have been restated to remove £0.4bn of contract RPI
indexation incorrectly inciuded.

The anticipated timing of recognition of this revenue i as follows:

< 1vyear 1-Z vears 2 - 5 years 5-18 years =10 years Totat
vear ended 34 fune 2022 fm £m £m £m fm Em
endernig of services 523 4556 1,0%3.4 1,051 3590 23621
Engimeering projects
Sale nf groos 5.4 5.4 162 %1 - 351
Revenue 508.2 441.0 1,048.6 1,039.4 359.0 3,337.2

[nzcon ot ngpertatiun: anse soiely from the Telecoms business said 1 the vear

HIg

Fiorvme bore kaee nges o posested 1o o

e epore biwen
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Year ended 30 June 2021 < 1 year 1-2 years X -5 years 5-1C years > 10 years Tota!
Restated
( ) £m £im £ Ern £m fm
Rendering of sarvice: A7 T 426.5 1,028.6 1,7493 3650 32,4350
fFngineernng projerts 20 11 - - B N
Sale of goads BEE 4.9 29.0
Reveriue 531.3 468.5 3,148.1 1,229.3 365.9
Prior to restatement, the order hook for the prior year were reported as {ollows:
> 10 years
<1 year 1-2 years 2 - S years 5-10 years Total
Year ended 30 June 2021 £m c
£ £m m
(Reported) £m £m m
Randenng of vernca: Afa T 4265 1.038.5 11432 7863
Erigineerng projests 20 1 - - . 51
Saie of poods LR b AD.9 119 L 5.0 - 350
Revenye 531.3 468.5 1,148.1 1,229.3 7662 4,1435

Contract assets and liabifities
The Group has recogrised the tollowing assets and Habilities in relation to cortracts with custormers,

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£m £m

Contract assets

Contract liahllities

urrent .2 49,5
Moy current 3714 2555
a77.6 455.0
£104.8m of the contract Liahifity disclosed above, the Group has also Reporting by markets
recognised at 30 june 2021 was recognised an asset in relation to the  During the current financial year, the
recognised as revenue dyring the prepayment of costs to fulfil 2 Groun changed its reporting
year (2020: £95.2m). Impairment contract. Thisis presented within structure, moving away from the
iosses of £0 2m {2021 £0.2m) were other receivables i the batance traditional business units and
recegnised on contract assets during sheet and totailed £0 B8m (2021: adonting an integrated functional
the year. £1.0m). Amertisation recognised as operating model. Under the new
a cost of providing services dunng structure the business considers the
Qiher than business-as-ysual the year was £0.1m {2021 £0 1m). customer facing functions of Media

rmovements there were no : Distribution and Smart Utilities

changes in contract asset and hability Netwaorks, supported by Operations,
baiances during the year, Technclogy and Transformation and
In addition to the contract balances Corporate functions. The funcuonal

revenue and EBITDA for the Group
for the prior year have been re-
presented to align to this new
structure.
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Year ended 307 June 2022 Commerdial Other
Media Smart Uttlities Operations  Technology and Carporate Discontinited Consolidated
Distribution Networks Trausformation Opuerations
£m L fm £m fin m £m
Revenue A66.3 157.8 - - - 624.1
Functional result™ (EBITDA) 3431 67.2 (25.3) {28.5) (15.1) - 3414
Depepration aned apcetiz auer, 116
Lows on disposg) of fved assete 1)
tparment of ascels (]
Lxcephonai Ghet TR SR pEnLes {13.6;
Freeptional o,z on dispoate of (5 5y
nsgets P
Qther ncnme 77
Exceptionz: gthe: sneam e n
Freeptionat ievenuye 153
Operating profit from continuing 143.2
operations 3.2
Firiance mgyme 29
Froance ety 17330
Ttk rsand loses 6 1)
£ efore 1: rontinui
085 by i te tax from continuing {662.0)
aperations
*Functional result is defined as total operating profit before the items set out below,
Year ended 30 June 2021 Commercial Other
{Re-presented)?
Media smart Utilities Operations Technoiogy and Corporate Discontinued Consolidated
Gistrihution Networks Transformationr Cperations
Ern £m fin im im fm fin
Revenye 148.8

. "

Functional result* (EBITDA) (21.4) {24.4) 3

Gepretiatinr and armartisation {178 )

Fxcephonat ope nE BYLenses [FERY

(hhe ncome G

Gperaling Lrofn fram dicontined T
[N

aperations

Opersting protit from continuing
operations

Finance inctone

Hn3nce (051,

Uthet gaire and logses

Loss before tax from continuing
pperations

(597.2)

TR,

[ .
Proon vead Bemes bave been s pressntod o reflent fhe nes eI I SEHAISTH E TR
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*Funchanalresult is defined as total oper ating pro®t before the items set out below.

EBITDAY is 3 key measure of the Groug's financial performance A reconciliation of the reported EBITRA to the

operating profit is provided below:

Year ended Year ended

Note 30 Jupe 2022 30 June 2021

£m £m

Gpargting proft from continusng speration: 143.2 19R.G

Depreciation H 1554 HE

Amortisaticn i% 152 37
Lass aon disposa of fixed asceis £ 1

Erreptiong! Operdiny expenses 7 2546
wrnl oy on disposal of as 7 4.5

Dperating profit i discontinued operangag 13

Qther ncome I {43
Exceptional other incorac 7 HaA)!
txceptinral revenne 7 7.6

341.4 334.9

EBITDA

central administration costs. This is
the measure reported to the Group’s
CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of
functional performance,

The accounting policies of the
reportable functions sre the same s
the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3.

Functional result represents the
EBITDA earned by each operating
fungtion without allocation of the

For the purpose of monitaring
functional performance and

SALE mensar

gtert thie

alfocating resgurces between

functions, the CODM monitors the

capital expenditure of property,

plant and equipment and intangible .
assets (presented on a cash basis)

planned and utilised by each

tunction, an analysis of which s

chown below.
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Media Smart Uttlities Other* Consolidated
Distribution Netwaorks
£m £m £m im
Capital expenditure:
Fovthe year ended 30 june 2077 2.k i59 433 38.7
For the year ended 20 june 2071 162 185 50 % 86.1

*includes maintenance capex which is managed centrally and not allocated to individual business functions.

Note: the above is presented on a cash bagis and therefore cannot be agreed directly to the capital sdditions presented
i notes 15 and 16. The total balance comprises property, plant and equipment of £83.9m (2021 restated: £85.5m) and
intengible assets of £4. 8m (2021 restated: £0 6m) as referred to in the cash flow staterment.

Geographical information

The UK is the Group’s country of domicile and the Group generates the majority of s revenue from external
customers in the UK. The geographic analysis of revenue is on the hasis of the courtry of origin in which the customer

is invoiced.

The following revenue was generated from external customers;

Year ended

3 June 2027

Your ended

30 June 2022

Year ended
30 June 2022

Year entled

30 fane 2021

Year enged

30 Jume 2021

Year ended
30 June 2021

Cortinung Disgontinued Continuing Uiscontinued
aperalions nperations Total aperstions uperations Total
frr fri fm £ Fm Em
UK €185 - 618.5 £34.7 43 5630.6
Rest of Eurnpean Econome Area [FLA} 51 - 5.1 .4 6.4
Rest of World 0.5 - 0.5 1.2 1.2
Revenue o 624.1 6423 s 647.2

The Group holds non-current assets {excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and pension surplus) in the
following geogranhical lncations:

30 June 2022 30 lune 2021

fm £m

Ur. 27918 2,8882

Rest of Furopean Teonume Area [FEA) 15 1.5
Rest of Wrrll

2,{9413" 2,889.7

information about major customers

Ircluded in the revenues arising from Media Distribution are revenues of £146.3m (2021: £146.3m) which arose from
sales to @ major customer, and Srmart Utilities Networks revendes incdude £93.5m {2021 £81.7m} from a major
customer.

NG other single customers contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue in the aforementioned financial years.
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6 Operating profit

Operating profit for the year has been arrived at after charging / (crediting)

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Em im

Net loregn eachange (gains] / losses .3 .2

Research and tcevelopment ooty 15 2.0

Sepreciation of propecty, pdant aird v Guipment (see note 16}

Owrad aswets 135.9 142.9

Leased assets 225 8.6

Loss an thisposal of propeny, plant snd equipzierd 2nd wtengible 24 kN

Arnortiation of intangible assets (see note 15) 137 g7

Graat income {3.2) {109;

Frapiloyee costs {see note & 7n.A axa

Exceptional operaling expince: {see note 7} 146 IEE
Prteptiona loss on dispoval of wgsets {ses note 7} R

Exreptional Gther incnme (see nete 7

breephoral reverue (see note 73 75

Services provided by the Group’s Auditors and network firms

During the year the Group ebtained the foilowing services from the Group’s Auditors a1 costs as detailed below.

Group Group

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2622 30 June 2021

£m £fm

audd of parert compaty ang consolidated fnanas ni [

Fems payable By LG dinres 44 3
Drner sudt e 3 o

Non-audit services

Other services

Total cost of services provided by the Group’s Auditors 0.8 0.9

lr(rjl Argiva Gmuanmtrd l[company
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7 Exceptional items

The Group recognises exceptiongl iterms which are one-off and non-recurring In nature or matenal tems which the
Directors helieve require disciosure by virtue of their size or incidence for the financial statements to give a true and
fair view. Further information is disclosed in note 3.

{Loss) / profit before tax is stated after (charging)/crediting:

30 lune 2022

Year ended
30 fune 2022

Year ended
30 June 2022

Discontinued

Year ended

Conmmuing

Year ended
A0 June 2021
Continuing

Year ended
30 tune 2021

Yeur ernickad
30 June 2023
Discontinued

Revenue:

Kevenae service cradits

Operating expenses:
Reourgamisstion and severanee

Corporate finance antivities

Hestoration costs

vass on disposal of fixed asuets

Other exceptional items:
Other ingome

Gain on disposal of discontimued
npnerations

GRerations OpErationg Total operatins aperatinng Total
£ £m £m f.rm £ £fm
{7.6) (7.6)
{76} i7.6) -
{Z.4) (5.4) {21.8) {21.8)
{42} {4.2} 13.8} (3.8)
{10.0) -
{19.5) {256 {25.6)
{95} [9.5)
5.0 5.0 -
- 1,035.3 1,028 %
50 5.0 1,03823 1,038.3
(31.7) {31.7} 125.8] 1,0323 1,012.7

Total exceptionat items

Exceptional gains and losses are
diselosed separately within rigre 11.

Reorganisation and severantce
expenses indlude costs relating to
changes in the organisational design
and restructuring of the business and
delivery of the Group’s
transtformation programme. This is a
one-off multi-year transformation
oragramime that witl help Argiva
streamiine processes, modernise T
systerns and achieve significant cost
efficiencies and savings. The
transformation programime is
expected to compiete tater this
calendar year,

Corporate finance activities figures
relate to costs and accruals
associated with one off projects, and

corporate transactions including
refinancing activities.

The gain on disposal of discontinued
gperations refates to the sale of the
Group's Telecoms infrastructure and
related assets on 8 July 2020 as
disclosed in note 21

With the exception of the corporate
finance activities the amounts
included within exceptional
operating expenses above are
deductible for the purpose of
taxation. The gain on disposal of the
discontinued operation is net subject
Lo UK Corporation tax a5 it is exempt
under the Substantial Sharehoiding
Exemption.

Bilsdale ~ Project Restore

Thie restoration Costs relate to costs
ingurred o reinstate services present
at the Bilsdate transmitter site
following a fire which broke cut on
10 August 2021 and include £4.8m of
community support activities.
Engineers have heen working on a
recovery plan to reinstate services
present on the mast. The recovery
plan included service recovery with
works completed for the
improverment of TV coverage from
other local not-spot sites, as well as
the erection of 8 termporary mast at
the Bilsdale site. Te date sround 99%
of households have been returned to
coverage for TV and commercia!
radia has benefited from improved
coverage from what it was before
the fire. Further works to complete
the enduring solution and re-build is

Atgiva Group Umited {company reg 05254001}
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ongoing with works started on the
build of a new permanent mast.

Management is still assessing the
financiat impact of the incident and
the assets damaged by the fire, and
has engaged with the Group's
insurers. Costs recognised are those
which have been incurred to date
and can be reliably measured,
including £7.6m of service credits
deducted from revenue during the
period.

See note 28 for further details of
contingent liabilities and assets in
relation 1o the Bilsdale fire.

The exceptional loss on disposal of
assets relates to the impairment and
subsequent disposel of assets
damaged by the Bilsdale transmitter
site fire discussed ahove.

Exceptional other income relates to a
stage payment received from
insurance claims related to the

Biledale transmitter site fire
discuyssed above. This income is
subject 1o UK carporation tax.

On 21 Septeinber 2022, a second
interim stage payment of £10.0m
was received from the insurers in
relation to the Bilsdale fire. At 30
lune 2022, this represented a
contingent asset and has therefore
not been recognised in the income
statement.

The overall financiat impact of the fire at Bilsdale for the yesr is summarised as tollows:

PE&L impact
£m £m

Balance sheet impact

Irtgrna ahour - within nther operatirg oxpenses

Restoration costs -

within excepliona! operating expenses

Loss s drnpieal oF Txed asseto - withen excepticnal Inss oo disposal of asset:

insurance- first stape payment - within exceptiona! other scome

Roverue sarvice credits - wittuem exceptionst revenne

Capital expunditare

Total

8 Employees

144

234 14.4

The average monthly number of persons (representing ‘full-time eguivalents'} employed by the Group during the year

was as follows:

Year ended
30 june 2021

Year ended
30 june 2022

Number Number
UE 1.268 1,505
Ror Lk 3¢ 22
Total employees 1,287 1,523
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Yearended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

{Re-presented)?

RNumber Number

Mecha Distbution 238 323

Smart Utilfes Networks 37 54

Operations £71 6LG

Tectinslogy and Tramsfor:anoa 0 5
Curpurate 361
Toval eripioyees 1,287

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Year ended Yeay ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£m £m

Wages ant! salaries R 2 1045
Sorial zecitity (oste g7 9.8
Other persioncosts 7.0

Total staff rosts

Capitained staff rosts

Income statement expense

9 Finance income

Year ended
30 june 2021

Year ended
30 June 2022

Total Total
im £
Bank deposits 03

Orher fimarge income 31 a7

Total finance income 3.8 2.7

Other finance income includes £1.0m {2021 £0.23m) in relation to net finance income on the defined benefit pension
scheme.

Al finance income the year ended 30 Junie 2022 and 30 june 2021 refates 1o continuing operations,

confed Leonetle o e ses reportiiy futetiote, See ot 5 ton Birde
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10 Finance costs

Year endad Yesr eaden Year ended Year ended
1 30 June 2021

Discontnsed

Year ended
30 bune 2022

i June 2

aniinged

Continusng

SLErausNS aperaticns Total G lians Total
£m £m m fm £m £m

irterest on bank overdrofts od {oar: 21.6 20.6
Other laan interest 72.6 2 75.6
Bank and ¢iher loan interes 7 942 I ) 7962
Amortisation of debt 1ssus costs 4.2 4.2 4.0 : 4.0
Irterest on lease obligatans {note 24) 5.7 - 6.7 T4 01 7.5
Shareholder ioar noto interest 6027 - 602.7 298
Dther aterast 21.0 201
Taotal interest payable ) 128.8 6R7.5 [
Uirwindng of giscount nn groysion: 4.2 5.5
Total finance costs ?33;.0 683.;

The shareholder fean notes carry fixed interest rates of between 13.0% and 14.0%, payment of which can be deferred
at the option of the Group subtect to certain conditions, qualitication of which are subiject to hi-annual review (see
note 23)

11 Other gains and losses

Note Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£m ftm

iy

Fanrw L o0 dersegtye Tinang o 25 761,
freal coste an egrly debd repayments and denvat-ve:
Other kosses {76.1}
Dxcaptionainss onorleoe gt of inferest rate swens 25

st afinfation I 2
Exceptional other losses
Total other gains and losses (76.1)

Al other gaing and losses i the year ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 relate to continuing operations,
E} &)
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12 Tax
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
{Restated)
£m £m
LUK carporation Lax:
Corrent yesr - R
Total current tax - 2.9
Baferred tan (see note 19)
- Onigination and reversaf of temparery differences {11.5) 291
Recopnition of previously unrecegred deterred tas aset - (46.6)
- Adjurtment 1in respect of prior years: 4.4 652
Impact of rate change {29.5]
Total deferred tax 1A 5
Total tax credit for the year {27.4)

Intome tax expense is attributable to:
Loss feorm continUing GRerationg 127 4)

Proby from decontinued operations

Total tax credit for the year [27.4}

UK corporation tax is calculated &t g rate of 19.0% [2021: 19.0%) of the taxahle profit for the year. Taxation for other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit/ {loss) before tax in the irncome statement as foliows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 june 2021
{Restated)
£ fm
Profit / lioss) betore tax (662 ) 4439
Tax ot the UK comporation ax rate of 10.0% (2601 16.0% T 1125 B} 242
Tan effect of expences thet are tnor deductble in determuning texable profit {a} 5% 7 52.2
Tax eftect of ncorae not vaxahle o) - (167 3)
Change i urrecognised dafered taxn asorts () A5 BhE
Recogrinen of previoucly unrecogmised defarred Lax asset [d) . [46.6)
Acurtment i resgect of pror years (&) {4 4) £R
Iripact of 2hange 10 tax rate G 8}
Total tax (crediti / charge for the year (37.6])
During completion of the tax higher than reflected in the prior year  zssets of £53.3m were utihsed in the
campharice process for the year statutory accounts. This arose dueto period and a UK corparation tax
ended 20 Jure 2021, it was identified  the treatment within this legislation charge of £2.4m has heen recognised.
that the disallowed finance expenses  of the exceptional gain on the In addition, a deferred tax asset has
under the Corporation Interest disposal of discontinued operations, been recognised in the year ended 30
Restriction legisiation were materially  As a resuit, additional deferred tax Jurne 2021. This resulted from a
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review of the ability of the group 1o
utise this asset taking into account
the above-described restatement,
This gives rise to an increased
deferred tax asset of £31.3m and a
reduced unrecognised deferred tax
asset of £31.3m (see note 4). The net
impact of these adjustments has
resulted in a restatement in the year
ended 30 June 2021 of £24 4m
decreased tax credit, £22.0m
decreased deferred tax assets and
£2.4mincreased corporation tax
payshle.

The main rate of UK corparation tax
was 19.0% during the year. in the
Finance Act 2021 it was enacted that
the main rate of UK corporation tax
would be increased to 25.0% from 1
Aprit 2023, UK deferred tax has heen
valued at between 19% and 25% (30
June 2021: hetween 19% and 25%)
depending on the penod it is forecast
1o reverse i,

Gn 23 September 2022, it was
announced that the corporation tax
rate change from 19% to 25% with
effect from 1 Aprit 2023 was to be
cancelled. This was not substaniively

13 Dividends

enacted at the halance sheel date
and therefore the irmpact of this
change is not reflected in the
measurement of deferred tax. If the
rate change had been substantively
enacted prior to 30 Jure 2022, the
impact would have been to reduce
the deferred tax asset by £50.1m with
3 correspanding charge to the income
slatement.

{g} Expensesthat are not deductible
in determiring taxabie profit
principally refate to interest
payable on shareholder loan
notes and in the year ended 30
june 2021 interest expense from
39 party lenders which has been
treated as not tax deductible in
the period in which it arose as a
result of the Corporate Interest
Restriction legislation.

{h) Income not taxable principally

relates to the profit arising on the

sale of Argiva Services Ltd, The
gain arising is not taxable as it
falts within the Substantiai
Shareholding Exermption for sales
of trading businesses.

{c) Change in urecognised deferred
tax assets principaliy relates to
deferred interest expenses {see
note 19).

(d) Recognition of previously
unrecognised deferred tax asset
represents the additional
recognition of deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses as
it becomes probable that the
group will be able to utiiise
these in future.

The adjustment in respect of
prior years relates 1o refinernents
of estirmates of taxable profits
arising from rhe completion of
the tax compliance process

Tax in Cansolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

There s a tax charge of £1.7m (2021,
credit of £6.6m) in respect of the
actuarial movement of £6.7m (2021:
£26.4m} inthe Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive ncome.

£ per share

Year ended
30 lune 2021

Year ended
30 June 2022

£m £ per share

New igiet ibacr Midlands) cmitend

Teta! dividends payabie to minority interests

The ahove amounts represent dividends declared 1o non-controliing interes

AGL Groun,

shareholders by companies within the

No dividends were deciared or paid to AGL shareholders during the year (20211 £ni3).
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14 Goodwill

fm
Cost:
At 1 Tuby 2020 and 30 lune 202 1,457.8
AL 30 tune 2022 1.457.8
Accumulated impairment losses:
AT Juby 2020 and 20 June 2621 0.4

At 30 fune 2020

Carrying amount:
At 30 June 2022

At 30 Jurie 2021

Goodwill acquired in a business
cormbination is allocated, at
acqguisition, to the cash generating
units {"'CGUs’) that are expected to
benefit from that business
combination. The CGUs that have
associated goodwill are Media
Distribution and Smart Utilities
Networks.

These are the smaliest identifiable
groups of assets thet generate cash
inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other groups
of assets, and to which goodwill is
allocated.

The carrying value of goodwill as at
the baiance sheet date by the
principal CGUs is shown as follows:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£m £m
Media Distiibutor 1,349.6 1,3396
Stnart Utihties Netwoiks 117.8

Total

117.8

1,457.4

The Group tests goodwill annually for
impatrment, or more freqguently if
there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired. The recoverable
amounts of the CGis are determined
from value-in-use calculations ("VIL),

The key assumptions far the VIU
calculations are thase regarding the
discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to cash fiows
during the year for which
management has detailed plans.

Management estimates discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market zssessments of the

time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. Growth rates are
based on internal and externat
growth forecasts. Changes to cash
fiows are hased on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the
market,

Projected cash flows and the
recoverable amount’

The value in use of each CGU s
determined from the cash flow
forecasts derived from the most
recent financial forecasts approved by
the Board for the next five years. They
reflect management’s expectations of
revenue, EBITDA growth, capital

expenditure and working capital
based on past experience and future
expectations of performance,
Discount rate

The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the Group’s cash flow torecasts are
agerived using the capital azset pricing
model for comparable businesses.

The assumptions used are
benchmarked to externally availsble
data. The pre-tax discount rate used
forthe Group is 8.3% (7021: §.1%}.
This discount rate does not represent
the weighted average cost of capitai
(WACC) for Argiva, but instesd i an
industry and comparative company

Argiva Group Limited (company reg 05254001)
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hased capital asset pricing mode!
(CAPM) derived discount rate,
utilising current spot rates at the time
of caleutation.

Terminal growth rotes

The terminal growth rate is
determined based on the long-term

15 Other intangible assets

growth rates of the markets in which
the CGU operates (2022: 2.0%; 2021:
2.1%). The growth rate has been
benchmarked against externally
svailable data. This rate dees not
exceed the average long term growth
rate tor rhe cefevant markets.

Sensitivities

There is headroom in all CGUs. No
reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions would cause the carrying
amount of the goodwiil by CGU 10
exceed the recoverahle amount
based upon the ViU,

Licences  Development Access rights Saftware Assets under Total
costs the course of
construction
{AUC)
£ £ £m £in £m
Cost )
At July 2 37 154 1011
Additien:, 0.3 e 0 f
Transfes from AUC {note 16} 33 3 %
Lasposais
ALZO el 1 5 77 o 154 1047 - 146 3
A it 19 3.0 49
Tramslers trom AUC {nnte 16) 4.4 34

ispasals

At 30 lune 2022

15.4

Accumulated amortisation

AL T duly 7

Aranrtication

Digno: i

At 30 June 2022

Larrying amount

A 20 lune 2022

13.7 214
7.1 g8 154 74 2 106 6
i1 16 7.0 .7
) - {0 2)
"""" 8.2 112 a4 osiz 1160
1 a8 97 172
(3.0 5.7y - (48 7}
92 107 54 ] a5.2 . sos
a5 10.7 o 3.0 T 3ea
s s ] ) - '

Development costs in respect of products and services that are being developed by the Group are heing capitalised in
accordance with 1AS 38. These are amortised over their expected useful life once the product or service has been

commercially launched.

Disnoss

Is in the year relate to ofd software replaced as part of the Group’s transformation nrogramme,

Other intangible assets are recognised at cost and are amortised over their estimated vseful lives.

)
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16 Property, ptant and equipment

Freehotd fand Leasehold Plant and Assets under the Total
and buildfings buiidings eguipment  course of construction
{AUC)
£m £m £m £m £m
Cast
AUT July 2020 322.0 145.3 1,785.6 1063.3 2,357.5
Kaciasuhicalions (53.4} 2.2 262
Adiusted baiance o1 1ty 2020 268.6 173.0 1,812.8 103.1
Adrtitions 11 7 10.3 4 B
Lampletion ol AUC 45 0.5 47,3
Trancters 2 uthor sntangibies (note 15) (3 3) {2.3)
Ui ponals 183 (2.8} (03) (30.5)
A3 duse 2071 ) 273.1 T 176 1,818.0 1288 24268
Adiitinns 1.3 72 734 615
Compietion ol ALC 24 0 516 {94 &)
Trancters o other ntsngibles [rote 15) 14 4] 44
JsLiosals (3.3} (136 (305} (2723
HulEnannhi 0.5} (0 05)
At 30 June 2022 271.6 ]69-:-6 109.G )
Accumulated depreciation
A1 buby 2020 44.9 784.1 - 382.1
meglasaifications 272 26 2
Adjusted balante: el ] Juiy 2070 68.1 210.3
Depreciation ith ’; ’467 - ‘ 7 - TEM'.
Dupesals (5.1} 16 (12.3) [15.%)
It B une 2021 5.5 B4.6 944.7 - 1,034.8
Depreciation 7.9 i1l 139 4 - 155.4
Disposal (2.5} {7.1) 18 59) - {1%.1)
At 3(} Jure 2022 10.9 £8.6 1,075.6 - 1,175.1
Carrying amount
At 30 tune 2022 ) 260.7 80.4 851.0 108.G
AL 3 lune 2071 2676 G923 ESER] 1288

Freehald land included above but not

depreciated amounts to £155.8m
{2021: £156.1m}.

Reclassifications have been recognised
between categories to adiust opening
balances following resssessment of

category of historic assets.

The Group’s current ard non-current
assets have heen pledged as securnity
under the terms of the Group’s extern

Al 30 June 2022, the Group had entered
into contractual commmutments for the
al acquisition of propeity, plant and

debt facitities (see note 23}, In addition,  eguipment amounting to £16.6m (2021:
the Group’s lease cbiigations (see note £22.1m) - see note 28 for further

24} are secured by the lessers’ title of

detaiis,

the leased assets, which have a carrying

amount of £4.6m (2021: £5.1m}
1old buildmgs.

included within iegsah
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17 Interest in associates and joint ventures

in addition to the subsidiary undertakings (see note 3 to the Company financial statements on page 140) the Group
hotds the following interests in associates and joint ventures:

f
Company Cauntry o

incorporation

Principal activities

Joint ventures

Sourc Dipital Limeted

Associate undertakings:

RMuxcn Limited

Share of results of assodiates and

joint ventures was £ril {2021 £nil} for

the year with the intergst in
associates and joint ventures being
£0.1m (2021 £06.1m.

111 Argiva Group |

Uegted Kingdam

Urited Kinpdanen

Lrmted Kingdom

nted {company reg OE?SAO{M )

N . Wedia Hou
Ownerstup and nperaton

of UK DAB radio rouitiplex
iicence

Business

PE2EE

Fideing for GK DABR digital
radi muttigles heence:

15 Alfred Pla

sy of @

Suppust def

I

There are no other associates or joint
ventures that are considered
wiaterial, either individually or in
aggregate, to the Group’s position or
perfarimance

The Directors consider the carrying
value of the Group's investraents on
an anniual basis, or more frequently
should indicators arise, and believe

Registered office

Pererborough, Umied Kingdam,

Printeton sire
England, WO1RF

Englrag, WC1

Percentage
Year .
and of ordinary
shares held
Peterborough
¢, bynch Woaod, S
¥ Y 31-Dec 40,05
ndor, 27 -Det 25.0%
o, Lendarn, . I
' Y1 Mar 10 0%

that the carrying values of the
investments are supported by the
underiying trade snd net assets.

Transactions with associztes and joint
ventures in the year are disciosed in
note 30.
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18 Trade and other receivables

30 lune 2022 30 june 2021

£m £m
Trade and other receivables
Trade recowvables £33 65.G
Gther « vables 57 30
Prepayments e 60.0
133.0

Cuntralt assets

128.0

61.2

The decrease in contract assets in the year is driven principslly by releases in the utilities business, together with

regular business as usual movements,

The ageng of the Group's net trade receivables which are past due but where no indication of non-recoverability has

heen identified is as folows:

30 june 2022 30 fune 2021

£m £m

Upto 30 days overdue 5 i3
tp to 90 day: overdue 22 71
Between 91 and 150 1ﬁay: OVerdyue 27 0.4
Mare thiar 150 days Sverdue 20 15
11.9 7.4

Trade receivables and contract assets are stated after deducting allowances for expected credit losses, a5 follows:

Year ended
30 lune 2021

Year ended
30 June 2022

£m £m
Alowance st July it £.5%
Amounts utihoed (10} (1)
Provided dunng the year 1.1 &
Allowance at 30 June 4.6 4.5

The Group applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measurnng
expected credit losces using a lifetime
expected credit 1oss provision for
trade receivables and contract assets,

To measure expected credit osses on
a collective basis, trade receivahbles
and contract assets are grouped

hased on similar credit risk aging. The
contract assets have similar risk
characteristics to the trade
receivables for <imilar types of
contracts,

The expected loss rates are based on
the Group's historical credit iosses
experienced over the five year pericd

prior to the period end. The historical
foss rates are then considered for
current and forward-looking
information on macroeconoimic
factors affecting the Group’s
custorners. No adjustrents were
made to the expected ioss rates
applied for the current year.
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The Group's expected i0ss rate for receivables is 0.4% (2021: 0.4%). At 30 June 2022 the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables and contract assets s as follows:

0 hune 2022 Current Up to 30 Upto 90  Between 81 tore than Total
days days and 150 150 days
cverdue overdue days averdue

overdue
_ _fm £m £m £m _km Em
Gross £arrying armounT
- Trade rerewahles 57 4 54 25 31 5.4
Contract 2ssats 4t b

Loss provision - Expected

LOss provison

- Specfic

30 june 2021

Grass carrya amnunt
Trade recevabies

Contiact asset.

LOSE DrGVISIon -"X\JEE'UEd

£0.2m (2021 £0.2m) of the £4.6m
(2021 £4.5m} lifetime expected loss
provision relates to the contract
assets,

In sddition 1o the expected credit foss
modei, the Group’s policy is 1o also
consider a specific provision for trade
receivahies cutstandng for more ihan
30 days beyond the agreed terms, or

d (company reg OSZEdOO})w

Current Up to 30 Up 1o 90
days days
overdue averdue
__Em _Em____Em
578 54
614
119.0

Between 91 Wlore than Total
and 150 150 days
davys overdue
overdue
L Em £m

where the business environment
indicates a specific risk. Management
will make an assessment of the level
of provision based on the Group
policy. Adjustrments to the caleulated
ievel of provision will be matde
arcordingly.

im determining the recoverahility of 2
~eivahie the Group considers

any change in the credit guality of the
trade recetvable from the date credit
was initially granted up to the
regorting date. Before accepting any
rew customer, the Group uses an
external credit scoring system to
assess the potential customer’s credit
guality. For further information on
how the Group manages credit sk
seg nete 25,
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19 Deferred tax

The balance nf deferred tax recognised st 20 June 2022 s [233.8m (2021 £208.1 1 {restated)®). The movement in
deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Tax losses Fixed asset Derivative Other Total
Deferred tax assets temporary financial temporary
differences instruments differences
fm £m fm fm £m
AT Juty 2020 188 466 1034 g.2 1720
] 391
Credited / {charged] ip the nienme statpmiont B30 {4 (2e8) 47.8
AL B0 tune 2021 (Reslatod) 727 24.2 744 45.2 219.8
- . i 21 .
Credited [ {charged) to the noome ctatement 154 176 15 5; .2
At 30 June 2022 8r.7 41.8 69.1 53.4 249.0
Retirerment Total
Deferred tax lisbilities : i ’
benefits
Em £m
Al T duly 2020 3.3 ERS!
Charged Lo the income statemeaent 2.1 1
Cha:ged to statement of comprebensve income .6 €6
AL30 Tune 2021 11.7 7
Cnarged to the income staterment 1% 1R
Charged 1o statement of comprehensive income 1.7 1.7
At 30 June 2022 15.2 i5.2
The corporation tax rate was with a corresponding charge 1o the There is an unrecognised deferred
increased to 25% from 19% effective income staternerit, tax asset of £478.4m (2021: £420.4m

from 1 April 2023, the deferred tax

asset is anticipated to reverse both in - Other temporary differences are
the periods prior to and after 1 April comprised primarily of timing
2023 and therefore the deferred tax differences relating to deferred

asset hag been recognised at the income and provisions that are tax

relevant tax rate. deducrible as utilised. Ternpaorary
differences arising in connection with

On 23 September 2022, it was unremitted earnings of cverseas

announced that the corporation tax subsidiaries and interests i

rate chapge from 19% to 25% with associates are insignificant

effect from 1 April 2023 was to be
cancelled. This was not substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date
and therefore the impact of this
change is not reflected in the
measurement of deferred tax. if the
rote change had been substantively
enacted prior to 30 June 2022, the
impact would have been to reduce
the deferred tax asset by £50.1m

LR year fpgre, ave been redateq o ref ect and ad Letman - o the deforrer oy prsion See nste b for detad

{(Restated}}. This is in respect of tax
losses of £40.7m (2021: £40.7m) and
deferred interest expenses £437 8m
{2021; £379.7(Restated)). These
deferred tax assets may be carried
forward indefinitely. These assets
have not been recognised since it is
not probabls that these assets will be
able to be utilised against future
taxable profits of the Group.

The Group continues to recegnise its
deferred tax assets as supported by
the same long-term group profit
farecasts that are used for goodwill
impairment testing (see note 14). No
attributes have a time expiry and
these forecasts show the detferred
tax assets reversing to a niet Hability
position by 30 June 2030, Due to the
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long-term stable nature of the tax asset is not considered ta be reasonably possible trading
business, with significant long term materially exposed to the forecasts.
cornitracts, the recognised deferred rerformance of the Group hased on

20 Cash and cash equivalents

30 June 2022 30 lune 2021

£m £fm

Cash ot bank L7 254
Shott erra deponits 2258 21581
Total cash and cash eguivalents 251.2 2435

21 Discontinued operations and disposal group held for sale

On 8 fuly 2020, the Group suld its The profit on the disposal of the The post-tax gain on disposal of
Telecoms infrastructure and related discontinued apetation is nof subject  discontinued gperations was
gssets including its 100% inferest in to UK Corporation tax as itis exemnpt  determined as follows:

Argiva Services Limited and its under the Substantial Sharehoiding

subsidiaries. fxemption.

30 fune 2021

Total cash ransiderstion receyod

Lees castithuposed of 01

Less deferved income senerated in relatian to future services

Net cashoinflow an dipusel of Jasrantinued aperations

Net agsets dispoued [ather then cash)

Gooodwil

tangible asets 19
Froperty, plant and egupmient a1 ©
Trare and other receivatles 7.7

Contract z

Deferrerd tax

Lease habrlites (2338

Trade and nher payables

Contre

+ kb

Frowginns

tnciuded within the rotal cash consideration received was ar amount related 1o the buyers continued use of Argiva
sites in future years, and as such represents deferred income for the Group. This amount has therefore been deducted
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Result of discontinued operations
The resuits of the discontinued operations are disclosed in the Income Statement.

Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows includes the following amounts relating to discontinued operations:

30 dune 2021

£m
Operating activitie:, 5
rivesting activitics
Firanrirg antit s
Nat cash from discantinued ouerationg 2.5
22 Trade and other payables
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
(Restated)?
£m £m
Current
Trade and other payables
Trade pryables 8.2 439
Taxation and cocial security 4.6 16.5
Other payables 4.4 53
Accruals BER) 54.5
121.0 120.4
Corporation tax 2.4 2.4

Contract abilities 106.2 99.5

Non-currerit

Contract liabilities i71.4

ovwear hgares Rave baer restates io eflect amid sapetrent Ta tae defered tay pos o See itte d
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23 Borrowings

Denominated currency A0 lune 2022 30 June 2021

£m £m

Within current Babilities:

Lazse habililies 128 210
Barde faoilities 340
Serdor bonds, notes and private placemente 5G4 Y67
Accrued mtarest onjunior and senmor fnancing® Sterling 11.2 1.5
Aceiurd iterest on sharenoler loan rotes? Sterhng 28460 2,744.0
Borrowings due within one year 2,961.3 - 2,3372,9
Within non-current liahilities:
Frari 0ans 2845 287 .8
e dehit Sierling 620 RLERN
SELE rosts Storhng SR T
Other facibties Stering 136 261
Other loane 1,278.0 1,324.4
Sersar bonds, notes ang povate placen 657 N
lurior bonds [N 6250
DI CoLt 150

Sharehaltder loan notes Stedling

Lesse hiolnlitiey Steriing

Borrowings due after more than one year

included within the £6,738.7m (2021: £6,179.3m} are debt issue costs of £4.5m (2021 £8 5m). Total borrowings
exciuding these smounts are £6,743,2m {2021 £6,187.8m}, which comprise debt principat and interest, the maturity of
which ¢ included in the table below.

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£m fm
Borrowings fatfing due within:
One year 28613
O 1o fve yesns?® 3.317.2
Minre thar five yesey 45916 542.9

Total 6,738.7 £,179.3

The weighted average interest rate of  Bank loans form pant of the Group’s A surnmary of the movement in
borrowings (excluding sharehoider senior deht. Other loans comprise horrowings during the financal year ¢
interest as described above) s 5.85%  the Group's senior bonds and notes given belaw:

{2021: 5 44%). and junior bonds.

w15 the Lederying hoans g
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Borrowings: Reference At 1 July 2021 Lease Amounts Amounts AL 30 June
movements drawn repratd 2022

£m £fm £m fm £m

Seriordeb? —nstitGtional term loan [ o0 .0

Seruor debt - Eurogearn tnivastment ik} 172.0 172.0

Bank

Othwr fac lities {¢) 26.1 (3.1} e

Bank faulitiwes ey 0 340

Seror bonds, aotes and US Srvate {e} 7641 {55 7} 707 4

placarent

Juniue burady 14 625.0 Ca5.0

Total bank inans and private 1,677.2 34.0 (52.8) 1,651.4

placements

Leane hahdities e (317} Bh.8

Starehsider loan notes fhy

Total borrowings excluding accrued {21.7} 340 (59.8)

interest

The Group's borrowings outlined in
the tahle above incorporate:

(3) an institutional term loan (2022
£90.0m outstanding; 2021: £90.0im)
with an expected maturity date of
December 2023,

{b} a loan from the Furopean
Investment Bank (2022, £172.0m
outstanding; 2021: £172.0m) with an
expected maturity date of June 2024.

{c) financing facilities in Argiva Smart
Finaricing timited {(a Group company]
established in Dacember 2013 that
support the Group's smart energy
metering contracts by financing the
purchase of communication hubs.
This £30m facility matures in June
2028 and 3 net of £23.0m was drawn
at the end of June 2022 (June 2021:
£26.1imi). The remaining £3.9m
commitment was cancelled on 27th
Novernber 2020. This loan is
amortising over time with the finat
maturity in june 2028.

These loans have floating rates of
intevest with margins ranging from
SONIA + 1.30% 16 2 50%.

{d) Working capitai Facility (20232:
£34.0rn ourstanding; 2021 £nil),
which has an expected maturity date
of july 2024 This faciity is floating

rate in nature with & margin over
SONIA of 130 hps. Argiva Financing
No1 timited ("AF1'} is the borrower
under all these arrangements,

The Group has £216.0m (2021:
£250m) of undrawn senior debt
facilities available. These facilities are
at floating interest rates. For further
information on the Group’s liquidity
risk management, see note 25,

(e) a combination of publicly listed
bonds and US privete placement
notes.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group has
£444 Om {2021: £470.7m} sterling
denominated bonds outstanding
with fixed interest rates ranging
hetween 4 88% and 5.34% (2021:
4.88% arid 5.34%). These bonds are
1epayadle between December 2022
and December 2032 and are listed an
the London Stock Exchange. Argiva
Financing Plois the issuer of ali the
Group's senior listed bonds.

The remaining senior notes relate to
a number of US private placement
issues in sterding with floating
interest rstes. The Group has
£263.4m {2021: £29%2.4m) of sterling
denorninated floating rate US private
pacements that are arnortising in
nature with repayments due

hetween Decermher 2022 and
December 2029. These instruments
have a margin over SONIA ot
between 210 and 220 bps.

The fair value of the gquoted senior
bonds hased upon observable market
prices {fair value hierarchy level 1}
was FA74.8m (2021: £561.7m) whilst
their carrying value was £444.0m
{2021 £470.7m).

The remaining £263.4m (2021:
£293.4m) of senior debt relates to
glher unguoted borrowings.

The directors consider the fair value
of all other un-quoted borrowings to
be a close approximare to their
carrying amaount.

{f} Junior bonds of £625.0m
represent amounts raised from the
issuance of notes by Argiva
Broadcast Finance Plc. These notes
Have a fixed nterest rate of 6.75%
and are repayable in September
2023, These notes are listed on the
Luxembourg Market.

As discussed in note 31, en the 18
August 2022, the Group signed a
commitment for a £450m term
faciity and = £50m Working Capital
Facility both with an expected
maturity date of 2028, These

Argiva Group mited (company reg 05254001)
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faciiities are floating rate in nature
with 2 margin over SONIA. Argiva
Broadcast Intermediate Limited (a
subsidiary of the Group) is the
borrower of this arrangement. The
proceeds of this facility when drawn
wifl be used to redesim the Groups
cutstanding £625m Junior bonds.

The Group continues to comply with
all coveriant requirements, indluding
financial covenants as detailed an
page 32.

The fair value of the quoted junior
bonds based upon ohservable market
prices (fair value hierarchy level 1)
was £597.6m (2021 £643.0m) whiist
their carrying value was £625 Om
(2021: £625.0m).

{g} Obligationz under jeases are as
defined within note 24.

{h) Shareholder [oan notes which are
unsecured, are listed on the Channel
{siands Stock Exchange, are
repayable between September 2024
and September 2025, and cannot bhe
called upon early. The shareholder
loan notes carry a fixed rate of
interest ranging between 13% and
14% applicable 1o the capital and
un-paid interest which can be
deferred at the option of the Group
subject to certain conditions,
gualification of which are subject to
bi-annual review, applicable to the
capital and unpaid interest The

Group has exercised this aption to
defer interest payments since 2009

The Group's senior bonds and notes
are structured withm a Whole
Business Securitisation package
(WHBS). These instruments have
covenants attached, principatly an
interest and debt service cover ratio
and a debt leverage ratio. The Group
continues 1o comply with ali
covengnt requirements.

There have been no breaches of the
terms of the loan agreements during
the currerit or previous year.

The value of the interest deferred on
the shareholder loan notes at 30 June
2022 was £2,846.9m (2021:
£2,244.2m3.
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24 leases

Leases as lessee {IFRS 16}

The Group holds lease arrangements primarily relating to land and buildings, circuit contracts and vehicles,
Right-of-use assets

Right-of -use assets related 1o leased properties and land are presented as plant and equipment Plant and equipment
icases refate to the use of fibre, other fixed telecommunications lines, and T equipment

Leasehold buildings Plant and Total
£m equipment
£m £m
Asal 1ty 2020 683 510 119.3
Depraciatiun charge for the year {10.0) (14 b) 124 B)
Adedtiens to nght-of Lse zssety 8.1 44
EHact of modifeation o leate terms 23 %3 5.h
Lereccgnition of might-of uce asses 14.3) 28] 137 5)
At 30 June 2021 S 645 o 7353 49.9
Oeprecatinn charps for the yes: {2 3] {1.3.2) [22.5)
Addilions to right-of use assets 1.0 03 13
rttect of rnodification 1o lpane terms (18} 1R
Dererogmuon of ngbtoof use avsets 103.9} 103.4)
Balance at 30 June 2022 ' 53.6 ) 24.2 77.8

Amounts recognised in the Income Statement

Leases under IFRS 16 Year ended Year ended
30 lune 2022 30 lune 2021

fm £m

Froance relating to vanabie lease payments not included i thie meauurement of 12ase 2.7 5.7

liabihities

6.7 74

Irterest on lease habities

Amounts recognised in the Cash flow Statement

Year ended 30 Year ended 30

lune 2022 fune 2021

£m £m

Fepaymoent of rapital element of lease rentals 223 4% 6
€7 7.4

Interesl giement of lcase rentals

The Group's lease lishilities are disclosed in note 23 Borrowings, The maturity profile of the Group’s lease liabiitiey are
disclosed in note 25 Financial instruments and risk managemeant.
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25 Financial instruments and risk management

Capital risk management

The Group manages 1ts capital to
ensure that entities in the Group will
be abile to continue as a going
cancern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity
halance.

The capital structure of the Group
consists of net debt (as set out in
rnote 27; see note 20 for cash and
cash equivalents and note 23 for
borrowings) and equity of the Group
{comprising issued capital and share
premiun, reéserves, rétained earings
and non-controlling interests)

Levels of debt are maintained on an
GREoing basis to ensure that no
breaches occur and repayments can
be and are made as necessary with
refinancing carried out as required.

Significant accounting policies
Details of significant accounting
policies and methods adonted
{including criteria for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the bases
for recognition of income and
expenses} for each class of financial
asset and financial iability are
disciosed in full in note 3.

The Growpy's derivatives (e, interest
rate and iflation linked) are
measured on a fair value through
profit and loss hasis. Whilst the
Group's deiivatives act as an effectve
hedge in economic terms, hedge
accounting principies are not applied.
This means that the Group’s
derivatives are recognised af their
risk-adjusted fair value {i.e. risk-
adjusted Mark to-Market value) 2t
the date they are entered into and
are revalued at each baiance shast

121 Arq:;;Csr;jp 1:\!\‘15T{:d {campany reg 0525406])

date, with gains and losses being
reparted separately in the income
staternent within ‘other gains and
losses’. Net amounts paid in the year
{excluding terrnination amounts) on
interest rate swaps {together with
similar amounts undér the cross
currency and index finked swaps) are
reported as a component of net bank
and other loan interest within finance
Costs.

financial risk management

The Group’s treasury function
provides services to the business,
coardinates access Lo domestic and
international financial markers,
monitors and manages the financiat
risks relating to the operations of the
Group using financial instruments
whierever it in zppropriate 1o do 50

The treasury function reports into the
Group Finance Director and the
Group’'s Board of Directors and the
Audit and Risk Cornmitter, an
independent function with a scope
that includes maonitoring the risks and
policies implemented to mitipate rick
exposures, The main risks addressed
by financial instruments are mterest
rate risk and foreign currency
exchange risk. The Group's policies in
respect of these risks remain
unchanged throughout the year.

The Group enters into a variety of
derivative financial instruments to
manage its exposure to foreign
currency and interest rate risk,
including:

interest rate swaps, inciuding
inflation-lirked swaps, to
mitigate the risk of movement in
interest rates; and

- Forward foreign exchange
contracts 1o manage exchange
riske arising from transactional
foreign exchange exposures,

The Group does not enter inlo or
trade Hinancial instruments, including
derivative financial instruments, for
speculative purposes.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group principally operates from
UK sites and predominantly in the UK
market, bul has some overseas
subsidiaries and transactions
denominated in foreign currencies.
While some customer and supplier
contracts are denominated in other
currencies (mainky US dollars ("USDj
and Furo), the majority of the
Group’s revenue and costs are
Sterling based and aecordingly
exposure to foreign exchange risk is
limited.

Foreign currency exchange risk can be
subdivided intc two components,
transactional risk and translation nisk:

Transactional risk: The Group's policy
is to hedge material transactional
currency exposures via the use of
forward foreign exchange contracts,
The measurement and control of this
risk is monitored on a Group-wide
basis

Tronslation risk: The Group transtates
overseas results and net assetsn
accordance with the accounting
nolicy in note 3. Given the Group
predominantly operates in the Uk,
thereis a relatively smeall exposure
with overseas entities accounting for
only 1.3% (2021 0 1%) of operating
profit and 0.1% {2021: 0.1%) of tora:
assets forthe Group,
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The Steriing equivalents of the carrying amounts of the Sroup’s foreign currency denominated meonetary assets and
fabilities (excluding hedged currency and US doltar-denominated borrowings) at the vear-end were as follows:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£m £m
Monetary assets:
- US Lollas 41 14
Euro 113 206
- Gther Ginciuding 5GD*) 13 2.5
Totat 17.3 26.5
WMonetary liabilities:
- U5 Bnilar [1.4) (GE}
furo 7.1 {7 8)
Total (8.5) (8.2)

fers 10 Tngapn heing t
Interest rate risk management

The Group has variable rate bark and
U5 private placement debt and uses
interest rate swaps ('IRS') and
inflation-hinked swaps ("ILS') to hedge
ity exposure to rising interest rates.
The Group maintains a hedging
policy to manage interest rate risk
and to ensure the certainty of future
interest cash flows. The Group has
fixed rate hedging, split between RS
and (LS. IRS convert variahle rate
interest costs to fixed rate interest
costs while ILS convert fixed or
variable rate interest costs ta RPI-
linked costs, which fluctuate in line
with the RPiindex as do a portion of
the Group’s revende contracts, These
twaps are entered inlo on terms
{including maturity) that mirror the
debt instrument they hedge, and
therefore act as an effective
economic hedge.

As the Group uses hedging to
maintain fixed interest rates on the
najority of its material horrowmgs
{excluding revolving facilities), there
is minimal exposure on the interest
expense to interest rate movements,
Arise or fall in interest rates would
therefore not materially impact the
nterest expense payable by the
Group.

Liquidity risk management

To ensure it has sufficient available
funds for working capital
requirements and planned growth,

the Group maintains cash reserves
and access to undrawn committed
facitities 1o cover forecast
requirements.,

The Group is due 1o repay or
refinance £3.3bn of debt in the next
S years to 30 lune 2027, Regular
reviews are performed to assess
headroom between interest and
capital repayments against forecast
cash flows, thus monitoring the
liquidity risk and the Group's ability
to repay the debt.

Credit risk management

The Group carefully manages the
counterparty credit risk on iguid
funds and derivative financial
instruiments with balances currently
spread across a range of major
financial institutions, which have
credit ratings not lower than A-
assigned by international credit
rating agencias. Thie levels of credit
risk are monitored through the
Group’s ongoing risk managemaernt
processes, which include a regular
review of counterparty credit ratings.
Risk in this area is limited further by
setting a maximum level and term
for depesits with any single
counterparty.

sy 2esats ang

The Group is exposed to credit risk
on custemer receivables, which is
managed through credit-checking
procedures prior to teking on new
custemers and higher risk customers
paying in advance of services heing
provided. Performance is closely
moritered 1o ensure agreed service
leveis are maintained, reducing the
leved of gueried payments and
mitigating the risk of uncoilectable
debts. Expected impalrment for
trade receivables are calculated
based on historical default rates.
Details of this provision are shown in
note 18,

The following tables set cut the
maturity profile of the Group's non-
derivative financial liahilities and
derivative financial Hablities.

The amocunis presented in respect of
the non-derivative financial liabitities
represent the gross contractual cash
flows on an un-discounted basis.
Accordingly, these amounts may not
reconcile directly with the amounts
disclosed inthe statement of
financial position.

The amounts presented in respect of
the Group's derivative finzncial
instruments represent their fair
value and are accordingly consistent
with the amounts included in the
statement of financial pasition.

Argiva Group timited {company reg 0525%4001) 12
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Amaounts falling due

Interest Total financial

Betwaan to be Habtlity per

30 June 1022 one and Between After incurred statement of

Within two two and five Effect of in future financial

one year Pears five years years Total  discounting periods position

£m £m £m £Em £m £m

Trade payabley 35,3 - 4%.2 - 38.2

QOlher phyatles 4.4 - . 4.4 . - 4.4
Acerudis 638 - 63.48

Borrowirps® 544
190.8 -

Lease habilities 18.8 16,2 2T 227 85.6

thiterest on borrmow e ** B7E 53.2 808 581 ired {265.7] 112
Interet on sharehnlder loan ) o

Hedes HEE - IRABG - 25460 - - 2,846.9

trterest rate swaps {10 KV {107 127 (3% 7} 07 - {33.0}

iPation inked interest rate
InFasion inked interest rate §4 7 187 . 375 4 177 9) 345.5

SWaps

Total swaps 112.5

Total financial liability 71577

el ferass ! arately i those tables.
St payTents can he deferred af 110 fptien of the Group
datailed ur rate 23

te prgsente <, which are pr
T Excludes accroed ot
ray oy

YBurrawings

. [ er
reholdes loan notes (o which inte:

Reprayment of intered payients has bean deferred o 2009 g5

Amounts falling due

Interest Total financial
30 June 2021 Between to be liabitity per
one and Between After incurred statement of

(Restated)* - " ) .
Within two two and five Effect of in future finanaal
ane year ¥ears five years years Total discounting perods pusition
fra fm £Em fm im £m fm &m
Trade pay2hies 439 434G 43.9
Other payables 5 - - 51 - - 51

Acgrialbs

rawirgs st

Leatt babiiites 210 07 377 ] 107.3

1.0

Irterast on Qorrowngs FELA TE T Gy Fan

2,244.2

Lwaps G4 {1.4; {45

(7.4) 16.8)

AT L nk o) nterest tade

. 3331
SWHLIL

Total swaps 78.9 53.1 181.0

Taotal financial tiability 336.7 200, 5,760.0

Frovinas
rhorrgwt
TRl

R Prnaymie
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ihe tahle helow outlines the additional financing facilities

available to the Group:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£m £m
Secured bank facdies,
wriant utihsed 240
Aralent rutiised 2160 2500
Total i

250.0

Financial instruments

With the exception of derivative
fimancial instruments (which are
recognised and measured at fair
vatue through profit and loss) the
Group’s financial assets and financal
iabiilties sre recognised and
measured following the financial
assets measured st amortised cost
recognition category.

The weighted average interest rate
of fixed rate financial Hiabilities at 30
June 2622 for the next 12 months
was 6.044%, (2021: 6 1%) and the
weighted average period of funding
was 3.4 vears (2021: 4 3 years).
Within the Group’s financial liabilities
were bhorrowings of £6,738.7m
{2021: £6,179.3m) (see note 23),
which inciudes £582.3m (2021:
£581.5m} with floating rate interest
and the remainder with fixed rate
interest (prior to the hedging
arrangements described previousiy).

Thie Groun's financial assets
measured at armortised cost
comprise cash and cash equivaients
of £251.2m {2021 £243.9m) and

fyesr comparative has been
r
urde prepayrment balanees

1 totalied £50m

other finandial assets of £75.0m
(2021 restated®: £68.0m} as
presented in notes 20 and 18
respectively.

Derivative financial instruments
The Group seeks to manage the
exposures of its debt payment

obligations through a combination of

index inked and interest rate swaps.

AT the year end, the Group heid
interest rate swaps with notional
amounts of £420.5m {2021:

£444 6m) which hedge the interest
obligations of the Group's floating
rate debt. The average fixed rate on
these instruments is 0.2% (2021
0.2%) The swapg contracts have
termination dates that match the
maturities of the underlying floating
rate debt instruments (see note 273}

The Group has alse entered Into
index linked swaps (notional
amounts of £681.8m in 2022; 2021:
£681.8m} where the Group receives
floating and pays tixed finked to
inflation interest gbligations to an
averapge rate of 2.9% indexed with

RPI. The notional amounts of these
swaps increase with RF and these
accretion amounts are cash settled
annually, most recently in fune 2022
(£89.96m; 2021: £14.5m) hased on
the March index.

All of these instruments have a
maturity date of Aprl 2027, These
instruments were established to
hedge the Group's fixed rate debt
(nsmely fixed rate sterling bonds and
the fixed rate US Private Placement
issues) and in arder to ensure that
the cash flow characteristics align
with these instruments, the Group
has entered into £600.5m (2021:
£657.1m) of fixed to floating rate
interest rate swaps to match the
cash flows on hoth the fixed rate
debt instruments and the index
linked swaps set cut above.

The fair value of the interest rate and
inflation linked swaps at 30 June
2022 0s a ligbility of £332.5m (2021:
£326.3m}, This fair value is calculated
using a risk adjusted discount rate.
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The following table details the fair value of financiat instruments recognised on the staterment of firnancial position:

30 June 022 30 June 2021
£mi £m
Within non-current assets

Interest rate swaps 240 7.2
331 7.2

Within nan-current liabifities
et pate cwaps {0.4)
intlation-lisked interest rale swaps 13455} (233.1)

Total (312.5} (326.3)

Change n fair valuie secopamed o the neome

Attnbutable to chargen in markel condmons (1.5)
Altrilbtabie to vhatges in percewved crodd con [g96)
Total loss recognised in the income statement ey (111)
Cashisettoment of prinepat arcretinn arembiaton anked swsps 145

Cast nutfiow on recermption of swaps
bxcepuoral luss recegnised on rigse aat obinflaticn hnbed swaps

Fxcepuonai ol recogriged N clote sul of interes rate Lwap.

Totaf change in fair vatue 13.9

Where possible, the Group seeks to into levels 110 3 based on the derved from valuation

mateh the maturity of any derivative degree to which the fair value is tectnigues that include inputs

coriracts with that of debt observahle: for the asset or liability that are

instrurnents that it has issued. In not based on ghservable

some of the Group's derivative - Level 1 fair value market data {unohservable

instruments, break clauses have rrieasurements are those inputsh

been included to both match derived from guated prices

underlymg facility maturities and to {unadjusted) in active markets interest rate swaps ard inflation-

optimise the availability 2nd cost of foridentical assets or Habilities:  linked swaps are all classed as level 2

hedging tines with the Group’s - Level 2 fair value on the fair value hierarchy. in each

derivaiive counterpartias. measurements are those case the items are valued based

The fair vaiue of all ather financial derived from inputs other than upen discounted cash flow, Future

assets and liahiiities (s considered to quoted prices included within cash flows are estimated based on

he a close approximation to their Level 1 that are observahle for forward (interest/ infiation/

carrying amount, the asset or liability, either excharige) rates observahle from
directly {1.e. as prices) ar rates and yield curves at the end of

Fair value hierarchy indirectly (i e. denved the reporting period, and contract

Finarcial instruments that are prices); and rates discounted at a rislk-adjusted

uent to initial - Levet 3 fair value rate.
recogrition at fair value are grouped measurements are those
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26 Provisions

Decommissioning Restructuring Remediation Onerous (ther Tatal
Contracts

fm £m £m im £m £m

Ard July 2021 715 15 51 37 7.2 824
1100 SLAterment eapensa 1.7 G3 0.7 27
Adjustments through pronerty, plant and L kg
aglpment 2 b
Unwind of divrount 3z G2 - - A0
Released (1.6} 11.2) 1310 I5.9)
Ut 1. 13.7]

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

fm £
Analysed as:
Current 2.4 32
Non current %34

Provisions are made for
decommissioning costs where the
Group has an obligation 1o restore
sites and the cost of restoration is not
recoverabite frorm third parties.

The decormmissioning provisions are
reviewed annually and calculated using
expected costs as determined by site
and project management, The
provision s in refation to assets for
which the remaining useful economic
lite ranges up to 20 years, with the

%62

£9.4

majority of the provision relating to TV
and Radio products for which there is
no material decommissioning expected
before 2040. A discount rate of 5.6%
has been applied in calculating the
decommissioning provision (2021:

5 4%) based on the Group’s weighted
average cost of capital.

The restructuring provision relates to

the costs of exceptional activities to
reorganise the Group,

The remediation provision represents
the cost of works identified as being
regquired across a number of the
Group’s sites and is expected to be
utilised aver the next one to ten years.

Other provisions represerit a variety of
srnaller items which are expected to be
utilised cver the next one to ten years.

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001)
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5 Statements

27 Notes to the cash flow statement

Reconcilarion from operating profit 1o net cash from operating activities:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 june 2021

£m £fm

Operating profi 143 2 140.4

Adiustrments for-

Depradiation of property, plant and eguipmern 1584 135

Amornsstion uf ietangible assets 132 G 7
Ercaptional fose o disposal of assets 35
tmpairraent of acsety ok

Lass an dispesai of property, plant and egany 2% EN

Cthey ncome 7.7 (9.3}
Revenye service redits 76
Fecegpt ol wstirance stepe payments (5.0

Ows DETOIR sy emer,

Decrpana

flecregne) [ intrease 0 paysbles 7.0
{Deereane) [ intrease o orovisions 5.

Curtaiments refating 1o the defined hernghd Fe

Cash generated from operating activities 331.4
Taxes paid (0.1}
Net cash from operating activities 331.3

Analysis of changes in financial Habilities:

Changes in Changes in QOther changes

financing foreign Changes in including
ALY Suly cash flows exchange fair value  accrued interest At 20 June
2021 {Cash} {Non-cash) {Non-cash) [Nen-cash) 2022

£m L £Em frr £m £m

Charrent botrawng: hole 27 f54.6) - #0.1 1037
BOn corrent borrewing: (Mote 23) {77 51 5,777.4
ghoder io=rn notes . e . .
: 2,244 3 - 6 2 B4
i Gwings (Mote 13} H 1l 2 950 112
" T, re (Note
Dervative &5 (Note (56 ) . 5.3
Y e
e
Total 6,514.31 {239.4) - 76.2 700.3 7,05%.7

The mo

iz7 Argiva Group Linuted {company reg 05254001}
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28 Financial commitments and contingent liabilities

Financing commitments

Under the terms of the Group’s external debt facilities, the Group has provided security over substartially alf of its assets by
way of a Whole Business Securitisation structure,

Capital commitments

Commitments for the acquisition of plant and eguipment contracted for a1 the reporting date but not recognised as a

lability are payabte as folows:

30 june 2022 30 June 2021

£m £m
Withirs one: year 97 231
Within two to fiva yoars 6.9
Total capital commitments 16.6 23.1

There are no capital commitments payable in more than five years.

Contingent assets and liabilities

Bilsaale Tower Fire:

On 10 August 2021 a fire broke out at
our Bilsdale transrmitter site. Argiva’s
engineers have worked on a four-stage
recovery plan tc reinstate services
delivered via this site. Through efforts
Wilising existing and temporary
infrastructure, to date around 99% of
households have been returned to g
coverage area for TV and commaercial
radio benefited from improved
coverage to what it was before the
fire. Argiva continues to engage with
local stakeholders, including viewers,
MPs, local government and the media
through its ‘Bilsdale Mast: Project
Restore’ prograrmme.

Argiva has been informed that its’
insurers have now concluded their
investigations. Precise findings have

not been publicly shared and Argiva is
unable to comment in detail on these
findings while the claims process is
angoing.

These financial statements include
losses recognised on disposal of assets
damaged or destroyed in the incident
and subsegquently disposed of, as well
as costs incurred in the period, see
note 7. Management continues to
work with specialist advisors to assess
any further potential financial
penalties and service credits that may
be due to third parties. At the current
time it is not possible to determine the
expected outcome or guantification of
such amourts and therefore the
Directors consider this represents a
contingent liability, The group holds
insurance coverage and management
contindes to engage with the group's

insurers to assess the value of losses
and restoration costs.

At the current time such insurance
claims are considered contingent
assets and are not therefore
recognised in the statement of
financial position in accordance with
accounting standards, with the
exception of a first interim stage
payment of £5.0m which was received
from the Group’s insurers in June 2022
which has been recorded as
exceptional other income (see note 7).

On 21 September 2022, & second
interim stage payment of £10.0m was
received from the insurers in relation
to the Bilsdale fire, At 30 June 2022,
this represented a contingent assel
and has therefore not been recognised
in the income statement.
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29 Retirement benefits

W Consolidated Fi

Defined contribution scheme

Argiva Limited has operated a Defined
Contribution Scheme during the year,
for those employees who are not
members of the Group’s Defined
Benefit Plan. Contributions payable in
respect of this Scheme for the year
were £5.4m {2021 £6.8m). The assets
of the Scheme are held gutside of the
Group.

ancial Statements 2022

Anamount of £0 9m (2021: £1.2m} s
included in accruais being the
outstanding contributions to the
Defined Contribution Scheme.

Defined benefit plan

inthe year to 30 June 2022, the Group
operated one Defined Benefit Plan,
sponsared by Argiva Umited. The
Defined Benefit Plan is administered
by a separate entity that is legally
separated from the Group, and
therefore the Plan assets are held

separately from those of Araiva
Limited. The Trustees of the Plan are
reguired by law to act in the finterests
of the Plan and of all relevant
stakeholdersin the Plan, The Trustees
are responsible for the investment
policy with regards the assets of the
Plan.

The Plan typically exposes the Group
to risks such as: investrnent risk,
interest rate risl, longevity risk, and
salary risk.

tnvestment risk

The present value of the defined benefit Plan liability for 1AS19 purposes is calculated using \
3 discount rate determined by reference to high quality corporate hond yields, which is
different to how the Plan assets are invested. Currently the Plan has a refatively balanced I
investment in eguily securities, deht instruments and real estate. Due to the long-term :
nature of the Plan labilities, the trustees of the Plan consider it appropriate that a
reasonabie portion of the Plan assets should be invested in equity securities to leverage
the expected return generated by the Plan assels.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the vatuation of the Plan’s 1AS19 liability
But this will be partially offser by an incresse in the value of the Plan’s corparzte hond

investments,

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benelit Plan liahility is calculated by reference to & best
estimate of the mortality of Plan participants both during and after their retirement. An
increase in the life expectancy of the Plan participants will increase the Plan’s assessed

Salary risk

The #lar closed to the future accrual of

The triennial vatuation carried out as at

1AS19 defined benefit liahilty, and the

benefits on 31 Janvary 2016, The 30 june 2020, has been used for the

related current service cost and past

purposes of measuring the plan assets
and the present value of the defined Uit
henefit liability. This was carried cut by

an independent firm of consulting
actyaries. The present value of the

weighted average duration of the
expected benefit payments from the
Plar is around 16 years.

The principat assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

service cost, have been measured
ng the projected unit credit method
hased on roll-forward updates to the
tatest triennial valuation figures,

3G june 2022

30 Jurie 2021

nflation (1P

Lite expectancy of a Male [ 1e age GO errant
=) ¥ ! g £

Life expectarcy of 5 m

zie [ forale 2ge 50
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Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statersent in respect of the defined henefit plan were as follows:

Year ended Yvear ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£m Em

Net interest op the defined henefit aswer 10 3
L0885 GF Clrtailmaents {2.6) (1.7}
0.4 {0.8)

The net interest item above has been included within finance income {see note 9). The re-measurement of the net defined
benefit iahilizy is included in the statement of conprelensive income. ihe loss on curtallments incurred during the yeasr

has been included within exceptional costs {see note 7).

Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit plan were as follows;

Year ended
30 lune 2022

Year ended
30 June 2021

£m £m

{Loss) / retarn on Pias assels cxcluding nterest tiename {53.6) 12.3
Erperience [0uson) / gamns angng on the Plar’ Hbes {7 2) 5.4
Actuana! gas ansing from chiznges in hnandial assumptione (6.9 8.3
Actuaral gans ansing from changes in demographic gssumptiuns 6 Ok
6.7 264

The amount included in the staterment of financial position arising from the Group's obligations in respect of its defined

penefit plan was as follows:

30 June 2022

30 June 2021

£m £in
Far vahie of Plan ausets 2486 359
Fresert value of dehined benelit Pisn babidtes (184.6} (1485}
Surplus at 30 June 61.0 7.1

The Group has considered the impact of IFRICT4S and in line with thie Flai's Rules, the Group is able to recognise the Plan’s

surplus in its entirety.
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Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£m £m

Surplus at 1luly
Amaunt recogrised in profit or fnss
Amaunt recogised i Other Cormprehonsue ingeme

Company contribulions

Surplus at 30 june

Year ended Year ended
30 bune 2022 30 june 2021

1 fuly

Cuntripahions by ommpluyers

interost Cont 14.5] [}
Bonghius pand 31 G2
Crpenenca Inssed) /pasn arsing on Ui Plane hatlties 172 £3
Actuans! gan anseg from changes i fieaneal assamptine: 669 g3

as e

\oLug At gasnd arsiy from Changes in demiagraphic assumiplions

Loss on certahnents

20 June

The fair vatue of the plan assets has moved over the vear as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 june 2022 30 Jure 2021

UEn G
ItErert e roae 5.6 4
{Loss)/return an Plarn assety exclud ng interect inoove 53 6) 122
8.8 5.

s by empinyer
Coreh otors by emrployees

Betafis pa

30 June
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The major cate,

s 202 o
at the end of the repo

rting year for each category are as follows:

30 tune 2022 30 june 2021

£m £m
Eepuiity mctruments o6 2848
Diversitied growthn funds 149.7 21.2
Corprarate bonds 51 4
ML astet crecdd 169
Government bonds 643 s
Lash and egunvaiants

Total

As at 30U June 20272 £7.4m of the Plan’s
corporate bonds were unguoted. All
other equity and deht assets have
guoted prices in active markets.

The Plan includes holdings of gilts and
corporate bonds, which are intended
fo partially hedge the financial risk
from liability valuation movements
assotiated with changes in giit and
corporate bond yields. 1AS19 lability
movements from chariges in the
discount rate wilt also be partially
hedged by the Plan’s corporate hond
holding.

No arnounts within the fair value of
the Plan assets are in respect of the

Group's own financial mstruments or
any property occupied by, or assets
used by, the Group.

The triennial valuation carried out as at
30 June 2020, was approved and
signed on 27 January 2022, has been
used for the purposes of measuring
the plan sssets and the present vaiue
of the defined henefit tiahitity. This was
carried oul by an independent 1irm of
consulting actuaries. The present value
of the 1AS18 defined benefit liability,
and the related current service cost
and past service cost, have been
measured using the projected unit
credit method based on roll-forward

updates to the latest triennial
valuation figures. Following
completion of the valustion as at 30
June 2020, Aragiva Limited agreed to
pay deficit contributions of £5.4m in
July 2020, £5.0m in March 2022 and
£7 0min June 2023,

Sensitivity Analysis

The assumptions considered to he the
most significant are the discount rate
adopted, inflation represented by RPI,
and the lorgevity assumptions.

The sensitivity of the 2022 year end resuits 1o changes in the three key assumiptions is shown below:

[ Funding Position

Discount rate decrease of
0.1%

© RPlincrease of 0.1%

Longevity assumption !
increase of 1 year

fncreate n P

ign Labitties

£2.9:

£2.0m

The sensitivity of the 2021 year end results Lo changes in the three key azsumptions is shown below:

£6.3m

Funding Position

Inerenze 0 Plan labilities

Discount rate decrease of
0.1%

| RPIincrease of 0.1%

£4.5m

Longevity assumption
increase of 1 year

This sensitivity anzlysts may not be representative of the actual change in the defined henetit obhgation as it s unlkely that
the change in assumplions weould ocour in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

30 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions hetween the

Company and its subsidiaries, which

rerelated parties, have heen
eliminated on consalidation and are
not disclosed i this note

Transactions with the Group's pension
scheme are disclosed it note 29,
Transactions between the Group and

its associates, joint ventures and
entities under common influence are
discinsed below.

The disciasure of trensactions with
related parties refiects the periods in
which the refated party relationships
exist. The disclosure of amounts
outstanding to/from related parties at

the reporting date reflects related
party refationships at that date.

Trading transactions

During the year ended 30 june 2032
the Groug entered into the following
transactions with related parties who
are not members of the Group:

Argiva Group Limited {eompany reg 05254001)
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Sale of goods and services Purchase of goods and services

Year endeg Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 june 2022 30 June 2021 30 hune 2022 30 June 2021
£m £m £mn £m

Assntiales a1 - 81 ER3)
domt ventures 4.4 LR 2z 20

Ergitusg

Jnder consrnarn aflaence

Alltransactions are on third-party As at 30 June 2022 the amount Remuneration of Directors and key
terms and ail outstanding balances, are  payable to joint ventures was £0.2m management personnel
interest free, unsecured and are not (2021: £0.3m3, The remuneration of the Directors and
subject to any financial guarantee by key management personnel of the
either party. Acat 30 June 2022, the amiount Group is set out below in aggregate for
{30 2007 | receivable froim entities under each of the categories specified in 1AS
et une JU27, the at AN R s
s @ 7 ¢ ’ hAp neunt . common influence was £2.6m (2021 24 Related Party Disclosures.
receiveble from associates was £nil £5.0m)
{2021: £0.2m} and the amount payable ’
to associates was Fril (2021 £nil),
Year ended Year ended
30 june 2022 30 lune 2021
fm £m
Shortterm emipluyes benefit, 39 5.7
Terminat.nn benefits G g2
Fost empinyment benefits nz
4.7
There are no members of the Directors  connection with their service Investor transactions
and key management personnel {2021 sgreermente. There are two investor rompanes,
wonetwho are a member of the FICAL and MEIF I}, which are related
Group’s defined berefit pension Further information i respect of the parties with the Group in accordance
scheme {see note 25} rexnunteration of the Company’s with 1AS 24, by virtue of significant
skatutory Directors, including the shareholding in the Group. Reter to the
The members of the Directors and key highest paid Director, has been Directors’ report for further details of
management personnet had no orovided on page 139, these investor companies.
material transactions with the Group
during the year, other than in
30 lune 2022 MGIF i * MEIF [ + Macguarie FICAL +
Prism *
£y £m Em
Srarahaiy 104 BI6 L 2
sharehoigar Dan Gty 30 i3 <

123 Argiva Group Lir
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30 June 2021 MGIF I} * MEIF 11 + Macquarie FiCal +
Prism *
£m £m £ £m
Sharehwolder loan notes 178 h26. € 5.3 1,208.4
Stigreholder inan note interest for the year 27 1349 4.6 2603
ivan note nterest 430.8 28.7 G546 8
+Annvestor company and a related party by virtue of signihicant sharehalding (as ot 340 June 20214
31 Events after the reporting period
Post year end on 19 August 2022, the
Group signed a commitment for & The maturity of Shareholder Loan notes  On 23 September 2022, it was

£450rm term facility and a £50m
working Capital Facility both with an
expected maturity date of 2028, These
facilities are floating rate in nature
with a margin over SONIA. Argiva
Broadcast Intermediate Limited (a
subsidisry of the Greup) is the
borrower of this arrangement. The
proceeds of this facility when drawn
will he used to redeem the Groups
outstanding £625m Junior bonds.

32 Controlling parties

The Company is owned by a
consortivm of shareholders inciuding
Canada Pension Plan Investment
Board, Macquarie Furopean
infrastructure Fund fi, other Macquarie
managed funds and minorities,

The largest and smallest group in
which the results of the Company are

have also heen extended since year end
and now nave maturity dates ranging
from March 2029 to March 2030.

On 21 September 2022, a second
interim stage payment of £10.0m was
received from the insurers in relation to
the Bilsdale fire. At 30 June 2022, this
represented a contingent asset and has
therefore not been recognised in the
income statement,

consolidated is that headed by Argiva
Group Limited,

inJune 2027 it was announced that
Digital & Infrastructure has apreed to
purchase Canada Pension Plan
fnvestment Board’s (CPPIB) entire 48%
stake in Argiva. Digital 9 Infrastructure
is a dedicated infrastructure investor,
hieadguartered in the UK ang with

announced that the corporation tax
rate change from 19% to 25% with
effect from 1 April 2023 was to be
cancelled. For further detail see notes
12 and 19

significant experience in the
infrastructure industry. It s anticipated
that this deal will be completed later in
this calendar year. At that point the
representatives from CPPIB appomnted
to the Board of Directors will be
replaced by representatives from
Digital 9 Infrastructure. This will not
change the day-to-day operations of
cur business.

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001 1
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Directors’ report for Arqiva Group Limited (‘the

Company’)

The Directors of Argiva Group Limited,
registered company number
05254001, {"the Company') sshrmit the
cliowing annual report and audited
financial statements in respect of the
year enided 30 June 2022,

The Diirectors are responsibie for the
nreparation of the financial statements
as explained in the Statement of
Directors’ Resnonsibilities, set out on
page 72,

Business review and principal
activities

The Company adds 55 an ultimate
holding company of the Arqiva Group
Limited ("AGL"} group (‘the Groug’) of
companies

The Company bas made 2 loss tor the
fingncial yeor of £0.8m {2021 £0.8m)
and has net habilities of £12.3m {2021:
£171.5m).

Principal risks and uncertainties and
key performance indicators (‘KPIs’)
From the perspective of the Company,
the principal ngks and uncertam
arising from its activities are int
with the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group and are not
managed separately. Accordingly, the
principat risks and uncertainties of the
Group, which include
Company, are discussed on pages 50 to
5%

Those Of the

W

tforward navure of
tivities, the Directors
that analysis using
vy foran
ungerstarding of ihe develon
performance or position of th
ss. The KPis ft e Group are
discussed 0 pages 33 and 34,

Dividends and transfers to reserves

Tlﬂ : Directors do not propose Lo pay a
dividend {2021 CThe loss Fo“?“e
financial yearo' Fu.&w £0.8m)

3
@
W
(\

Financial risk management

Oue to the straightforward niature of
the Company’'s operations, itis
exposed to limited financial risks. The
Group’s financial risk management
programme (& detailed an page 56 to
67.

Future developments and going
concern

itis the intention of the Company to
continue Lo act as the Group’s ultimate
holding campany

The Company adepts the going
concern basis in preparing its financial
Statements on khe basl*
profit, cash flows and available
resgurces of the Group which lead the
Directors of the Company to be
rontfident that the Company will have
adequate rescurces 1o continue in
operationsl existence for the
foreseesble future.

of the future

Directors

The foliowing held office as directors

of the Company during the year and up

10 the date of this report:

- Mike Parton

- Mark Braithwarte {resigned 13 Meay
2022)

- Christian Seymour

- Peter Adams {resigred 9 December
2021}

- Sally Dawis

- Neil King

- Martin Healey

- Frank Dangeard {resigned 1 July
2021}

- Michael Darce @y

- Maximilian Fleguth
Dacember 2021}

{resigned 5

y Mavor res
Campany Surp ary ¢

April 2023 Katrira Dick was a:;r nles
y Secretary o b Apeil 2022,

On as

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has provided an
indemnity for its Directors and the
Company Secretary, whichis a
gualitying third party indemnity
provision for the purposes of the
Companies Act 2006. This was in place
throughout the year ended 30 June
2022 and up to the date the financial
statements are signed.

Disclosure of information to the
independent auditors

The Directors of the Campany in office
at the date of approvs! of this repernt
confinm that:

- so far a5 the Directors are aware
there is no relevant audit
information of which the Auditors
are unaware; and

- each Director bas taken ali the
steps that he oupht to have taken
as a Director to make himself
aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that
the Company’s Auditors are
aware of that informaticn.

Signed for and on behaif of the Board

)

Mike Parton - Director
26 September 2022
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Company statement of financial position

Note 30 fune 2622 30 june 2021
£m £m
Non-current gssets ) o
Desferred {ax
invostmenty 3
Othier recawvablag 4 1.4
14
Current assets
Other rereivables 4 Lo 26

Current liabilities

(bt payabies

ul

Vit 7y

Net current liabilities

t15.7)

Net Eabilities

{12.3)

Equity
Share cagatat
Share premitm

Accumulbated losses

Yotal equity

3156 3156
1981 8) {981.0)
[12.3) {11.5)

The accounting policies and notes on page 138 form part of these financial statements.

The result for the financial year for the Company was a loss of £0.8m (2021: £0.8m loss).

These financial statements on pages 135 to 14% were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2022 and were

signed on its behalf by,

Mike Parton - Director
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Company statement of changes in equity

Share capital? Share premium Accumulated losses Tatal equity

fm £in £m £

Balance at L luly 2020 652.9 315.6 {980.2) (10.7}
Lass for the firantial veas D)
Balance at 30 lune 2021 653.2 315.6 (381.0) {11.5)
Lows for the financa! yesr - - (0.8) {G.2}
Balance at 30 June 2022 653.9 315.6 (981.8) {12.3)

*lomprises 653,328,000 (2021, 632,9265.000) authonsed nsued snd fully paid ardingey shares of £1 each.
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Notes to the Company financial statements-

1 Argiva Group Limited accounting policies and other information

Basis of preparation

A5 used in these financial statements
and associated notes, the term
‘Company’ refers to Argiva Group
Limited.

Argiva Group Limited is a private
company bmited by shares
incorporated in the United Kingdom.
The registered address of the Campany
is Crawley Court, Winchester,
Hampshire, $021 2QA.

The financial Statements of the
Company have been prepared in
accordznce with Financial Reporting

standard 101, 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework' (‘'FRS 101'). The financial
statements have been prepared on @
going concern hasis under the
historical cost convention ard in
accordance with the Companies Act
2006. The Group’s financial statements
{Arciva Group Limited and its
subsidiaries) are available enlfine at
WA, BTV

The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with The
Companies Act 2006 as applicable
using FRS 101, As permitted by Section
408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the

Company’s income staterment has not
heen presented.

Accounting policies have been applied
consistently throughout.

New and revised Standards and
Interpretations have been adopted in
the current year, a list of which can be
found in note Z ot the Group financial
statements. There is no material
impact on the Company. The following
disclosure exernptions, as permitted by
paragraph 8 of FRS 101, have been
taken in these Company financial
statements and notes:

EU-adopted IFRS

Relevant disclosure exemptions

IAS 1 Presentation of
financial statements
AS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows

IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures

136

All disciasure reguirements,

The requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10{f;, 16, 38A, 38B 10 D, 40Ato D, 111 and 134 to

The reguirements of paragraph 17; the requirement to disclose related party
transactions entered into hetween two or more members of 2 Graup, provided that any

subsidiary party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member.

IFRS 7 — Financiai
instruiments

Accounting policies
Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and
associates are shown at cost less

provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash at bank and in hand
and bank deposits repayable on
demand.

Other payables

Other payables are not interest
bearing and are recorded at fair value.
They are included in current lishiiities,
except for maturities greater than 12
maonths after the reporting date, which
are classified as ron-current ligbilities,

Dividends

Dividend distributions are recoghised
as a llahility In the year in which the
dividends are approved by the
Corpany’s sharehotders,

Al disclosure reguirements.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as
equity,

Other information

Empioyees

The Company had no employees
during the year (2021: none}. None of
the Directors (2021: none) were
remunerated by the Company.

Their individual remuneration reflects
the services they provide to the
Company, its subsidiaries and a
number of other entities outsice of the
Group. it is therefore niot possible to
make an accurate apportionment of
each Director’s remunaration in
respect of their service to the
Company except where sums are paid
to third parties in respect of their
services, There were no such sums
paid in the year [2021: none).

Audit fees

The audit fee inrespect of the
Company and fees payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for non-
audit services were not specific to the
Company and are disclosed in the
notes to the Group financial
statemnents (see note 6).

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

No critical accounting estimates or
judgements have been used in the
preparation of these financial
ctatermerits,

Argiva Group Limited {(company reg 05254001}



2 Directors’ remuneration

The aggrepate of the amount paid to the Directors in respect of their services as a Director of the Group are set out beiow:

Certain of the Directors were
representatives of the Company’s
shareholders and their individual
remyneration reflects the services they
provide to the Company, {15 subsidiaties
and a number of other entities outside
of the Group. itis not poss'ble 1o make
an accurate apportionment of each
Ditector's remuneration in respect of

their service to the Company and the
Group except where sums are paid to
third parties in respect of their services,
of which there were £ {2021 £ril) in
relation to the Company. Accordingly,
no remuneration in respect of these
Directors is recognised in the Company.

Year ended
30 June 2022

Year ended
30 June 2021

£ £t

There are no directors to whom
retirement benefits acerued in respect
of gqualifying services (2021: none).

Highest paid director

Included in the above is rernuneration
in respect of the highest pald Direcior
of:

Apurcgate remunerahon

Year ended
33 June 2022

Year ended
30 June 2021

135 AtQiva Group Liméted {[caompany reg 05254007 )
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3 Invesitments

The Compary's subsidiary investments {held indirectly unless stated) are shown below:

Company

Country of
incorperation

Principal activities

Percentage of ordinary

shares held

ARHL ptal Lmited

dnited Kingdom

rinlding company

ABHL Digital Radio Linmited United Kenpdom Hpiting cornpany 100%
\BHL MUulliplex Limiders United Kirngdom Uorrnant comparny 30 dun TO0%
Artiva Muxco Limited tnited Kngdnm TrAPSMISEION SETVines 30-dun 100%
Arana (Scetiand; Limited doned kirgdom Tramairgsst § 50 dun U

Argiva Broadoast Finanee Plc

United Kingdoni

Argive Broadcast Intermediute Lirmted Unites Kingdom g oMYAy 2 dun 300%
Argiva Broadeast Liritsd Unied kingdom [Darmant compary S0 100%
Argiva Broadcast Parent Limited Urted Hisgdum Hobbng company 100%
Ardeva Communications Linited e Eimpdnn Jarmant cempany ESRh 100%
Argva ed ganefd Panaon Flan Vrustees imited Urited Kingdare Fensiun (OMpany 30 Jun 100%
Araeva Digital Lims Liruted Kingdom Lormant campary ERBIL TO0%

Arrpva Binanee Lt

Artgva Finaneing No, 1 Limited

Argiva Financng No. 2 Limited
Aripiva Financing No 2Tl

Argiva Financing Ple

Lriteg Kingoum
Lmited Kingdarn
Literd Kinggdorm
Urited Kingdom

Lrated Kaingdom

Doraant comany
Holding cotngany
Holdirg company

Hauiding ce

¥

nanging vehicts

sli-jun
AU

30-Jure

Sharg

30-durs

1O0%
100%
100%
59 9a% [held direcly)

1007

Argva Group Holdings Lirmited Lnited €ingdom Holdirg company 3G-lun 100%
AGiva Group intermedate vmed Unitert varwdorn Holding comparny 20-Jun 100%
armiva Group Parent Limited Urted Kingdorm Helding coredty 30 an 100%
Argiva Holdings Linnted UnHens Kingdom Holding company 30 Jun 100%
Ardiva Inc. USA Satellite transIsLInn services 3rfun J00%
Ariva Interational Hoidings aroted Yrpted Kingdom Holding company 30N 0%
Argiva Intermed.ate Lionted Urited Kingdom Helding comipany 20-ian 100
Argiva Limited Untedt Kingdom Transmissicri Servic ey 30-3un 100%
Acgiva Lirmted frelang Trans inssIon servires 30-dun 100%

Argiva Media Limited

iJoteg Kingdom

[orreant company

Sk-pm

Artiva Mobtle Broadc aut Lireted Hrpted Kingdom Durrsart company 3 aun OO,
Artiva Mobiie Lirnted Urited Kingdom Gormant comparny 20-dan 100%

Argiva Mobile TV Linvted Umiter: Kingdorm Barmrant company 30-Jun 1%
Argiva No. 10 bnated Unilert Kingdom Dormant company 30-Juri 100%
Argiva No 11 Limited Lhined Kingdom Lormant cormpeny 30-Jun 100%
Areiva Pengion Trast Limeted Unied Kingdem 1L cempany 31 War O

Arpvd PE Floanrmg Ple

Unitea Kingdom

ig veinrie

30-lun

0%
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Company

Percentage of ordinary

Argiva Ple umited

Argiva Pubhic Safety Limed
Artgiva SAS

Argiva Satellite Lirnited
Argtva Secar finance Limiied

Argtva Smgrt Fingnong laroited

Argiva Srmart Huldings Limiter
Argiva Smart Meternng Limitsd
Argwa Sirart Parent Lirmstod
Argiva SRL

Argiva Swing Linated

Arigiva Telecom< investment Lamiied

Artva Transrsiosion Lomded

v U Brozdoa

Gldings Lisided

Ariva M iretess Limitedd

Capgblue Lim

Cast Commurngat.ons L

Gns [Holdings)

nrneda Commicracation Grouy Lerted

nredia Commamications Linrted

[FEM G Linstec

Nacrnpoirtan Lirnifed

Now Dprat {Uast Madlaniis) Lirat

Mow Gigitat (Oxford

Now Dugao! (Southe

N Digrag bitrat

NWE Soe

rura Moldnge

Prirrose No

s tEurapet Lo

SEvision

Ve Me

Seoth West L

Craitrs crac e L
Coestrum intoragive

Spedlrun nlerarTy
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Country of Principal activities Year end
incorporation shares held
SInRANOIe Satelite transmession servicas 20-Jun 100%

LUnited Kingdorn
france

Limited engdom
United Kingdacn
drited Kinguom
Urnited tingdoem
Uaited hingdam
United Kirgdom
Haly

Uaned ngdom
ciititedd Korprdag
nited Kingaom
wrotged Kingdom
Unred Vaogdom
United Kingdyin
Jrited Kingdom
Uritea Kergdom
Listite Kirgrdais

United Pingdom
Unitad ¥ingdom

Urnted Kingdom
wrrled Kangdom

(Jrkend Ky

gdom

Uruted K

g

Urited Kingdom

Lnec kingdom

Uniterl Kinggors

gdore
wnied ringdum

ned K

Urniteg Kenpgdarr

dom

Liriites

s Kingdor

e

‘£

.

wed Kispdirn
Garmary

Aownradom

g

(B

Dormant campany

Satellde transmission «

Dprmant company

Firigrcing wehicte

Firan vetucle

>3

Holding company

Smiarl metering commuanicabions

Holding rorapany

S ite Lranumission RrvICes
Gormant cornpany

tisnding raonpany

Dortiant eompany

Hoiding company

Larmant company

Durtnant Con

Dormant corppany
Durmant company
JOCEE COMTArY

Trarm mt 50 Lervlees

Dormiant Lamipany

Leenant aompany
Dormant -« ormgzarny
Dormant companry
Craraant company

Irans rission services

Dormant company
TrORSITS IO SEIVIL

QN GRS

Fuiding company
Permant company

Dorrmant comipary

ot rniepaty

y-*.c.|c:wr=g;

30-dun
30 Jun
3{0-sun
30-Jun

30 lun

301

A0-bur
20-Jun
A0 Jun
30-Jun
3-sun
-l

30-1un

0-aen

1005
100%
1004
T
200%

100%

el
L 00%

100"

100v,

100%,
10094

A%

L% {Feid directly]




Arnual Report and Consolidated Finandial Statements 2022

With the following exceptions, the registered office of each of the subsidiary companies listed was Crawley Court,
Winchester, Hampshire, 5021 2QA:

Lompany

Registered office

Argivi bng

Mreiva Pre

Argiva SAS

Arigiva Sil

Argiea [reland) Liroled

A {Scoilang) amited

o/u The Corparation Trust Compa

Wilrnington, BEIG301. Lmted States of Amernica

2 Manna Boulevard #05 0z, Maring Bay Pioanaal Centre, C18981,

apOre

Taur Vendarae 204, Rond Point du Pont De Seyres, 92100, Haulegrne, France.

¢/ Studie Bandin & Aorocat], Vie Catabiia 22, Rome, italy

nit & Willborough, Clonshaugh indasirial

/o Morton Fresar, (uarte

fstete, Dubbn t/, Lo

[iukin, ireland

le 2.7 lister Snuare, Fdinburgh, EM3 9GL, Sentiand

riy, Corporation Trust Centre, 1206 Orange Street,

in addition to the sub<idiary undertakings the Company indirectly holds the following interests in associztes and joint

ventures:
. Percentage of
Country of L - . . .
Company incornoration Principal activities Registered office Year end ordinary
orp ¥ shares held
Joint veritures
e Owrership and operabior of - Media Houre Peterborough Business
ke

Sodad Ligital timiled

Associate undertakings:

Wuxea Linpited

UK Digntgl Redio Liniited

Kingdom

Urited
Kirgdaor

United

Klrigdof\i

UK DAR radio minitiplex
lieenee

Biedeling far UK DAB higital

rado multiplex icen

re

sunpnrt velivery of a digital

Fature forradio

Park, Lynch Wood, Feterhorough
Urned Kingdom, PE2 BEA

Greenworks Dog And Duck Yard,
Prigeeton Street, Londer, Pngland.
WIOER 4BH

1% Adfred Place, Lendoen, Frngland,
WOLE 76R

31-Ber

31 -Dee
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atements 2022

The following companies within the Group will adopt the Department for Business, Energy and Industrizl Strategy {BEIS)
audit exemption for the year ended 30 June 2022, As the ultimate parent company, AGL has guaranteed the debts and
iabilities held within these companies as reguired under section 479A of the Companies Act 200G

Company Company registration
number

te Limisterd (2126588

Ardiva Grougs inter

Argiva Group riidin rsited 08221064
Arcpva Uk Bro ot Haldings Lirmted 05254048
Argiva Telecon investrnent Limited (3686554
Argva Scotland Lmited 50365009
AHRL Dimtat Linited U35387x7
AGHL Digrtal Fadio Lmneo 03473732

Dngtal One Lrmited

Naow Ligitar wiraied

Now Chigitat {Suuthern) Lavaged

Argiva Dingncirg No T uimited UR137689
Argva triternatceral Holdings Lirmitedd 0875304
Ariva intermedate Linated AEY R

Arcprvs Semor Ferancg Lomed

Argiva Smrart Holdings Lumded O 723422

Mrgiva Sraaot Parert dmited
Argiva Mixdo Lirited

Arpiva Fieancing Na b Limited

witermediate Lirviternd

The following dormant companies within the Group will take the exemption from preparing and filing finandial statements
for ihe year ended 30 Jure 2027 {by virtue of s394A and s448A of Cornpanies Act 2006 respectively). As the ultimate parent
company, AGL has guaranteed the various debts and labitties hield within these companies a5 required under section 3940
of the Campanies Act 2006,

Company Company registration
number

ARL Moty Lirrnond

Argive Mobie TV Limderd

Argiva Public Safely Limiten

Argiva NG

Arqees No LT Crnited
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Annual Report and Conselidated Financial Statements 2022

Company Campany registration
number
Inrnediz Commuricatiuns Group Gimited On097612
Inmedia Loramgnications Limided 05097622
MG Limiited 03297317
Macropohtan Limeed 05401563
Fricnrage No. 1 Lirtedd LFO46R87

Sraaners (Eurnpe) Limited

Scanners Television Ouisice Broadoasts Limtedd

Setertive Media Limiled ORE796R7

Spectrun inde active UK vrrmted

NWP Spectram Foldings Linited Uaa12123

Spectrum Intaraglive Lirmted (14440

The Company held the following investments in subsidiaries:

Total

£fm

Cost

AL 1 JLly

Carrying valug

At 30 June 2022 .

At 30 June 2021

The Directors consider the carrying value of the Company’s investments in its subsidiaries on an annual basis, or more
freguently should indicatars arise
4 Other receivables
30 june 2022 30 lune 2021
£m fm
Within cusrent assets
Arropunts receivable from otfier Group entitie: 1.0 35
Within non-current assets
Arncudts recewvable trom ather Groon enbiting z.4 T4
Total 4.4 4.0

With the excegtion of £0.9m (2021 £0.8m) due lrom Argiva Hoeldings Limited which incurs interest at 9.5% pey annum, all
arnounts receivable are due from other Group entities and are unsecured, interest-iree, and repayable on demand.
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5 Other payables

Withip current Hiabilities

Amouunts payshie 1o uther Group entiies

Totat

urisecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand,

6 Related parties

30 june 2021

The Company has no payabies failing due after more than one year. Amounts payable to other Group entities are

The Company has applied the provisions within FRS 101 o be exempt from the disciosure of transactions entered into, and
balances nutstanding, with a Group entity which is wholly-owned by another Group entity.

7 Controlling parties

The Company is owrned by a consortium of shareholders including Canada Pension Plan Investrnent Board, Macguarte

European Infrastructure Fund I, other Macguarie managed funds and minorities.

The larpest and smallest group in which the recults of the company are consohdated is that beaded by Araiva Group
Limited,

In June 2022 1t was announced that Digital 9 Infrastructure, has agreed to purchase Canada Pension Plan Investrment
Board's {CPPIB) entire 48% stake in Argiva, Digital 9 Infrastructure is a dedicated infrastructure investor headguartered in
the UK and with significant experience in the infrastructure industry. 1t is anticipated that this deal will be completed later
in this calendar year. At that point the representatives from CPPIB appointed to the Board of Direciors will be repiaced by

representatives from Digital 9 infrastructure. This will not change the day-to-day operations of pur business,
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